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CORPORATE INFORMATION

AREH
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the final
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.
During the year, the Group recorded a profit of approximately
HK$88,752,000. After deducting non-operating items, the
overall operating performance of the Group increased slightly as
compared to that of last year.

2018 was a year full of challenges to the Group. In April 2018,
the 25% import tax imposed by the United States on products
exported to the United States from the PRC, such as the
machinery, electrical appliance and equipment etc., amounting to
approximately US$50 billion pursuant to section 301 of the Trade
Act of 1974 of the United States unveiled Sino-US trade frictions.
As the sales volume of the Group's products accounted for an
insignificant proportion in the US market, the impact of import
tax imposed by the United States to the Group was limited.
However, the United States subsequently imposed 10% import
tax on other Chinese products amounting to US$200 billion,
the operating businesses of relevant customers were forthwith
severely hammered, which brought far-reaching impact on the
business environment.

Under economic downturn in Mainland, although the PRC
government promulgated a range of measures to support the
real economy, especially to reduce operating costs of small and
medium-sized enterprises, the outcome was still to be observed.
Numerous enterprises were directly or indirectly affected by
Sino-US trade frictions, at the same time faced loan financing
challenges in Mainland and the increase of operating costs as a
result of the capital spent on additional environmental equipment
to align with the stringent environmental regulations under
“Pollution Prevention” plan, one of the “Three Tough Battles” of
the PRC.
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Confronted with the tough operating environment, the Group
continues to streamline its organizational structure, enhance the
effective usage of capital in the supply chain, exert stringent
control over production cost, implement the “Industry 4.0"
operational plan and focus on the development of higher-margin
products and the associated customer groups. During the year
under review, all member companies launched new products and
services to the market, which expanded new drivers for profit
growth of the Group. The Group acquired additional capital
through allotment and issue of new Shares during the year,
which allowed the Group to invest more resources for developing
business further, increasing its investments in product research
and development, developing new products and enhancing the
quality, function and efficiency of the existing products.

At the end of December 2018 the Central Economic Work
Conference advocated two of the missions for the year to be
“Promoting High-quality Development in the Manufacturing
Industry” and “Fostering a Strong Domestic Market”. The PRC
has recently promulgated the “Outline Development Plan for the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area” specifying the
"Promotion of the Transformation and Upgrade of Traditional
Industries”. The outline laid out the development objectives
and strategic positioning of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau
Greater Bay Area. The Greater Bay Area will become one of the
most competitive markets in the world. With certain production
plants of the Group are located in the Greater Bay Area, we will
definitely seize the development opportunities arisen and strive
for all opportunities for business expansion.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EFE®wE (&)

2019 will still be a tough and challenging year. As the deadline
for reaching an important trade agreement between the PRC
and the United States approaches, it is possible that the two
sides may reach a temporary truce. The Group shall also pay
close attention and remain full alert to the extension effect of
“Brexit” by the United Kingdom from the European Union and
spread of populism across the countries in Europe and the United
States in recent years. The Group will adhere to the prudent
financial management, keep the debt ratio at a low level and
reserve sufficient cash flow in order to face the severe challenges
in 2019 in a prudent and optimistic manner. Meanwhile, the
Group utilizes its existing financial resources, continues to invest
in research and development and innovation, and constantly
launches superb products with outstanding functions and quality
services in respond to market demands in order to deliver
increasing value for Shareholders.

The Board, the management and all staff members of the Group
continue to devote best effort and face challenges ahead with
indomitable determination to strive for outstanding results for
the Group. | would like to express my greatest appreciation to all
Directors, Shareholders, customers and cooperation partners for
the continuous trust and support given to us.

Tang To
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS SUMMARY
e Revenue increased by 9.6% to approximately
HK$2,682,452,000 (2017: HK$2,446,848,000)

e Gross profit margin decreased to 16.3% (2017: 16.7%)

e Operating profit increased to approximately HK$76,987,000
(2017: HK$63,349,000)

e Profit for the year was approximately HK$88,752,000 (2017:
HK$43,850,000), including a non-recurring gain on disposal
of entire issued share capital of an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, of approximately HK$44,588,000

e Net debt to equity ratio decreased to 3.8% at as 31
December 2018 (31 December 2017: 7.4%)

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The sales revenue of the Group increased by 9.6% to
HK$2,682,452,000. It was mainly attributable to the
improvement of performance in the machinery manufacturing
business, plastic products and processing business and the trading
business during the year.

Gross profit for the year amounted to approximately
HK$437,158,000, with gross profit margin of 16.3% as
compared to 16.7% in 2017. The Group strives to improve the
gross profit margin by increasing the production capacities in
certain manufacturing plants and strengthening control over
the production costs including the labor cost. The Group also
continues the sales strategy by focusing on high-margin products
and also associated customer sectors in various businesses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEWI R D (&)

During the year, the Group recorded a non-recurring gain on
disposal of entire issued share capital of MS Plasticorp, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company prior to the completion
of the disposal and incorporated in Cook Islands with limited
liability, of approximately HK$44,588,000, after deducting related
statutory cost and expenses. For more details of the disposal,
please refer to the heading “Material Acquisition and Disposal”
below.

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 23
December 2016, the Group planned to restructure its plastic
products and processing business and machinery manufacturing
business, including the cessation of operation of certain
manufacturing businesses and optimization of the production
capacities in plants located at Dongguan and Wuxi. The
restructuring projects including assets relocation, organizational
restructuring and production efficiency enhancement was

progressing and on-going.

The Group reported a net profit of approximately HK$88,752,000
for the year, including a non-recurring gain of approximately
HK$44,588,000 from the disposal of subsidiary mentioned above.
This was mainly resulted from the increase in sales revenue and
gross profit, and tight control over the operating overheads
during the year.

The net debt to equity ratio decreased to 3.8% as at 31
December 2018. The overall cash flow position and debt maturity
profile of the Group maintained at a healthy level.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.02 per Share for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW

Machinery Manufacturing Business

The machinery manufacturing business recorded sales growth in
the Mainland market during the year, mainly arised from sales
orders received from the industries of automotive components,
household appliances and infrastructure construction in the
second half of 2017. Starting from the second half of 2018,
the market and investment sentiment in Mainland showed
signs of uncertainties and expected to continue in the future. A
slowdown of sales orders of injection moulding machines was
also starting from third quarter during the year. Accordingly,
the operating result of the business in the coming year may be
slightly decreased, as compared to that of this year. The Group
is prudently cautious to the business performance in 2019 and
continues to deploy strict cost control and measures, in particular
by credit control, inventory and cashflow management to
mitigate overall operating risks.

In addition, the restructuring plan of this business (mainly
streamline the organization structure and elevate the existing
production capacities) started at the end of 2016 was
processing and on-going. This business was re-allocated its
existing resources, realigned its business direction, particularly
re-alignment of the export sales team, and adjusted products in
the two main production plants of injection moulding machines.
The production capacities and efficiency were then enhanced
during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEWI R D (&)

The launch of the latest 3 generation of servo-driven injection
moulding machines and optimization of design of two-platen
series of injection moulding machines’ functions were well
received by customers. These mechanical series aligned with our
industry-specific mechanical solutions with on-going sales and
development efforts, will help drive growth in our target markets
in the future. On the other hand, after years of development
and implementation for the “iSee 4.0” system which is a digital
platform applying the “Industry 4.0" technologies, gained
a substantial rise in customers connected with the platform.
This platform enables users to monitor their machineries and
accessory equipment in real time and to utilize a wide range of
manufacturing management functions leveraging on the use of
smart data and traceability functionality to help manufacturers
raise work efficiencies and make agile decisions. The Group
considers this system and platform as a key strategic area for
machinery manufacturing business for the future.

For the extrusion machines and rubber plastic machinery
manufacturing business, it continues to develop and improve its
functionalities and designs. This business put in substantial efforts
in supply chain management, quality improvements, internal
procedures and management optimizations. In addition, to meet
the requirements of higher vehicle emission standards and new
energy vehicles in Mainland, the development of multi-layer nylon
composite fuel pipes particularly made for those vehicles will be
the main focus of this business in the coming years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Plastic Products and Processing Business

In 2018, performance of the plastic products and processing
business was satisfactory, mainly attributable to our production
plant located in Zhuhai as it reported a turnaround result
for the year. This plant repaired promptly from the serious
damage caused by the typhoon in the second half of 2017
and quickly resumed its production after few months with
upgraded manufacturing workshops and factory infrastructures,
further improvement in the hygiene condition and production
environment. The overall production efficiency and output are
enhanced after purchasing of new machines and equipment
with high specifications. In the coming years, it will continue
to develop and diversify its high-margin customer portfolio, in
particular for the folding cap seals with scoop for dairy products.
This plant will also increase the applications of advanced digital
smart factory management technology and deploy a wider range
of automation solutions to further improve efficiencies and
product quality.

Our plastic processing plant located in Hefei is facing various
challenges, including squeeze of operating margin by major
customers, increasing costs of manufacturing overheads,
additional overheads in installation of environmental machines
and equipment to comply with the stringent environmental
regulations in the Mainland. All these factors had posed high
pressure to the operating results to this plant in the coming years.
In response, the Group exerted additional resources to automate
production processes and enhanced its production capacities to
maintain competitiveness in the market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEWI R D (&)

The Group continues to closely monitor non-profit-making
businesses and may execute the need of restructuring, in
addition to its investments in the production of plastic products
with advanced technologies. The multi-color injection moulding
business is expected to scale up its order intakes after business
developments initiated in past couple years. The mannequin
blow-molding business, although its profit contribution is limited
for the meantime, their products and quality are well received
by global fashion brands. On-going business development and
manufacturing process refinement, will hopefully develop into
a growing business, once global brands embrace eco-friendly
blow moulded products versus traditional fibre-glass products.
The overall performance of this business is expected to improve
gradually through crystallization of these pioneering investments.

Printed Circuit Board (“PCB”) Processing and Trading
Business

The operating results of the PCB processing and trading business
improved, which was mainly resulted from the enhancement
of gross profit margin during the year. Sales revenue also
increased in 2018 as additional sales derived from various major
customers. The business continues facing several risks, including
fluctuation in the price of raw materials, additional investment
in new products and intense competition within the industry.
Nevertheless, this PCB processing business responded by shifting
its product mix to higher-margin products while maintaining
stringent control on development costs in order to maintain its
market competitiveness. On business development, more major
customers in the PRC were developed in this year, thus reducing
its reliance on export markets and customers. Moreover, it
continues its direction to automate production processes and
enhancement of production capacities, in order to enhance the
product quality with lower scrap rate arising from development of
the new products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Regarding the PCB trading business, its contribution was
stabilized through execution of adjustment of sales strategy
to expand sales network in Thailand and Japan, and shift their
marketing strategy on trade fair promotions. It will continue
to strengthen its professional technical support and after-
sales services through the collaboration between sales teams
across different geographical locations and the PCB processing
business team. In addition, it also invested in circuit board quality
inspection equipment to enhance its sales revenue by providing
a wide range professional testing and value-added services to
associated customers.

Industrial Consumables Trading Business

The overall performance of the trading business improved slightly
in 2018 as a result of increased sales from some target market
sectors. The sales performance of new products for the electric
vehicle industry, robot arm application and controller systems
were improved in the past year. The business had critically
strengthen its inventory management and internal control
mechanism during the year, with aim to achieve its inventory
control at a healthy operating level. The team has also realigned
its sales strategy to focus on the development of “Industry 4.0"
system-integration business in order to capture potential business
opportunities arising from factory automation and production
processes enhancement in Greater China. In addition, it
continues the development of high-margin fast-growing industrial
customers such as auto components and robotic automation.

This trading business expects the operating environment to be
challenging in coming years. However, the business works to
expand market share in major industries of telecommunication
equipment, electric vehicle, escalators, plastic injection moulding
machines, robotics, electronics, and system integration projects.
It strives to maintain profitability and monitor different risks amid
economic uncertainties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEWI R D (&)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total outstanding bank
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$377,163,000 (31
December 2017: HK$425,723,000) which comprised mainly
bank loans and trade finance facilities. The bank borrowings
repayable within one year and in the second to the fifth
year amounted to approximately HK$357,052,000 and
approximately HK$20,111,000 respectively (31 December 2017:
HK$380,598,000 and HK$45,125,000 respectively).

After including obligations under finance lease of approximately
HK$7,075,000 (31 December 2017: HK$ 2,696,000)
and deducting cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$339,702,000 (31 December 2017: HK$348,746,000),
the Group’s net borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$44,536,000 (31 December 2017: HK$79,673,000).
Shareholders’ equity as at 31 December 2018 was
HK$1,183,569,000 (31 December 2017: HK$1,080,494,000).
Accordingly, the Group’s net gearing ratio was 3.8% (31
December 2017: 7.4%).

The Group’'s financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group carried out its business transactions mainly in
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United States dollars and Japanese
Yen. As the Hong Kong dollars remained pegged to the United
States dollars, there was no material exchange risk in this respect.
The Group continues to monitor its foreign exchange exposure
in Japanese Yen and Renminbi and enter into forward contracts
when necessary. The Group’s long-term bank loan facilities were
denominated mainly in Hong Kong dollars and carried interest
at floating rates. Credit risk was hedged mainly through credit
insurance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Subscription of New Shares

On 30 April 2018, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Cosmos Holdings and Saniwell, pursuant to
which the Company has allotted and issued, and Cosmos
Holdings and Saniwell subscribed for 108,750,000 Shares and
36,250,000 Shares respectively at a subscription price of HK$0.55
per subscription share (the “Subscription”). All conditions
precedent in respect of the subscription agreement have been
fulfilled and the Subscription took place on 27 June 2018. Upon
completion, an aggregate of 145,000,000 new Shares have
been duly allotted and issued to Cosmos Holdings and Saniwell.
Accordingly, immediately after completion, the Company had
861,930,692 Shares in issue.

Use of Net Proceeds from Subscription of New Shares

The total gross proceeds from the Subscription amounted to
HK$79,750,000. Pursuant to Company's announcement dated
30 April 2018 and Company's circular dated 19 May 2018, the
net proceeds raised from the Subscription was approximately
HK$76,800,000 after deducting related professional fees and
related expenses and the net subscription price was appropriately
HK$0.52 per subscription share. However, the amount of related
professional fees and related expenses increased by approximately
HK$676,000 thereafter, the actual net proceeds raised from the
Subscription was approximately HK$76,124,000 and the net
subscription price was appropriately HK$0.52 per subscription
share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEWI R D (&)

The Company used the net proceeds as set out in the heading
“Reasons for the Subscription and Use of Proceeds” of the
Company’s Circular dated 19 May 2018. An analysis of the
utilisation of the net proceeds from the date of completion, 27

June 2018 to 31 December 2018 is set out below:

F+-_A=+—HFm"
mr

Planned use of
net proceeds from
the date of

the completion to
31 December 2018

KRAREARRIBHAZZE - \FRAT
Az@BRz [ETRBEEZEARMAER
A% EREFTA A AT
AfA-—T— ) \FRXA-t+EtHE=-ZT—N\
BRIBFE AR

SRR FER - X

Actual use of

net proceeds from
the date of

the completion to
31 December 2018

BERBEHE BERBHE
—E-N\F —E-N\F
+t=ZA=+—H +t=ZA=+—H
FREREFH FREREFHE
SFE AR BERAR
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET
(i) Funding and working capital in machinery manufacturing
business, plastic products and processing business and
industrial supplies trading business 22,800 5,500
FAEMMBLE ST T BB RN T EBIA R
IXHREMEIEBR 2EARRBES
(i) Research and development in machinery manufacturing
business 15,200 1,950
B ELE R 2 3 TE
(iii) Investment in plants and machineries in machinery
manufacturing business, plastic products and processing
business and industrial supplies trading business 19,000 2,250
RENHMBEER TR m RN TR R
IXHERME DR ZME N
(iv) Restructuring in machinery manufacturing business 7,600 1,300
BHRERBNEM
(v) Repayment of bank loans 11,400 4,200
BRRITERK
76,000 15,200
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Disposal of Entire Issued Share Capital of a Subsidiary

On 1 September 2017, Sunford Enterprises Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as vendor entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with Giant Express Investment
Limited, as purchaser, to sell entire issued share capital of
MS Plasticorp, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company prior to the completion of disposal and a company
incorporated in Cook Islands, at an aggregate consideration of
RMB82,000,000. The disposal was completed on 20 March 2018.
Following the completion of the disposal, MS Plasticorp ceased to
be a subsidiary of the Company.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
1 September 2017, 11 October 2017, 22 December 2017 and
20 March 2018, and the Company’s circular dated 20 September
2017.

Save as disclosed above, there was no material acquisition and
disposal by the Group during the year.

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICY AND
TRAINING SCHEME

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 3,320
employees located in Hong Kong and Mainland (31 December
2017: approximately 3,460). The remuneration policy regarding
the employees of the Group is based on qualifications,
competence and the performance of the employees as well as the
prevailing market condition of the industry. Employees’ benefits
include retirement benefits and medical insurance coverage.

The Group had also provided training programmes or courses
for the mainland staff at all levels from different departments,
and also for Directors and employees of the Company so as to
further enhance their technical skills in production operation and
management, professional skills and knowledge, respectively.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Company, having regard to individual
performance, the Group’s performance and profitability,
remuneration benchmark in the industry and prevailing market
condition.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEWI R D (&)

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

The macro economic environment is expected to become more
challenging in the coming years. The recent China-US trade
dispute and conflicts, the “Brexit” by the United Kingdom from
the European Union and political uncertainties in Europe pose
increasing instability to the global business environment and
hence the volatility of capital market and currency fluctuations.
The Group is keen on closely monitoring respective severe
challenges ahead, including increase in production costs,
fluctuation of raw materials costs, low visibility of sales orders
from customers, abrupt shifts of governmental policies etc. At
the same time, our management teams of each business will
take agile actions in reaction to such unstable and complex
market demands. The Group’s performance has improved
from the implementation of restructuring measures of the
machinery manufacturing business and the plastic product and
processing business since 2017. Confronting a new round of
downward pressure on the economy in Mainland, the market
and manufacturing industry are still in view of uncertainties in
the coming years. However, the Group is confident that certain
member companies have the capabilities to strive forward and
capture growth in various industries for further growth.

Last but not least, the Group continues to align its strategy of
providing innovative, high-technology and best quality products
and services to our customers through our management team
works, our bolstering research and development capabilities,
our close collaboration across different businesses and also our
prudent financial risk management capabilities. It is the Group's
long-term goal to enhance shareholders’ value by leveraging the
existing resources, well-organized business platform and effective
use of capital.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
EERGREEAERHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Tang To, aged 70, was appointed as the chairman of the
Board (the “Chairman”) and executive Director on 18 September
1997. Mr. Tang also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. He is the chairman of each of the nomination
committee and committee of executive Directors of the Company.
On 28 May 2010, he was appointed as the director of Suzhou
Sanguang Science and Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed
on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations and is an
associated company of the Company. Mr. Tang has over 40 years
of experience in manufacturing and trading businesses. Mr.
Tang is the father of Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman. As at the date of
this annual report, Mr. Tang is a director of certain substantial
shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Wong Yiu Ming, aged 65, joined the Group in 1978 and
was appointed as the general manager of the Company on 1
February 1999. He was subsequently appointed as an executive
Director on 23 June 1997 and acted as the chief executive officer
of the Company from 12 September 2005 to 30 June 2013, and
was appointed as the executive vice chairman of the Company
on 15 January 2015. He is a member of committee of executive
Directors of the Company. Mr. Wong also acts as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is currently a general
manager of various subsidiaries of the Company which are
engaged in the manufacturing of machinery. He holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Engineering and a Master degree in Business
Administration. Mr. Wong has over 40 years of experience in
sales, marketing and corporate management. On 16 November
2007, he was appointed as the director of Suzhou Sanguang
Science and Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed on the
National Equities Exchange and Quotations and is an associated
company of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

EERSNEEAESEHE (F)

Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman, aged 41, joined the Group in 2006 and
was appointed as an executive Director and chief executive officer
of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) on 18 March
2011 and 1 July 2013 respectively. Mr. Tang is a member of each
of nomination committee and committee of executive Directors
of the Company. He also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Prior to joining the Group, he had worked
in various commercial banks. Mr. Tang graduated from The
University of Western Ontario in Canada and holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree in Economics and a Diploma in Financial Planning.
He is the son of Mr. Tang To. As at the date of this annual report,
Mr. Tang is a director of certain substantial shareholders of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Mei Zheqi, aged 41, joined the Group in 2000 and was
appointed as an executive Director on 28 August 2018. He
is a member of the committee of executive Directors of the
Company. Mr. Mei graduated from the School of Accounting of
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law with a Master degree
in Management. He is a non-practising member of The Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is currently a
general manager of two subsidiaries of the Company, which are
engaged in the leasing and factoring businesses respectively, and
a supervisor of a subsidiary of the Company, which is engaged in
the plastic products and processing business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kan Wai Wah, aged 61, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 22 May 1998. He holds a High Diploma in
Accountancy. He has over 30 years of experience in corporate
strategy and corporate management. Mr. Kan is the son of
Ms. Law Kit Fong, a substantial Shareholder. As at the date of
this annual report, Mr. Kan is a director of certain substantial
shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

Mr. Qu Jinping, aged 61, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 8 September 2006. He is currently the professor and
doctoral supervisor in the School of Mechanical and Automotive
Engineering of The South China University of Technology. Mr. Qu
holds a Bachelor degree and a Master degree in Engineering
from The South China University of Technology in 1982 and 1987
respectively, and a Doctorate degree in Engineering from The
Sichuan University in 1999. He has been engaged in scientific
research and teaching in polymer dynamic plasticizing processing
technology and equipment for over 30 years and achieved a
number of world-first scientific and technology achievements.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan, aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2004. She is the
chairman of audit committee of the Company and a member
of each of nomination committee and remuneration committee
of the Company. Ms. Yeung holds a Master degree in Business
Administration. She is a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), and an associate member of
each of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
(ICSA) and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
(HKICS). Ms. Yeung held senior financial positions in several
companies. She has over 20 years of experience in the finance
sector.

Mr. Cheng Tak Yin, aged 80, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 January 2007. He is the chairman
of the remuneration committee of the Company and a member
of each of audit committee and nomination committee of the
Company. Currently, he is the life honorary chairman, deputy
secretary general and standing committee member of Hong Kong
and Kowloon Machinery and Instrument Merchants Association
Limited. Mr. Cheng has over 40 years of experience in business
management.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

EERSNEEAESEHE (F)

Mr. Ho Wei Sem, aged 71, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 21 December 2010. He is a member
of each of nomination committee, remuneration committee and
audit committee of the Company. Mr. Ho had been working in
various government authorities in Dongguan for over 40 years.
He was the director general of Dongguan City Municipal and
Public Utilities Management Bureau and Dongguan City Urban
Integrated Management Bureau from 2000 to 2007. From 1996
to 2000, he was the officer of Dongguan City Management
Committee. From 1990 to 1996, he was the deputy director
general of The Urban and Rural Planning Bureau of Dongguan
Municipal, and was the deputy supervisor of the Preparation
Committee of Dongguan City Government from 1988 to 1990.
He has extensive experience in management.

Mr. Huang Zhi Wei, aged 80, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 2 November 2012. Mr. Huang
graduated from The Huazhong University of Science &
Technology, majoring in electrical engineering. He is currently
the executive vice president of Guangdong General Chamber
of Commerce. Mr. Huang worked in the PRC government
authorities for over 10 years. He served as the deputy director
general of Guangdong Commission of Foreign Trade & Economic
Cooperation and the director of General of Guangdong Board of
Investment from 1993 to 2000. From 1984 to 1992, he served as
the executive officer of Foshan Economic Committee. Mr. Huang
worked as the engineer at power plant in Foshan for almost 10
years. From 1981 to 1984, he served as the chief engineer and
deputy general manager of a household electrical appliances
corporation in Foshan. Mr. Huang was an independent director of
Keda Clean Energy Co. Ltd., a company listed on The Shanghai
Stock Exchange from 21 August 2009 to 19 August 2015.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Man Chi Fai, Bruno, aged 57, joined the Group in 2013.
He holds a Bachelor of Science (Engineering) in The University
of London and a Master Science in Engineering (Industrial
Management and Manufacturing) in The University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Man is a member of each of The Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers (HKIE) and The Institution of Electrical Engineers
in the United Kingdom (IEE). He had worked in various sizeable
corporations. Mr. Man is currently the general manager of
various subsidiaries of the Company which are engaged in the
manufacturing of plastic food packaging and cutlery. He also
holds directorship in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Man has over 20 years of experience in plastic injection molding,
metals manufacturing, molds design and manufacturing,
manufacturing assembly process management and project
management.

Mr. Man Wai Hong, Bernard, aged 56, joined the Group in
2000. He has over 30 years of experience in manufacturing,
marketing and management. Mr. Man holds a Master degree in
Business Administration, a Diploma in Computer Programming
and a Diploma in Management Studies. He graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Electrical Engineering.
Mr. Man is currently a general manager of various subsidiaries
of the Company which are engaged in the trading of industrial
consumables. He also holds directorship in certain subsidiaries of
the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

EERSNEEAESEHE (F)

Mr. Yeung Yuk Lun, aged 47, joined the Group in 2016. He
is the chief financial officer and the company secretary of the
Company. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yeung held senior
management positions in several listed companies in Hong Kong.
He has extensive experience in auditing, financial and treasury
management, information technology, executive management
as well as business development. He holds a Bachelor degree in
Business Administration (Professional Accountancy) and a Master
degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is an associate member of each of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong (TIHK). Mr. Yeung also holds
directorship in certain subsidiaries of the Company. He was an
executive director of Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited from
1 March 2013 to 12 April 2016.

Mr. Ye Yueran, aged 45, joined the Group in 2002. He has over
10 years of experience in manufacturing of machinery. Mr. Yip
is currently the general manager of various subsidiaries of the
Company which are engaged in the manufacturing of rubber
injection machines, extrusion lines and hydraulic presses. He also
holds directorship in certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Yip Kar Shun, aged 71, joined the Group in 1994. He
has over 30 years of experience in electronic production and
management. Mr. Yip is the managing director of various
subsidiaries of the Company which are engaged in the processing
and trading of PCB. He also holds directorship in certain
subsidiaries of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board has pleasure in submitting their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Further details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in
the audited consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 273
of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HKO0.02 per share for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: Nil). The final dividend is subject to the approval of
the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on 13 June 2019, the final dividend will
be payable on or before 31 July 2019 to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 21
June 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(a) 2019 Annual General Meeting
The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 6 June 2019 to Thursday, 13 June 2019, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at
the annual general meeting, all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Secretaries
Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 5
June 2019 for registration.
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(b) Proposed distribution of final dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 19 June 2019 to Friday, 21 June 2019,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. To qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 18 June 2019 for
registration.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 is set out in the sections “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on

pages 4 to 6 and pages 7 to 18 of this annual report respectively.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s businesses as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
businesses, are set out in the sections “Chairman’s Statement”
on pages 4 to 6 and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 7 to 18 of this annual report, and pages 25 to 39 of this
report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group complies with the applicable environmental laws, rules
and regulations on the prevention and control of wastage, waste
gases emissions and sewage discharges in Hong Kong and the
PRC during the production process. Various measures have been
implemented within the Group, such as measures on effective
energy conservation to reduce the use of energy and water,
measures on managing the reduction of waste and reduction
of greenhouse gas emissions. Detailed discussion on the
environmental policies and performance of the Group is set out in
the section “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year under review, there was no material breach of
or non-compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to
the Group. Apart from complying with Hong Kong laws such as
the Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules, SFO and Employment
Ordinance, we have also complied with laws of the PRC,
including the Company Law of the PRC ( (B R &%) ),
Labour Law of the PRC ( {(FR & & &)%) ), Labour Contract
Law of the PRC ( (R EIZE) & FJE) ), relevant laws, rules and
regulations in relation to child and forced labour including the
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour ( (ZEIHFRE
THEY ) and the laws of the PRC on the Protection of Minors
( (PBERKEARZEZE)Y ), as well as other environmental laws,
relevant rules, ordinances and regulations on the prevention and
control of wastage, waste gases and sewage emission. These
laws, ordinances and regulations include but not limited to the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC ( (P EIIRIFIRFEL) ),
the Environmental Protection Tax Law of the PRC ( (# EIIRIE(R
L) ), the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution
of the PRC ( (R B K& 54P58)%5) ), the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC ( {FRBIKISEBIAE) ),
the Waste Disposal Ordinance and Solid Wastes of Prevention and
Control Law of the PRC ( (A [ & §8 B )5 R IR IR AIE) ) etc.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 274 of
this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company issued and allotted 145,000,000 new Shares for
the year ended 31 December 2018, details of which are set out in
the heading “Connected Transactions” below.

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during
the year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” on page 94 of this annual
report and in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company's reserves available
for distribution, as calculated in accordance with the sections
291, 297 and 299 of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to
HK$508,663,000.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made around HK$30,000 of donation.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the respective
percentage of purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers and the sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers, on a combined basis, was less than 30% of the total
value of the Group’s purchases and sales.

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company) had an interest in
the major suppliers or customers noted above.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
“Directors and Senior Management’s Biographies” on pages 19
to 24 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Tang To (Chairman)

Wong Yiu Ming (Executive Vice Chairman)
Tang Yu, Freeman (Chief Executive Officer)
Mei Zheqi (appointed on 28 August 2018)

Non-executive Directors
Kan Wai Wah
Qu Jinping

Independent Non-executive Directors
Yeung Shuk Fan

Cheng Tak Yin

Ho Wei Sem

Huang Zhi Wei

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with article 102 of the Articles. Messrs. Mei Zheqi, Kan Wai
Wah, Qu Jinping and Huang Zhi Wei will retire from office by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of
this report, the persons who served as directors of the subsidiaries
of the Company include Mr. Cao Xiaowei, Mr. Chen Leiming, Ms.
Ching Shuk Kwan, Mr. Diao Junde, Mr. Du Jiang, Mr. Fang Xirong,
Mr. Ho Kwong Sang, Mr. Hu Ping, Mr. Hui Wai Kee, Mr. Jiang
Nan*, Mr. Jiang Shufeng, Mr. Law Moon Wah, Mr. Lu Hank, Mr.
Man Wai Hong, Bernard, Mr. Miao Hongliang, Mr. Tang To, Mr.
Tang Yu, Freeman, Mr. Tsutsumi Keiji, Mr. Xie Jie, Ms. Wan Ming,
Mr. Wang Xianyou*, Mr. Wong Yiu Ming, Mr. Yatsugi Atsushi,
Ms. Yan Dong, Mr. Ye Qingzhong, Mr. Ye Yueran, Mr. Yeung Yuk
Lun, Mr. Yip Kar Shun, Mr. Yip Kin Keung, Mr. Zhang Xiaochen,
Mr. Zhao Weirong and Mr. Zhu Wenguang.

The persons marked with an asterisk* are no longer to be the directors of
the subsidiaries of the Company as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As such,
the Company considers all independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the Articles, every Director or officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, DEBENTURES OR UNDERLYING SHARES
As at 31 December 2018, save for the interests of the Directors
in the Shares of the Company set out as below, none of the
Directors had any interests and short positions in the Shares,
debentures or underlying Shares or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
had to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he/she was taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred therein or which were required to be disclosed herein
pursuant to the Model Code.

Long position in shares or underlying shares:
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Tang To 4,970,000 2,000 445,617,458 © 224,000 7 450,813,458 52.30

Wong Yiu Ming 9,468,000 - - 9,468,000 1.10
H 126

Tang Yu, Freeman - - 442,157,052 % - 442,157,052 51.30

¥a

Kan Wai Wah 136,400 - - 136,400 0.02
e

Cheng Tak Yin 1,406,000 - - 1,406,000 0.16
BiEg
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Notes:
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2)

These 2,000 Shares were held by the spouse of Mr. Tang To.

3,460,406 Shares of those 445,617,458 Shares were held by Ginta
Company Limited which is wholly-owned by a company which in
turn is owned as to 50% by Mr. Tang To and 50% by his spouse.
Mr. Tang To was deemed to be interested in the 405,907,052 Shares
of those 445,617,458 Shares under the SFO through his deemed
interests in Codo Development Limited (“Codo”).

Codo through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Cosmos Holdings and
Tai Shing Agencies Limited (“Tai Shing”), was also deemed to be
interested in 405,907,052 Shares. Codo is incorporated in Hong
Kong and is owned as to (i) 25.06% by Keepsound Investments
Limited ("Keepsound”), a limited company incorporated in Hong
Kong controlled by Saniwell, a trustee of The Saniwell Trust, (ii)
8.37% by Elegant Power Enterprises Limited (“Elegant Power");
(iii) 30.25% by Friendchain Investments Limited (“Friendchain”),
a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong, controlled as to
40% by Elegant Power, as to 57.42% by Saniwell and as to 2.58%
by Fullwin Limited (“Fullwin”); (iv) 16.09% by Yik Wan Company
Limited ("Yik Wan"); and (v) 20.23% by five individuals and two
limited companies.

Moreover, 108,750,000 Shares and 36,250,000 Shares of these
445,617,458 Shares were allotted and issued to Cosmos Holdings
and Saniwell on 27 June 2018 respectively. Mr. Tang To was deemed
to be interested in the 108,750,000 Shares held by Cosmos Holdings
and the 36,250,000 Shares held by Saniwell under the SFO.

These 224,000 Shares were jointly held by Mr. Tang To and his
spouse.

Saniwell is owned as to approximately 42.86% by Mr. Tang Yu,
Freeman. Accordingly, Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman was deemed to be
interested in the 442,157,052 Shares held by Saniwell under
the SFO. 108,750,000 Shares and 36,250,000 Shares of these
442,157,052 Shares were allotted and issued to Cosmos Holdings
and Saniwell on 27 June 2018 respectively.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND

SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the Directors,
the following parties had an interest or long position or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred

therein:

Long position in shares or underlying shares:
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Saniwell Beneficial owner and interest of 36,250,000 7 405,907,052 7 442,157,052 51.30
controlled corporations
ERBAARRTEE R
Codo Interest of controlled corporations - 405,907,052 @ 405,907,052 47.09
aE REEEER
Cosmos Holdings Beneficial owner and interest of 235,802,600 “ 170,104,452 % 405,907,052 47.09
controlled corporations
KRR ERBAARREEE ER
Law Kit Fong Interest of controlled corporations - 405,907,052 @ 405,907,052 47.09
B2% REHEE 2 ER
Tai Shing Beneficial owner 170,104,452 - 170,104,452 19.73
EafEA
China Resources (Holdings) Beneficial owner 169,649,046 7 - 169,649,046 19.68
Company Limited
£8(5E)BRRA EaEEA
CRC Bluesky Limited Interest of controlled corporations - 169,649,046 @ 169,649,046 19.68
REEE R
China Resources Co., Limited Interest of controlled corporations - 169,649,046 “ 169,649,046 19.68
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Notes:
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These 36,250,000 Shares were allotted and issued to Saniwell on
27 June 2018.

Saniwell was deemed to be interested in 405,907,052 Shares under
the SFO through its deemed interests in Codo. Codo is owned as
to (i) 25.06% by Keepsound, a limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong, controlled by Saniwell, a trustee of The Saniwell Trust;
(ii) 8.37% by Elegant Power; (iii) 30.25% by Friendchain which is
owned as to 40% by Elegant Power, as to 57.42% by Saniwell and
as to 2.58% by Fullwin; (iv) 16.09% by Yik Wan; and (v) 20.23% by
five individuals and two limited companies.

Codo is interested in 405,907,052 Shares through its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Cosmos Holdings and Tai Shing. Codo is owned as
to (i) 25.06% by Keepsound, a limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong controlled by Saniwell, a trustee of The Saniwell Trust;
(ii) 8.37% by Elegant Power, which is wholly-owned by Ms. Law
Kit Fong; (iii) 30.25% by Friendchain, which is owned as to 40%
by Elegant Power, as to 57.42% by Saniwell and as to 2.58% by
Fullwin; (iv) 16.09% by Yik Wan; and (v) 20.23% by five individuals
and two limited companies.

Cosmos Holdings is beneficially interested in 235,802,600 Shares,
in which 108,750,000 Shares were allotted and issued to Cosmos
Holdings on 27 June 2018.

By virtue of the SFO, Cosmos Holdings was deemed to be interested
in 170,104,452 Shares through its subsidiary, Tai Shing.

Ms. Law Kit Fong is deemed to be interested in 405,907,052 Shares
through her direct and indirect interests in Elegant Power and Codo.
Codo through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Cosmos Holdings and
Tai Shing, was deemed to be interested in 405,907,052 Shares.
Codo is owned as to 30.25% by Friendchain (which is owned as
to 40% by Elegant Power) and 8.37% by Elegant Power (which is
wholly-owned by Ms. Law Kit Fong).

China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited is beneficially
interested in 169,649,046 Shares.
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(8) By virtue of the SFO, CRC Bluesky Limited is deemed to be interested
in 169,649,046 Shares held by China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of CRC Bluesky Limited.

(9) By virtue of the SFO, China Resources Co., Limited is deemed to
be interested in 169,649,046 Shares held by CRC Bluesky Limited,
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Resources Co., Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors
are not aware of any other persons who have interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would be required to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the headings “Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Debentures or Underlying Shares” and
“Related Party Transactions” of this report, at no time during
the year or at the end of the year has been/was the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

Saved as the related party transactions as disclosed in note 44
to the consolidated financial statements and in the heading
“Related Party Transactions” below, no Director and his/her
entity connected had a material interest, directly or indirectly,
in a transaction, arrangement or contract or a proposed
transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in relation
to the Group's businesses to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEESHRES (B

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded
as "“Related Parties” under applicable accounting standard.
These transactions mainly relate to contracts entered into by the
Group in the ordinary and usual course of business which were
negotiated on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length
basis. Further details are set out in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group has entered into a connected
transaction during the year, details are illustrated below:

Connected Transaction in relation to Subscription of New
Shares by Connected Persons

On 30 April 2018, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Cosmos Holdings and Saniwell. Cosmos Holdings
and Saniwell subscribed for 108,750,000 Shares and 36,250,000
Shares at the subscription Price of HK$0.55 per subscription
share respectively. The total gross proceeds from the subscription
were HK$79,750,000 (based on the subscription price of
HK$0.55 per Share). The net proceeds of the subscription (after
deducting related professional fees and related expenses) were
approximately HK$76,124,000 and the net subscription price per
subscription share was approximately HK$0.52. The details of use
of net proceeds from subscription of new shares are set out in the
heading “Use of Net Proceeds from Subscription of New Shares”
in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.

Cosmos Holdings is a controlling Shareholder. Prior to the
Subscription, it directly held 127,052,600 Shares and indirectly
held 170,104,452 Shares. Therefore, Cosmos Holdings was a
connected person of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules;
while Saniwell did not hold any Shares prior to the Subscription.
Saniwell was owned as to approximately 57.14% by Mr. Tang
To and approximately 42.86% by Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman, both
executive Directors. Saniwell, through its intermediate holding
companies, indirectly controlled Cosmos Holdings. As such,
Saniwell was a connected person of the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules.
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Accordingly, the subscription agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute non-exempt connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and are subject to the announcement, reporting and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements.

An extraordinary general meeting and an adjourned extraordinary
general meeting were convened for the independent
Shareholders to consider and approve the subscription
agreement, the transactions contemplated thereunder (including
the specific mandate) and the whitewash waiver on 7 June 2018
and 20 June 2018 respectively.

The subscription was completed on 27 June 2018 and an
aggregate of 145,000,000 new Shares were allotted and issued
on 27 June 2018.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
30 April 2018, 19 May 2018, 1 June 2018, 7 June 2018, 20 June
2018 and 27 June 2018, the Company’s circular dated 19 May
2018 and the Company's supplemental circular dated 2 June
2018.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
There are no major subsequent events occurring from the
reporting period to the date of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of any business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEESHRES (B

Equity-linked Agreements

Saved as the connected transaction in relation to subscription
of new shares by connected persons disclosed in the heading
“Related Party Transactions” above, no equity-linked agreement
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
requires the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares was entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors is considered to have
interests in the businesses which are considered to compete or
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with businesses of
the Group pursuant to rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group's corporate governance practices and procedures are
set out in the section “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
40 to 55 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Saved as the connected transaction in relation to subscription
of new shares by connected persons disclosed in the heading
“Related Party Transactions” above, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of the
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.
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REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

This annual report has been reviewed by the audit committee of
the Company. Information on the main works of audit committee
of the Company and its composition are set out in the section
"Corporate Governance Report” on pages 40 to 55 of this annual
report.

AUDITOR

The Group's financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 have been audited by the auditor, Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan
& Chan, who retire and offer themselves for re-appointment
as auditor of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board
TANG To
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERERRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board is committed to practicing and maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance for the enhancement of
Shareholders’ value and safeguarding interests of Shareholders
and other stakeholders, and reviews corporate governance
practices and procedures of the Group on a regular basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has made detailed disclosures in relation to the
accounting period covered in this report in compliance with the
requirements of the Corporate Governance Report as set out in
the CG Code. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company has complied with all the principles and code provisions
of the CG Code, except for the following deviation from code
provision A.6.7 of the CG Code:

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that independent
non-executive directors and non-executive directors should
attend general meetings to gain and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. During the year
under review, Mr. Qu Jinping, non-executive Director and Mr. Ho
Wei Sem and Mr. Huang Zhi Wei, both independent non-
executive Directors were unable to attend the annual general
meeting and extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 7 June 2018, and adjourned extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 20 June 2018 due to other
business engagements. The Company considered that the
presence of the chairman of each of nomination committee,
remuneration committee and audit committee, and other non-
executive Director and independence non-executive Directors at
the said meetings were sufficient for addressing the queries from
Shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Board has adopted a CMEL Code on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code as the Company’s
code of conduct and rules governing dealing by all Directors and
relevant employees in the securities of the Company.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code and CMEL Code for the year ended 31
December 2018.

THE BOARD

Composition

The Board currently consists of ten members, including four
executive Directors (namely Messrs. Tang To, Wong Yiu Ming,
Tang Yu, Freeman and Mei Zheqi), two non-executive Directors
Qu Jinping and Kan Wai Wah) and four
independent non-executive Directors (namely Messrs. Yeung
Shuk Fan, Cheng Tak Yin, Ho Wei Sem and Huang Zhi Wei). The

Directors’ biographical details and the relationships among the

(namely Messrs.

Board members, if any, are set out on pages 19 to 24 under the
section "“Directors and Senior Management'’s Biographies” of this

annual report.

Save as disclosed in such biographies, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among the
Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EEERRE (&)

Attendance Record of Directors at Meeting held during the

Year

The details of Directors’ attendance at the meetings (including

the board meetings, audit committee meetings,

remuneration

committee meetings, nomination committee meetings, annual

general meeting and extraordinary general meetings) held during

the year are set out in the following table:

Number of meetings attended and held

ESRAFELHEGR LK

TRINRESTRAFERITH

& i NN
1:;53;?-\ ==

Ean?‘z
RELZEE®gH
RE)ZHFEBR

g% (REES
%?@Hé,\ = El H?Jz

P R A F AR E MR R

HERBITEHERHY
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee Annual Extraordinary
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings General Meeting ~ General Meetings
ged ENZEeed HWzEEEE REZEEEHE RRAEAS BRREAAE
Tang To 4/4 N/A 212 212 " 22
B ki
Wong Yiu Ming 4/4 N/A N/A N/A " 22
By TER TER TR
Tang Yu, Freeman 4/4 N/A N/A 2/2 il 212
HE TER TER
Mei Zheqi* n N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
kit o, T ki TR TER TER
Kan Wai Wah 4/4 N/A N/A N/A " 22
LlaEs T ki TR
Qu Jinping 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 0/ 0/2
EaT TER TER TR
Yeung Shuk Fan 4/4 33 212 212 " 22
BRA
Cheng Tak Yin 4/4 33 212 212 " 22
BiEE
Ho Wei Sem 4/4 33 22 22 01 012
Gl
Huang Zhi Wei 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 0/ 0/2
e T TER TR
* Mr. Mei Zheqi was appointed as executive Director on 28 August 2018.  * EBEERZT—\FNAZTN\BEZEAE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director (if any) receives a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction package to ensure that he/
she is sufficiently aware of his/her duties, responsibilities and
obligations as a Director under the Companies Ordinance, Listing
Rules and other regulatory requirement and ensure he/she has a
proper understanding of the company’s operations and business.

The Company provide with all Directors relevant reading materials
from time to time on the latest changes and development in
the industry, legal, regulatory in which the Group operates its
business to ensure the contribution of all Directors to the Board
remains relevant. In addition, all Directors are encouraged to
attend external seminar or training on relevant topics for their
continuous professional development. Certain Directors have
attended external trainings and seminars during the year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate
and performed by different individuals to reinforce their
independence and accountability. During the year, Mr. Tang To
was the Chairman and Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman served as the Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. Tang To was responsible for providing
leadership to and overseeing the functioning of the Board to
ensure that it acts in the best interest of the Group; while Mr.
Tang Yu, Freeman, who is the chief operating decision maker, was
responsible for managing the business of the Group, attending
to the formulation and implementation of the Group policies and
strategic operating plans, and assuming full accountability to the
Board for the Group’s operations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EREBHE (B

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) has entered into a letter of appointment
setting out the key terms and conditions of his/her appointment
as Director with the Company for a term of three years. They are
all subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least every
three years at annual general meeting in accordance with the
Articles.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Although two of the independent non executive Directors,
Messrs. Yeung Shuk Fan and Cheng Tak Yin have been serving
the Board for more than nine years, they have not engaged in
any executive management of the Group. Their familiarity and
extensive experience with the Group’s businesses place them in a
better position to contribute independent views to the Company.
Taking into consideration of their independent scope of works
when performing duties as independent non-executive directors
over the past years, there is no evidence that length of tenure is
having an adverse impact on their independence. Therefore, the
Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent throughout the year under review.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various board committees, namely
committee of executive Directors, nomination committee,
remuneration committee and audit committee to manage
particular aspects of the Company's affairs and aid in sharing the
responsibilities of the Board. Except the committee of executive
Directors, all committees have their specific written terms of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the CG Code.
All resolutions passed by the committees will be reported to the

Board at the next Board meeting.

No corporate governance committee has been established but
respective board committees (as disclosed below) are responsible
for performing corporate governance functions set out in the
terms of reference in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

Committee of Executive Directors

A committee of executive Directors of the Company was
established on 15 August 1997 which comprises all executive
Directors. They meet frequently and are responsible for the
management of day-to-day business operation of the Group.

Nomination Committee

A nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) has been established on 29 March 2012 and
consists of five members with a majority of independent non-
executive Directors. They are:

Mr. Tang To (Chairman)

Tang Yu, Freeman

Cheng Tak Yin (independent non-executive Director)
Ho Wei Sem (independent non-executive Director)
Yeung Shuk Fan (independent non-executive Director)

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is posted
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee performed the duties
and responsibilities under the terms of reference and other duties
as required under the CG Code.

During the year under review, two Nomination Committee
meetings were held and the main works performed by the
Nomination Committee during the year included (i) review of
current structure, size and diversity of the Board; (ii) review of the
independence of independent non-executive Directors; (iii) review
of the Board diversity policy and nomination policy; (iv) review of
revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee which
reflect the changes in the CG Code and Listing Rules in relation
to Board diversity policy and nomination policy; and (v) proposed
the nomination of Mr. Mei Zheqi as executive Director.

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy in compliance
with the rule 13.52 of the Listing Rules. The Company maintains
that Board appointment will take into account gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service, and any other
factors that the Board might consider relevant and applicable
from time to time towards achieving a diverse Board. The
Board will review and monitor from time to time to ensure its
effectiveness that diversity of the Board is maintained.

A nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”)
has been adopted on 28 November 2018 in compliance with the
revised Listing Rules effective on 1 January 2019. The Nomination
Policy sets out procedures, process and criteria for identifying and
recommencing candidates for election to the Board.

The attendance record of the Nomination Committee members
is set out in the heading "Attendance Record of Directors at
Meetings held during the Year” on page 42 of this report.
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Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) has been established on 27 June 2005 and consists
of four members with a majority of independent non-executive
Directors. They are:

Mr. Cheng Tak Yin (Chairman)

Mr. Tang To

Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan (independent non-executive Director)
Mr. Ho Wei Sum (independent non-executive Director)

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee performed the
duties and responsibilities under the terms of reference and other
duties as required under the CG Code.

During the year under review, two Remuneration Committee
meetings were held and the main works performed by the
Remuneration Committee during the year included: (i) review of
the remuneration package of executive Directors and directors’
fees of non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors); (ii) review of revised terms of reference of
Remuneration Committee; and (iii) consideration and approval of
the remuneration package of Mr. Mei Zheqi as executive Director
and the terms of letter of appointment.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to individual
performance, the Group’s performance and profitability,
remuneration benchmark in the industry and prevailing market
condition. The Directors do not participate in the determination
of their own remuneration.
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Details of Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members
is set out in the heading "Attendance Record of Directors at
Meetings held during the Year” on page 42 of this report.

Audit Committee
An Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
has been established on 30 October 1998 and consists of
three members, and all of them are independent non-executive
Directors. They are:

Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin (independent non-executive Director)
Mr. Ho Wei Sem (independent non-executive Director)

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

During the year, the Audit Committee performed the duties and
responsibilities under the terms of reference and other duties as
required under the CG Code.

During the year under review, two Audit Committee meetings
were held and the main works performed by the Audit
Committee during the year included (i) review of the final results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017; (ii) review of
the interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2018; (iii) review of the Company’s risk management and internal
control system as well as internal audit function; (iv) discussion of
matters in relation to the compliance of legal and regulatory, and
accounting policies and practice adopted by the Group; (v) review
of the annual audit plan prepared by the auditor; (vi) review of
revised terms of reference of Audit Committee; and (vii) review of
auditor’s independence and performance.
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The Board and Audit Committee were satisfied with the
auditor’'s work, its independence and objectivity, and therefore
recommended the re-appointment of Ting Ho Kwan & Chan
(which has indicated its willingness to continue in office) as the
Group’s auditor for the financial year of 2019 for Shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The attendance record of the Audit Committee members is set
out in the heading “Attendance Record of Directors at Meetings
held during the Year” on page 42 of this report.

A whistleblowing policy of the Company has been adopted
on 28 March 2019 for employees and those who deal with
the Company (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise concerns,
in confidence, with the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the fee paid/payable
to the auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided
by the auditor to the Group were as follows:

EEERKRE ()

EXENELZBOYRBMNTIE - B
MHREBERTRE Bt @B N ERE R
TZERRBAFAREG LAMBREZERET WEH
REAMITIERERER _Z-NEFHWBRFE
B AZ BB N w SR - T T (AR BR & AT AP 1T
ERAREEZER-

BERERZBEEREZHEGRLEEIE
RABREFNREAZ EERNAFELFEE
A REA

ARAER-_T-—NAF=ZA-+/\BERHKE
WK FREEREMBERRBEERE (W0
BEFRHER) IRPRAERREZESREEY
EAAEERARRNTEEENME-

AT B =
REBEE-_T—-N\F+-_A=+—BLEFE"
BEBGE T/ RETREM A EEREZE
RIFZERB 20T

Fee paid/payable

BN ENER
HK$
BT

Services rendered FT e 4 AR 7%
Audit services % ER 75 2,480,000
Non-audit services FEIZ EUR 75 51,000
2,531,000

Annual Report 2018
—E-\EER



50

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EREBHE (B

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group's risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis and reviewed their effectiveness by the Audit
Committee at least annually. The Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, are systems of process performed by the
Board and management to provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in
achieving the established corporate objectives, safeguarding
assets of the Group, providing reliable financial reporting, and
complying with applicable laws and regulations. However, these
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk of
failure in operational system, and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Internal Audit

The Company has an internal audit team, which plays an
important role in monitoring the corporate governance of the
Group and providing objective assurance to the Board that
a sound risk management and internal control systems are
maintained and operated by the management. The internal audit
team is carried out the analysis and independent appraisal of
the adequacy and effectiveness of such systems in respect of all
material controls on financial, operational and compliance aspects
and alerted the management on the audit review findings or
irregularities and advise them on the implementation of necessary
steps and actions to enhance the internal controls of the Group.

Process to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks
Two meetings were held during the year, at approximately half
year intervals. The heads of the business units/departments
of the Company and/or its subsidiaries assessed the risk level
based on potential impact and likelihood of risks in different
aspects including business risk, financial risk, compliance risk and
operational and other risk that may be exposed to. The executive
Directors together with the management of the business units/
departments of the Company and/or its subsidiaries participated
in the meetings. The meetings aimed to identify the material risks
and to discuss the measures to manage risks.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control, and
Corporate Governance Compliance

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has concluded a review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 December 2018, covering
all material financial, operational, compliance controls and risk
management functions, and therefore considered that such
systems were effective and adequate. In addition, it also reviewed
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience of
staff and the training programs and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

Procedures for handling and dissemination of inside
information

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside
information in compliance with the Listing Rules, SFO and other
regulatory requirements, the Company has adopted a policy
on disclosure of inside information to regulate procedures and
internal controls in handling of inside information. The Directors
and senior management of the Company oblige to take all
reasonable measures stipulated in the said policy to ensure that
proper safeguards exist to prevent the Company from breaching
the statutory disclosure requirement.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION AND
REPORTING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting and
financial reporting standards to enable the presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Directors will
subject to statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards, select suitable accounting policies and apply them
consistently, make prudent, fair and reasonable judgements
and estimates and prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Mak Po Man, Cherie resigned as company secretary of the
Company on 21 March 2018 and Ms. Man Wing Yan (“Ms.
Man") was appointed as a company secretary of the Company
on 1 September 2018. Following to Ms. Man’s appointment, Mr.
Yeung Yuk Lun, the chief financial officer of the Company and
Ms. Man are the joint company secretaries of the Company. They
are full time employees of the Group and reports to the chairman
of the Board and/or Chief Executive Officer. During the year, the
joint company secretaries of the Company have duly complied
with the relevant professional training requirement under rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company has opportunities to directly communicate with
Shareholders at various annual general meetings and other
general meetings where Shareholders are encouraged to actively
attend. In addition, the chairman of the Board and the chairman
of each of Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee were present to answer any Shareholder’s
questions at the annual general meeting. The auditor had also
attended the annual general meeting to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor’s
independence.

Furthermore, the Company provides information in its annual
and interim reports, and announcements. All shareholders’
communications are also available on the Company’s website at
http://www.cosmel.com.
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Convene a general meeting

Pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights
of all Shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings
can request the directors to call a general meeting. The request
must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with
at the general meeting and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the
meeting. Such request must be authenticated by the person(s)
making it and sent to the Company at its registered office in
hard copy form or in electronic form to ir@cosmos.com for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

Shareholders’ Power to Request Circulation of Statement
Pursuant to section 580 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all Shareholders or at least 50 Shareholders who have
a relevant right to vote at a general meeting, may request the
Company to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to receive
notice of a general meeting, a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution or other business to be dealt with at that meeting.
The request (i) must identify the statement to be circulated; (ii)
must be authenticated by the person(s) making it; and (iii) may
be sent to the Company at its registered office in hard copy form
or in electronic form to ir@cosmos.com for the attention of the
Company Secretary at least 7 days before the meeting to which it
relates.
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Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at an
AGM

Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all Shareholders of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at
annual general meeting or at least 50 shareholders who have
a right to vote on the resolution at an annual general meeting
to which the request relate, may request the Company to give
to the Shareholders notice of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting. The request
(i) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given; (ii)
must be authenticated by the person(s) making it; and (iii) may
be sent to the registered office of the Company in hard copy
form or in electronic form to ir@cosmel.com for the attention of
the Company Secretary no later than 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting; or if later, the time at which notice of the
meeting is given.

Procedure for Shareholders and other stakeholders to send
enquiries and concerns to the Board

Shareholders and other stakeholders are invited to access the
Company's website at http://www.cosmel.com/ for up-to-date
information of the Company. They are advised to send enquires
and concerns to the Board:

(i) by post at the registered office of the Company situated at
10/F., Billion Plaza 2, No. 10 Cheung Yue Street, Cheung
Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary; or

(i) by email to ir@cosmos.com for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

The Board has adopted a revised shareholders’ communication
policy of the Company on 28 March 2019 which is posted on
the Company’s website. Shareholders and other stakeholders can
read the said policy at the Company’s website for details.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

A dividend policy of the Company (the “"Dividend Policy”) has
been adopted on 28 November 2018 in compliance with the
revised Listing Rules effective from 1 January 2019. The Dividend
Policy sets out the factors in determination of dividend payment
of the Company, the frequency and form of dividend payments,
and shall be reviewed periodically and submitted to the Board for
approval if amendments are required.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

EEERKRE ()

B BB R

ARARERZFE-NF+—AZ+NHEH
BEBRE ([REBE]) UHaE=-F—A
F-A-HEBEBZEEFT R EMARA-
BREBRREPEEARBIRMNBENEE
BREXNHRBEEN - UEEEH B K

RRXEEFSEHNIBLESETHFR2EN-

AEBERX M
ARRNEMERXHRFEALBEAELE

Annual Report 2018
—E-\EER

55



56

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE -#H#E8RERBHRSE

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This report includes sustainability-related information and data
covering the Group’s headquarters in Hong Kong, Dong Hua
Machinery Ltd. in Dongguan (“Dong Hua"”), and Gainbase
Printed Circuit Board Co. Ltd.
gathered during the financial year of 2018. Subject to data

in Shenzhen (“Gainbase”)

availability and the development of our subsidiaries, the Group
reviews the scope of reporting annually to ensure that we address
the environmental and social issues that are most significant to
our stakeholders. This report was written in accordance with
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Guide") as set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group understands that stakeholder engagement is crucial
to driving sustainability within our organization. We have put a
great deal of effort in communicating with our stakeholders, both
internal and external, to ensure that our business is responsive
and inclusive and that we continue to build a trust-based
relationship with them.

Our stakeholders are defined as any individuals or entities
who have a significant interest in the principal activities of the
Group. These stakeholders are recognised as shareholders,
employees, customers, suppliers, media, the wider community
and general public, the government and regulators. The following
"Stakeholder Influence — Dependency Matrix” illustrates
respective stakeholders’ importance to and influence on the

Group, organised by category:
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Stakeholder Influence - Dependency Matrix

No direct
impacts
BEEERE

Community &
General Public
HEEAR

R HERERKRE (B

FOEVE -RERERER

Shareholders & &
Employees & 8
Customers &
Suppliers &7

Government &
Regulators

BT & BB

Banks & Financial
Institutions

RITREEEE

o O o o o o o o o o o e N e

No influence

BYED

Low influence

BEZEN

Annual Report 2018
“E-N\FFR

57



58

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE -HERERRE (B)

The six main stakeholder categories of the Group are:
shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers, government
and regulators, and banks and financial institutions. Our
communication channels with these stakeholders are categorised
as follows:

AEBANEXIERNEANARER RBE ¥V
F-#tER BREMEERE UARRTES
MR- RMESHOENEARENT:

Stakeholders
HHhE

Communication Channels
BIERE

Shareholders
&R B BE R
The Company’s website

EN/NETE S

BREAFAGRBRRRE
Annual and interim reports

FHREPHHE

Investor relations enquiries

REEBAEEN

Emails, telephone calls, postal correspondence

Annual general meetings and general meetings

Circulars, announcements, notices and publications

Employees Employee satisfaction surveys
®E EEMEEHRE

Annual appraisals

F B

Team building activities
EXA1EES

NAIA BB E KB

The Company's annual dinner
REEAFHRE

Company internal notices and communications

Customers Face-to-face meetings and visits
®F 2H MRS

BRMKERNRRERR

Day-to-day communications via frontline staff

Suppliers
H R

Face-to-face meetings and visits
SHEERS

On-going direct engagements
HEEES2H

Government and regulators

BT R B 8

Face-to-face meetings and visits
& H &R

BREERETHERMEMEREH

Reports and submissions made according to regulatory requirements

Banks and financial institutions

RITR RS

Face-to-face meetings and visits
gEERS

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Materiality Assessment

Over the past several years, the Group has conducted a series of
engagement programmes with our major stakeholders through
the Hong Kong Productivity Council (HKPC). These programmes
gather input from selected stakeholder groups to identify
sustainability topics that are significant to both our business and
our stakeholders. We shall explore the possibility in extending
our engagement activities to all stakeholder groups identified to
be of high influence and dependence on the Group in future to
gather their views and concerns on the environmental and social
development of the Group. In this report, our performance is
highlighted against a list of material issues by providing reference
indices to the corresponding general disclosure aspects and key
performance indicators (KPIs) stipulated in the ESG Guide.

Table 1. Material issues disclosed in this report cross-

referenced with ESG Guide aspects

R -HERERKRE (B)

EEMFME

BERF AEERATRBLEENRER
(TEENRDET—RINFHES RS
NREETEFNENER BHEAKEX
BRETZHNEEEABENAKEER
ma-RMLHMRERSNESEGEEM
EUAREEASERBNSEZENNRND
F TR ESROMAHASEERRMEET
FHBR - ABREEHBET NEEEHREA
EEZEMEN LI CESGHEE!) FHEEN
— R E R BAREBUER(KPISWERE RS-

R1: XBEWENEEEEREEN (ESG
ESl) 2ZE@E

Corresponding Aspects
Subject Area Aspects Disclosed in ESG Guide
TEHRE FARERBENEERE HHER (ESGIES|) BE
Environmental 3 Air Emissions Al
B ZE REER
. Resource Management A2
BRER
. Initiatives to Mitigate Environmental Impacts A3
FRRETE
Social o Staff Remuneration and Benefits B1
e BIHMKER
3 Occupational Health and Safety B2
BERRHEL S
3 Staff Development and Training B3
B T#EREY
3 Compliance with Labour Standards and Regulations B4
BP 8 TIRERRD
. Supply Chain Management B5
HEsEE R
o Product Responsibility B6
EmAE
o Anti-Corruption B7
RER
o Community Care B8
EErE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

General Disclosure

The Group fully understands our environmental responsibilities
and continues to explore methods to minimise our carbon
footprint through the efficient use of natural resources,
enhancing the energy efficiency of our products, implementing
waste recovery and recycling measures and installing emissions
control devices. In 2018, there were no incidents of non-

compliance with local environmental laws and regulations.

Going beyond local environmental legal compliance, we
frequently refer to relevant international, national and
industry standards and have designed guidelines that are both
applicable to and appropriate for our businesses. For example,
Gainbase’s environmental management system has had ISO
14001 certification since 2003. In 2016, Gainbase established
a comprehensive energy management system with reference to
GB/T 23331 and ISO 50001.

also been introduced to enhance efficiency and reduce energy

Internal policies and targets have
consumption.

Moreover, in order to identify and address environmental
risks more effectively, production plant of Dong Hua has been
producing a risk analysis report on potential environmental
emergencies that may occur during the production process
since 2017. Corresponding emergency protocols and action
plans have also been developed to mitigate any negative
environmental impacts related to such emergencies. Meanwhile,
prior to commencing major construction or expansion projects,
comprehensive environmental impact assessments are carried out
in advance to ensure minimal all impacts to the environment.

Air Emissions Control

In terms of emissions control measures, Dong Hua has installed
active carbon filters, central exhaust systems, water spray devices
and UV light purifiers in the production machines to filter out
airborne pollutants and ensure that it meet local emissions
standards before they are discharged to the atmosphere.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Waste management

The Group understands that industrial waste generated by our
production plants often contain a host of useful materials; hence
we employ every possible approach to not only minimise our
waste generation but to ensure that these useful materials are
reused or recycled. First, the Group actively records the type
and amount of waste produced and then analyses this data by
category to get a complete picture of our waste generated. This
process allows us to design and implement waste programmes
for reduction at source and recycling. Then, qualified contractors
are engaged to handle hazardous waste and wastewater, while
plastics, paper, waste
oil and oil-based paint containers are separated at source for

recyclable content such as scrap metal,

recycling by waste management contractors.

To ensure compliance with new legal requirements of the
Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC, Dong
Hua began storing wastewater and periodically collected by
qualified wastewater contractors in April 2018. Meanwhile,
Gainbase strictly follows the GB21900-2008 standard, which
restricts wastewater from having any harmful content before it is
discharged.

Apart from managing waste generated during the production
process, the Group has also designed programmes which
encourage our staff to reduce waste as part of our “green

lifestyle” initiatives. Posters and reminders in staff canteens
remind staff to order suitable portions of food and minimise food

waste.

R -HERERKRE (B)

BEMERE
AEBRABHNEERENIXBEAETES
TOBERWME - BB EBERMEIUL - 8
DEMESL BN RATECHEVHEL
BB MAREE FHEERMNED
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Energy consumption and efficiency measures

The Group's energy-efficient machines have capabilities
with enhanced levels of productivity and cost efficiencies.
More importantly, they greatly reduce our customers’ energy
consumption. These machine models include the 393SEc servo
energy-saving thin-wall high special injection moulding machine,
the 450JSell small-and medium-size servo-driven two-platen
injection moulding machine, and the Ge electric-plus. During
the year, the Group extensively promoted our digital platform
and system called “iSee 4.0", which has been widely welcomed
by our customers. “iSee 4.0” provides real-time monitoring of
machines, giving users a simple overview of the efficiency of their
machines, production data, stock numbers and related data and
information, allowing them to maximise production efficiency.

Water consumption and reuse

To reduce the consumption of water, Gainbase has invested over
HKD10 million in a wastewater treatment and reuse system,
which allows around 47% of wastewater generated to be reused
in the production line. Developed in partnership with the HKPC,
Gainbase’s wastewater treatment facility features European
environmental technology which uses the decomposition of
organic substances to lower the chemical oxygen content of
discharged wastewater to around 50-60 mg/L (the regulatory
limit is 90 mg/L). Compared to 2017, Gainbase reduced its overall
water consumption by around 8%. A water recycling system
was also installed in Dong Hua plant to lower its overall water
consumption; this resulted in an approximately 2% reduction
when compared to that in 2017.

Green Office

Office operations are another focus of the Group's efforts to
implement green concepts and raise environmental awareness. At
our Hong Kong headquarters, we began introducing green office
guidelines in 2017 to increase the environmental awareness of
our staff.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -HEREBHE (H)

To keep the environmentally-friendly momentum going and help BRMEEFRAZTHBEERRELS FHET

our offices “go green”
the following green measures:

, our staff were encouraged to implement  EREX T FIZR{RE 7

Lighting During lunch time and after office hours on business days, lighting is only maintained in areas

B that are essential to safety and security or needed for other specific purposes.
EIFRNFREREMENRARRE REERZE R MEMSR AR K ARABEEHEES
1 o
If only a few staff are working in the office, all non-essential lighting should be switched off.
ERAELHEETIERAEIE ARIEFENENERE -
Staff are requested to turn off all lighting, air conditioning and electrical appliances before
leaving the office.
ETITHMTHIEMAESE SRAKES-

Water Staff are reminded to shut off water taps in the pantry after use.

K RMEE TR A& EXRKERKERE-

Office Equipment

“Save Energy” stickers are affixed near all main switches as a reminder to our staff.

FNE S ] EMEXTEEEZMN FHORKR]IBBRET -
To reduce power consumption, staff are requested to switch off computers, monitors and
individual printers after office hours or when leaving the workplace.
RIEP AR kB TR E TR B R S BURS MBI ITEE  ASHHOAE -
Staff are encouraged to purchase environmentally-friendly stationery and office equipment as a
priority and encouraged to stop purchasing or using stationery and office equipment which may
have a negative impact to the environment.
SEETEERBRERXARPAERE U IAERBNEAAEESERINXARPRAER
1o
Staff are encouraged to reuse office stationary like envelopes and folders whenever possible.
SBHETRRBANAEA (NEHEXHR) -
Computers are put into auto energy-saving mode to reduce power consumption.
REMBRTAEBEEER SHAE-
Others Staff are encouraged to adjust the margins and font size of their documents, use double-sided
i copying, and reduce colour printing and copying to optimise the use of paper.

SEEETARXHFERNFR AN RBEEMITHN R EITENMZE  UECRA¥E-
Environmentally-friendly (wood-free) paper is used to print the Group’s annual report.

RARRED (EAMSR) DA EEF5H -

Annual Report 2018
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RR HERERHE (E

During the year, we joined "“Green Office Green Month”
campaign organised by Friends of the Earth (Hong Kong),
introduced various office-related green practices to reduce
unnecessary electricity consumption, and set up the “Cosmos
e-Library” to encourage our staff to develop a habit of reading
documents on screens instead of on paper as far as practicable.

Furthermore, we arranged staff to participate in a number
of green activities to further encourage them to adopt an
environmentally-responsible lifestyle. These included the Red
Pocket Recycling programme by Greeners Action, World Wildlife
Fund's (WWF) Earth Hour campaign, The Chinese YMCA of Hong
Kong's “No Plastic Bottle Day”, and “No Air Con Day” by Green
Sense etc. These activities gave our staff experience with different
approaches to the green lifestyle and encouraged them to share
what they have learned with their friends and family members.

RAFE B2 EAFTBBIRZ KRBHRH
[FMBEE|ES Y ERQAZHETZRRR
i MO T BHNREE  FRRY [ KFS
tEEE] ZBEIENEEREEHNEX
HHEE FEERBRITH-

BE ZMATHZESEEE FEETIER
EERBENER SN -BHEAHBERET
BN INEHEREABATH] HREAE
TEM MR/ FEPEEEREF
EMEBER MRRBEN[ELR®E]
Z-RAEMREBTEIER RED TR
RREET BENERED Z HFINH
A

Konica Minolta Green Concert “Extreme Power Generating Challenge” joined by Hong Kong Headquarter

BERM2E [MERXEEREETES
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Green Manufacturing

The Group continuously strives to develop and implement new
technologies and upgrade production hardware to enhance
the environmental performance of production plants. We have
implemented various environmental measures in these plants to
minimise our environmental impacts related to energy, water,
waste management and air emissions. For instance, Dong Hua
has installed harmonic filter, inverter air compressors and LED
lamps, creating significant reductions in energy consumption in
the production process since 2017.

Environmental Data Summary

The Group strives to collect environmental data as far as practical,
the resource consumption, emissions and waste collection data
are displayed as below. We shall continuously explore better
reporting methods to demonstrate our environmental footprint,
intensity calculations and results achieved from our environmental
initiatives.

Resource Consumption Data Summary in 2018

R -HERERKRE (B)

RREE

B APT AT B 3 A0 R AR BT Rt AR R AR
B BRREAETEERENRRER
AEEETIHCEEZHRRER REF
ERBEIR K - BEYE B AR D 2= Rk AR
MIRRTE I RECLEEAEHRNER
EREEY WA MERELEDE B —
Z—tFLSEERENEREAENRET

B o

BREHBRE

AEEFEMERERREEE TREAREH
BRFERE SRIEBREEDRENIIR K
P ERTER L ExERBHMN
RRBY  ZEERIRRE R

TE-N\FEFRAERBREBRE

Description k]| Units B {u Amount H &
Diesel for stationary combustion [&] 7 WA 2 FB 4 ek Litres 2 F 45,580
Diesel for vehicles B A L%H Litres & F 80,725
Petrol for vehicles BHAAH Litres A FF 15,739
Electricity ES kwh F FL B 47,852,867
Water Vi m3 3 75 K 481,592
Packaging (plastics) BEY (BR) Tonnes ‘A 9
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Emissions Data Summary in 2018

TE-N\ESRERBERE

Item Type of emissions Units Amount
EHHE 2356 Fic) By e
Air emissions SOx f b kg AT 2
ZERE Y NOX' &AL W) kg AT 6

PM L) g5 55
Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions? Scope 1 (Direct emissions) Tonnes COze 380
R E R E— (BB AW _EME S

Scopes 2 (Energy indirect emissions) Tonnes COze 24,405

HE = (REREROBEEER)
Scopes 33 (Other indirect emissions)

& E = (AR

PSR EE
Tonnes COze 35
A SR EE

Wastewater discharge Wastewater? ;5 7Kk4 m3 37 J3 K 356,733

FEIKBERR

Waste Collection Data Summary in 20185 TE-N\FRYBREYERES

Description Units Amount

Rl B #E

Hazardous Waste Waste oil [&%)H Tonne AW 16

BERED Oil containers® ji & £8° Tonne AW 7

Oil paint containers® i % A 226 Tonne AMA 3

Non-Hazardous Waste Metals (e.g. steel, iron, welding slag) Tonne A MA 562

FEEEY S8 (Wi 1Ra%)

Plastics Z8 2 Tonne ‘AMA 11
Paper (e.g. cardboard) Tonne ‘A& 44
MR (ARIRE)

Others (e.g. scrap, wiring) Tonne AW 145
Hih (g Ak BR%F)

Paper recycled’ [B1 Y48 a7 Tonne AMA 4

Notes: it

1. NOx data are only available for Dong Hua, as mileage information 1. HRFBALRPETERETEEE AR
was not available for Hong Kong headquarter and Gainbase. b BHERARAERE -

2. Scope 2 GHG emissions were calculated with reference to emissions 2. #E EEREHNENLRR (FE-_ZT—+
factor found in the “CLP 2017 Sustainability Report”. AIFBEERRE) JIENERREEHE -

3. Scope 3 GHG emissions come from business travel by air and were 3. #HE=ZAZFREHEREALBMTIRERS
calculated with reference to ICAO emission factors. REIFR RS BER R EEE -

4. Wastewater discharge is applicable to Gainbase and Dong Hua only, 4. EXFFRAREANBENEE  RENHEE
and the Dong Hua data only includes measurements from May to BEZE-NAFRAAZE+T-ANEE-
December 2018.

5.  Waste data is mainly applicable to Dong Hua unless stated 5. KR{TH GRIEDNHBETZRAEE-
otherwise.

6. Oil containers and oil paint containers may contain hazardous 6. SHARNMHRARZHEEEYH-
contents.

7. The amount of recycled paper included data from both Hong Kong 7. [EIRMAREEREE S A LEENEE -

headquarter and Dong Hua.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

SOCIAL ASPECTS

General Disclosure

Our staff are crucial to the Group’s growth and success. Through
our philosophy of being “people-orientated, pragmatic and
continuously learning”, we emphasise that talent attraction,
occupational health and safety and staff development are an
integral part of the Group’s long-term development. At the same
time, we continuously explore ways to contribute to society and
fulfil our social responsibilities. In recognition of our unceasing
efforts to care for our staff and society, the Group has been
awarded the Caring Company Logo by The Hong Kong Council of

Social Service since 2007.

The Group respects human rights and complies with all local
labour, workplace and social laws and standards. We are firmly
committed to safeguarding the well-being and integrity of
our staff and have established a code of conduct for all our
employees. We ensure equal opportunities for all qualified
applicants and staff and refrain from any type of discrimination.
The Group does not tolerate any form of corruption, forced
labour, child labour or sexual harassment anywhere in our

operations.

To facilitate communication between our staff and the
Group’'s management, we have put in place a diverse set
of communication channels and grievance mechanisms,
with measures also in place to ensure the confidentiality of
personal data. We strictly abide by the local labour laws of the
countries in which we operate. During the reporting period, no
legal cases were registered regarding our labour practices or
market operations or regarding any issues related to product
responsibility.

R -HERERKRE (B)

HEFTEHE

—RIEE

BIREMEBAKIMNESR  IRFAEEMNE
BRHEBR -FTRIAABR BEER  FF
BEE|NCEEEE BRIMEERAAL -
BERFETZE2NBEIRREAEEMERE
BAASBRARE - RMFERRBITLE
MHEEE TEHRAMENETE AEEF
—ETLEREFAEUERBB SR TR
ARBERRE] EEIMdZHEEUNE N
EBREE-

AEEEEARMETEMWARS T T
SRR EHERNBRE - RMBRREE

Im%&ﬂtﬁiﬁ HE - FUHHFTE2EEIY
BESTHITRATR - RMABRTTIERKENR
Al HMBREERMNEMEMEL —RE
T HBEMAE AR REEEA R T
WAEMPEANESHER ®ALT ETIgM
g

REEETHASEERERE 2 M ER &K
MREZEBEBREMPFHS WRIE
M ERFEEAERLE RMARKRETE
BRI EBERA S TARE - RERMANA - I &/E
MBEBEAIHFE MEEEREMBTEE
BEEHFAC

m A=

caringcompany

Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
ot ERpEEEs

HEBLERBHERTHR

REEER

The Caring Company Logo awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
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Employment and Welfare

To retain high-calibre staff, the Group offers competitive
remuneration and benefits. We operate a performance-based
appraisal process which assesses the capabilities and leadership
abilities of our staff at different levels on a regular basis. This
process allows us to adjust remuneration and bonuses accordingly
and inspire both career and personal growth. On top of medical
insurance, provident fund and pension contributions, we offer
our staff various leave entitlements including annual leave,
marriage leave, maternity and paternity leave, bereavement leave,
examination leave and injury leave.

The Group places a strong emphasis on promoting a healthy
work-life balance. During the year, we planned a variety of social
activities to promote staff well-being, including monthly birthday
parties, Father's Day and Mother's Day celebrations and other
festive celebrations. Dong Hua arranged a special “thank you
trip” for our staff to celebrate Women's Day on 8 March 2018,
with a total of 80 staff and their family members enjoying a day

out at the Longfeng Villa Video Resort.

2017 Annual Dinner and Awards Ceremony

—E-LAFBREBRRAR
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Dong Hua Women's Day “Thank You" Trip
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Every year, the Group celebrates its achievements and presents
awards to outstanding colleagues and those with long service
records at our annual dinner, in recognition of their performance,
loyalty and commitment.

We also arrange a variety of leisure events to help staff maintain
a healthy work-life balance, with sports activities being a
particular highlight which include football, running and sports fair
events. In 2018, ten Dong Hua representatives participated in the
2018 Worker Sports Fair and Charity Walk in Dongguan, winning
the Second Runner Up award for overall performance.

R -HERERKRE (B)

BHEFHERFREES THRERBKR
AR RS T RIVGH MR BARBEHEE -
KRB FIE B AR EE R

Rtz RPAEEEEREREHEET
ES TG EhREEHE—KREH fim:
RIR-WFREHRZ - —T—-\F REK
HTRARSNIRZ B IBREDSER
E17) ERERRATERE-

10 Representatives from Dong Hua at the Third Session Worker Sports Fair and Charity Walk
TERERK2EE=-"ERIBRKEHSERERETT
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Workplace Health and Safety

The Group places great importance on building a robust culture
of health and safety for all our staff. Our manufacturing
facilities have established policies and guidelines regarding
safety equipment, occupational hygiene and the prevention of
occupational diseases, setting out clear roles and responsibilities
for health and safety at all levels. A Safety Production Committee
made up of safety officers has been put in charge of monitoring
and managing safety initiatives and preventing workplace
accidents. Health and safety courses and refresher training
sessions are regularly conducted, covering topics such as first
aid, handling hazardous chemicals and production safety. In
addition, large-scale emergency fire drills and site inspections are
conducted on a regular basis.

In 2018, Dong Hua revised their Prevention of Occupational
Diseases Policy, appointing safety officers to conduct daily safety
monitoring and issuing weekly follow-up reports on any safety
issues identified and any corrective measures taken. Safety at
every level was emphasised in 2018, resulting in a significant
reduction in the number of work-related injuries and lost days.

In August 2018, the Group arranged a complimentary annual
health screening for different levels of staff in Dongguan to
ensure the health and well-being of our workers, a practice
which is now standard across the Group. We strive to serve as
a leading light for the industry by consistently enhancing our
training programmes and keeping abreast of the latest laws and
regulations concerning production safety.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Staff Development

In terms of developing our staff, the Group arranges both internal
and external training programmes and encourages our staff
to enhance their professional skills and knowledge and pursue
their career development. In 2018, Dong Hua took in around
10 university graduates, who underwent tailor-made orientation
training programmes to facilitate their understanding and
adaptation to the company.

Through the assistance and guidance of the Dongguan
Occupational Skill Testing Authority and the Dongguan Human
Bureau of Resource, Dongcheng Branch, Dong Hua developed a
series of certification examinations for technicians in this year.
Technicians who obtain a passing grade will be awarded with
a nationally-recognised professional qualifications certificate,
providing the staff member with recognition and raising the
Group’s manufacturing standard at the same time. Approximately
80% of our technicians passed the inaugural examination,
and we anticipate being able to attract and train more skilled
technicians in the future.

R -HERERKRE (B)

BT®R

I HEE T2 A A A &0 RS AR A 85
Al #EALIR T B TR B R AL MAE - Bt
MESEFNER - —T—N\F REXNA
BHOTUAREEEXLE WREEHRIOA
BEF - REME TRBAEENEE TIE
B o

RAFE REERZBEREEERALR
SMANERBRED BHOBEIAEET
REMABRST —RIRBFZRZ BBE
ERRMABSEZ2ERUNEREERE
E-ERHE-—THEEREINERE %—7
EREST AEEBEBNERIEKTE -5t
EXEZHRIM A BK80% BB ZE % M
FEHRERAZLEIMBREEZ S RENRK
AR -

Certification of Competency for Technicians

EERBEATFEEREZ
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

R -ERERHRE (&)

Product Quality

It is a key priority of the Group to improve product quality
along the entire value chain, from sourcing right through to
manufacturing. Environmental and social considerations are
taken into account from the start, beginning with the sourcing
of raw materials. Our manufacturing units ensure that both raw
materials and finished products meet international standards such
as the “Restriction of the Use of Certain Hazardous Substances
in Electrical and Electronic Equipment” (RoHS) and halogen-
free requirements defined by the International Electrochemical
Commission (IEC). We have a Quality Department in place to
conduct quality checks and monitoring and product recalls when
necessary.

In addition, our production plants and equipment have
consistently demonstrated a firm commitment to providing high-
quality products through our adherence to recognised quality
control management systems including ISO 9001, ISO/TS 16949,
UL Standards and ISO 14001.

Number of Suppliers by Geographical Region in 2018

EmmE
EREEEERCRBIRE ARERE
M mEREEEE RARBERMHER
DEBHRREFENMHENTE MAREE
719 & 25 N MR IR A #E S B dm i B B AR A0 )
BRIZE flin - BBEEE RFIESNETFR
BERAAEMERES] (ROHSES) MEKRE
THBZEE(EONTERRRTE - TR
mERN FENTERLEENESR NEH
BV EREOWEMRER-

BEoN - AN B A A E S KRR B N E B AT
A EBEZEAE (8HEISO 9001 +I1SO/TS 16949
ULRISO 14001 MM EEHRER O EH
THEMEELEERHTHER-

—ER-\FRHERSNHEBRRE

Location ith B Quantity £
Hong Kong &/ 44
Mainland A 241
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Supply Chain Management

The Group has been progressively including sustainability as a
core element in our supply chain decision-making processes,
which is changing how we engage with and assess our suppliers.
We constantly review our supply chain management policies
and green procurement guidelines, and the performance of
our suppliers is regularly assessed. Any breaches made in these
supplier arrangements may lead to legal actions in accordance
with our corporate policies.

Through regular engagement with our customers and suppliers,
the Group seeks to understand the environmental and social
impacts generated throughout the life-cycle of our products.
Together, we ensure compliance with local laws and regulations
concerning product safety, product declaration and labelling,
human rights, customer privacy protection, anti-corruption and
intellectual property rights.

Caring for the Community

The Group actively promotes and participates in community
initiatives in order to contribute to the sustainable development
of both our business and society. An established staff volunteer
team takes part in charitable events regularly and gathers
donations and supplies for various people in need. In 2018,
our Hong Kong employees volunteered a total of 44 hours and
the Company and our Hong Kong employees donated around
HKD36,000 to support local charitable services. On top of
these, we also sponsored three boxes of kitchenware products
in support of the “Walkeln Inclusive Green Bazaar cum Charity
Walkathon"” organised by Fu Hong Society.

R -HERERKRE (B)

HEREE
AEBEZSHAKERRE/RZOTES
HEp AfEERFBIES - WAHRE M FHEH
JRE 7 B BE P R RT 07 ET o BP BT A T
#EIEBRRNIRERIRELE S R TR
HEBORE MBREMERHEDRED
MEF g RBARENEEREBRIUX
#’i7%-

RTREREAEARHRENEGEN
VRE RMEEFRHERTEHER KA
BRBETHEHRERTE EmPRERE A
B REEPILE REB/RABERN AL
SRR

BELE
BOBLHEERSEE RS B AEE
¥BtenaHERE -KRMNE8 AKX
ZEIBERLESEEREEY TAETE
MATEEZZTNME - —T—N\F HHE
TEHRRETMNERETIRS AR A H
&8 8 T1BE4936,000/8 7T 37 15 % R AN b %
EHE TRLERRKE N [LELH
Walk o In k2T EBH1TER ] JEE) BB =
FMEAEM-

Flag selling day at our Hong Kong Headquarter in support of Fu Hong Society
BB BITERAHRES
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HEREBES (B

Social Data Summary HEHERE
Total Staff Head Count and Staff Turnover as of 31 BE_E—-NF+ZA=+—HULETHEA
December 2018 BREIRAAE
Gender Female 507 435
g s
Male 1,129 610
el
Rank Senior Level 19 2
B 45 =HRAE
Middle Level 113 17
S F SN =
General Staff 1,504 1,026
—REBRAE
Age Under 30 511 603
Fip 305% AT
30-50 1,043 435
30-50%%
Over 50 82 7
505 A £
Geographic Region Hong Kong 32 S
= BB
Mainland 1,604 1,040
A 3,
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -HEREREE (B

Workplace Health and Safety Performance Summary in 2018 —Z—N\EIfHREHEHZZERRE

Number of work-related fatalities No. of incidents 0
BT ER BB BINRE RE
Number of work-related injuries No. of incidents 5
HIEERNIER IREL
Days lost due to injury Days 107
EIGHEEATIIERH H#

Total and Average Training Hours Per Staff Member by Rank —Z—\FRBFE I NWAEIHFERAY
in 2018 B 3 B 2

Senior Level 198 10
=2RAE

Middle Level 508 4
FRAE

General Staff 10,946 7
—MBRET
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HERERRKRE ()

HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX B (RE - HERERBREE
TABLE gl MERRESI X

General
Disclosures and

KPls
—RRER Description Page No. Remarks
BRERER i =1 Bt 3E

Aspect A1: Emissions

BE1: AEERY)

General Disclosure Information on: 60-65
—REE (@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

BHERMREREBHNR MAKRLHOES BERES

BEEYHEEESH:
(@) BR: R
(b) BFHBETAGEAZENHBEEEZRAOINER -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 66
HE R & 58 2 AR R HE AR B -
KPI'A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity. 66 Restatement of 2017
BERBBINERTE - Scope 2 GHG emissions
to 26,100 tonnes of
COze.
EHFM2017FHE =
VRERBEHENER
26,100 A8 — L fik &
2o
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. 66
FEEEERENEERER -
KPI' A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity. 66
FELBREREYHESERER
KPI'A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results 61
achieved.
HUORE BB BV HE e R PTIS R ©
KPI' A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes 61

are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HEEASREEEZEYN G L REEESOEERA
SRR -

76 COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HEREREE (B

General
Disclosures and

KPls
—BREER Description . Remarks
BRENEE i B 5

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBEA2 : BRfER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, 60-65
—REE water and other raw materials.
BRERAER (BIEER K REARME) BB -
KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total 65 Restatement of 2017
AR A IE TR A2.1 and intensity. electricity consumption
REANESNEER SEELEREREERTE - of Hong Kong
Headquarter to
174,901 kWh.
EHIA T+ F
EERLAEER
174,901 F R & o
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. 65
BFEKRERKE -
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results 62-65
achieved.
ot g2 R A Rz et B RIS AR ©
KPI' A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water 62
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
3t SRER 3 AR KR = AT 8 ] TR - DA R AR T AR K Bk ss &l
RS R -
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and 65

with reference to per unit produced.

HEMABEEMHNERERSEEEMIEE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BHEA3: BERRANEIR

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the 60, 62-65

— R E environment and natural resources.
WIEEITALHRBERAAERENEAZENBR -

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 60, 62-65

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
Ml EDHRRERRAAERNEAXERERNERE
AR ENITE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HERERRKRE ()

General
Disclosures and

KPls
—REER Description Page No. Remarks
BRERIER i B B =

Aspect B1: Employment

EBmB1 : EE
General Disclosure Information on: 67-69
— R EE (a) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
EREMREE BEREA TEHS - RE- FTEHe -
%yt  RIEAR VA K H At 538 R AR I8 -
(@ BE: R
(b) BEFHBETAGEAXENHEBEZRBOANER -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and 74

geographical region.
RMER - EERE FRER RMREDHES B -
KPI'B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 74
geographical region.
BRI FERARNRMRE D HEERKL X

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EHB2 - BEHEZ S

General Disclosure Information on: 67 & 70
—BEE (@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
FHRRELZ2THERERREEEHCBELEEMN:
(@ HBE: R
(b) HEFHBTAGEAXENHEBEZRBOAONER -
KPI'B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. 75
EATERMEMIETAIASB R K-

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 75
AIGRAIEEH:

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 70
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
TR ETER AN A B (R FR L D HE 1 - LA R IT REER
V% e
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RE HEREREE (B

General
Disclosures and

KPIs

—REER Description Page No. Remarks
BRERER Ei g E B &

Aspect B3: Development and Training
[EHB3 : ERE MIF

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for 67 & 71
— R discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
EBRAEE BT TIERE M KA BUR - #1531
EE e
KPI A3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and 75

employee category.
RERREEFEAESHXIEER S

KPI A3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by 75 Only training hours by
gender and employee category. employee category was
EHRREEBERNE S BREETKIINFEREE- disclosed in this report.
RERERTEES
R E D8 TR
.

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : 45 TR

General Disclosure Information on: 67
— AR FE (@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

BRAMTIEE Tk b5 Ty :

(@) HHE R
(b) ETHBETABEAZENHBEERROINER -
KPI A4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to 67

avoid child and forced labour.
AR T RIS B PR R ME A B S B T RGRHIZ5E T o
KPI A4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when 67

discovered.
HME IR BRI RN HR A BB R 5

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
JEHBS : e E 12

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the 73
—B R supply chain.
ERHEENRERESRARBUR -
KPI'A5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 72
BiEE D HEREE -
KPI' A5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 73

number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
G Rt EE A E D - M EBTTE F1E G 6 R
B UREHEESNATRERT A
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HERERRKRE ()

General
Disclosures and
KPls

—BREER Description . Remarks
BRENEE #at B 3

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EmB6 : EMmEE

General Disclosure Information on: 67 & 72
— R EE (@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

FHMRERERIRENREEZE ES BHERLES

H AR TR -

(@ BE: R

(b) BFHBETAGEAZENHBEEEZRAOINER -

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[E®EB7 : R&E)5

General Disclosure Information on: 67 & 73
— & (a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BHEGILHE DR HEFROEREN:

(a) BR: K

(b) BFHBETATEATZENHEBEERZRBAOINER -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[BHEBS : L EIZE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs 67 & 73
— B FE of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure

its activities take into consideration the communities’

interests.

FRUAME2ERTHREEMELRFTEMBREXEED
BE BRSO BOR

KPI A8.1 Focus areas of contribution. 73
BB IR IR A8.1 EXTFRIEE -

KPI A8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. 73
B 5 45 AR 1R A8 2 EEIEEMHAER-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (PRACTISING)

9th Floor, Tung Ning Building
249-253 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 89 to 273, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

B XA RS
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X1 EIR
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RAZEE (A TEBE M) EEAINER
FERIE273EARMMMEZEER AR (AT
BIERR) REMBAR (L THBEIES
B])MGREMBRE LV BRERBERZ
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BURBERE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BRRETEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FRETEHEIBBERMNIELE R AL
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the AEGAVBERENBASEEENEE-
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These ZEFHERERMPIFIBEGATBHREL
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the HABRBETEEN RATSYHZEE
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our IBIREEBHER -

opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key Audit Matter
HRETBIE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EMNERNMNEEERERER

Impairment of goodwill

Refer to note 18 to the Group consolidated financial
statements.

B2HEEEGRE VB mARMT18 -

The Group has goodwill of HK$53,483,000 relating to
the acquisition of KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited in 2013
which is engaged in trading of printed circuit board.

EEERNR _ZE—=ZFUBHBR_ENREEERAF
(HtERBRRES) ELRHE ST R53,483,000/87T

Management has concluded that there is no impairment
in respect of the goodwill. This conclusion was based on
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units ("CGU") to which goodwill has been allocated. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and to determine a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate its present value. Key assumptions for the value
in use calculation are future cash flow forecast, growth
rate and discount rate, where small changes of them can
result in a significant change in the value in use.
EREERRNTEEHEENRE ZEm IBRBEHES
EEnReELENG ((ReEEFELG])ERAEBENG
SAmEL T EEREER  ESEAGHEHERSE
HEUEANARRERRETSENEREUGER
B-FHEEABENETERBARKR SR  HRE
REEHRE EZEHEE LR/ )EE JHERAEERBKE
RNEH -

The impairment assessment involves significant
judgements made by management and therefore is
identified as a key audit matter.

WE G RERBIELONERAE Bt #E5 R
WETEE

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

BERE
Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment included:

BPMEREE 2 REMN G 2EFEE:

—  Obtaining the cash flow forecast prepared by

management, reviewed and discussed with
management on the major assumptions adopted
in the cash flow forecast for each CGU and
checked arithmetic accuracy of the forecast
calculation.

RGEEERENBEMEN REEEEHN R
dRARReREARSEReEFELKAN
FERRKR UREFEBANEES R ER -

—  Comparing the growth rate, budgeted sales and

gross margin to historical results to determine
the reasonableness of the assumptions.

EIERE REHEEREMNREBEFEFELER
NEERZEERE -

—  Assessing the discount rate used by management

in the cash flow forecast by benchmarking
against the required rate of return adjusted for
industrial specific factors.
NITERBTREZRABNAMTLORERELE HE
I 8 IR & R TRORI P P A B0 BRER AR H AT AL o

— Reviewing the sensitivity analysis prepared by

management on the significant assumptions
including the growth rate and the discount
rate to evaluate the extent of impact of these
assumptions on the cash flow forecast.
FHEREREARR (BRERELMAX)RF
HOGREDIN U EZEFBRRER S RAA
MR EREE-



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZBERE ()

Key Audit Matter
HRESER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEMNERNNEERREREE

Accounting for restructuring provisions

Refer to note 29 to the Group consolidated financial
statements.

F2HEEEERS M BRKMTE29 -

The recognition and valuation of the provision in respect
of restructuring is highly judgemental and assumptions
based.

ERENMEARESERBAHE RER RS-

The determination of whether or not a present
obligation exists is a judgemental process. The actual
future expenses to complete the restructuring require
significant estimates. As disclosed in the note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements, the reversal of
restructuring provision of HK$19,612,000 is recognised
in consolidated income statement.
ETEMEERATAERTEZERHE - TKREAEMTHN
AREBRFAXTEREME - MAERE M MKRM 29
PT#: 819,612,000 T 2 SR BRI B ENGFA KEX
R o

The restructuring provision assessment involves
significant judgements made by management and
therefore is identified as a key audit matter.
BABBRE S R E IR E AT E L e E AR HI B B
PR ETFE-

ERBENEERE
Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on restructuring provision included:

B EREcSHBRBIAZEFEHE:

— We have inspected the minutes of board of
directors meetings where the progress of the
restructuring was deliberated on during the
meetings and we have tested and concurred
with management’s judgement in respect of the
existence of a constructive obligation concerning
the planned restructure exercise. We tested
the decision making process, the existence of
sufficiently detailed plans of the Group and the
communications in this respect.
HMEEHEFeeR SN EHEZEHER
BARBEMERNS YEREREHLAENE
MIEFAEETEENHE - M2 st 8IRE
AR FLRABRIFANESEASIRHEL
FEEEBETAH -

—  The provision for severance payments included
using the assumptions on estimating the number
of employees that will ultimately be affected
under the production capacity optimisation
process. We have assessed and challenged these
assumptions made by management based on the
relevant rules and regulations in place and the
past experience of the Group in handling similar
exercise and also assessed the assumptions
made on the relocation expenses. We found no
material exceptions in our testing.
EREBERBREATEHRREXERBICBIER
ENETHANRER -BRMEREBEBEESR LR
DIAREEEREEUEHNBELR FEX
BRZShEREFDNRE LHRREBEE
H R AR AE 1T APl o FAPIPO R B b I S B IR A ()
BBAROISMER

—  We also considered whether separate disclosure
of the restructuring charge is appropriate and
discussed this with management and the audit
committee. We concurred with their conclusion
that separate disclosure and presentation are
helpful in understanding financial performance.
BHPNEZEBUREEAERRTEE It
HEREBEREXZEGETHm RMRER
EniEm BUBRBRREVNARIBRIBERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BURBERE ()

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EMNERNMEERREREE

Valuation of inventories

Refer to note 24 to the Group consolidated financial
statements.

B2HEEEREVHRAMT24 -

The Group has inventories with carrying amount of
HK$491,937,000 which is subject to a risk that changes
in customer demand could result in some products
becoming slow-moving or obsolete, such that they could
not be sold or could only be sold with selling prices
that are less than the current carrying value. This means
there is inherent subjectivity and estimation is needed in
determining the level of inventory provision required.

B & BERME(E491,937,0008 T FEFERAT P HKE
TEBHE S EmBHIGAR  fERAHENETNE
RERFEENEELENER -REZ EREMEF
EREKTRFEFBEMENGANRE-

The Group has made an inventory provision of
HK$13,201,000 in 2018. Significant judgements on
the percentage of general provision and the amount of
specific provision made are required by management in
determining the adequacy of the inventory provision.
EEEN-FT—/\F{EH13,201,0008 T2 FEBH -
BEFEREREEAIK TEEEESR —REGBHA
DR EREBEN S RIELEARNHE -

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance
to the Group consolidated financial statements as a
whole, together with the judgement associated with
determining the adequacy of the inventory provision.
ERFEERUGEVBRREBLNEE N N L#
EEFEBRBREARDR Y K AE  FHitF 8 M EH &5
REARESEE-

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

FEME
Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on inventory provision included:

BB B FERGIEZEFEE:

— Inquiring and understanding from management
the inventory provision policy of the Group.

MEEEEARTHESENTFERBRR-

—  Assessing the reasonableness of the inventory
provision made by the Group by obtaining
the aging analysis and slow-moving inventory
lists from management and discussing with
management on the basis of inventory provision
made.
MERERGEFREITRERFESE I
HEREIRTERBOEE EMAEEER
FERNFERERDAE

—  Performing testing on the inventory ageing
to assess the accuracy of the basic data used
to determine the provision and re-performing
the provision calculation to check arithmetic
accuracy.

MIF RO EFEBETRR - AR BIEH BB
MERBBERELER WEFHTEREGUAKEE
By EREN

— Understanding from management the rationale
for the specific adjustments and assessing the
assumptions made where there are specific
adjustments on the inventory provision.
MERETHMEEARNER TARATERE
EL S ERBERPTELARE -

—  Reviewing subsequent sales on the inventory
samples selected to assess whether the
inventories were able to be sold at prices above
their carrying values.

FHCERNEFERR 2 BEHENRR 7T
ERAARENEREENEREL -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BURBERE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control;

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern;

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

e obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BURBERE ()

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Chan Shu Kin.

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
Certified Public Accountants (practising)

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
G W &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 %2 —F—N\F+_-HA=+—HIFFZ

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HKS$000 HK$°000
HiaF FETT FET
Revenue WA 5 2,682,452 2,446,848
Cost of sales $H 5 B AR 24(b) (2,245,294) (2,037,409)
Gross profit EF 437,158 409,439
Other income and gains, net N A& 6 45,202 43,840
Selling and distribution costs nIHE A (153,780) (145,043)
Administrative expenses TEE A (251,593) (244,887)
Operating profit R A 76,987 63,349
Finance costs MBER 7 (21,856) (20,483)
Investment income L&A 8 4,938 3,736
Share of results of associates i RN 1,658 3,324
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEMBAF 28T 37 44,588 -
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary & 5 — KM B R &) 2 & 7| 1,904 -
Profit before tax B Fi A1 as A 9 108,219 49,926
Taxation 1A 17 (19,467) (6,076)
Profit for the year RNEFEF 88,752 43,850
Profit attributable to: PEE &R
— Equity shareholders —RRAIRERFAA
of the Company 74,052 27,284
— Non-controlling interests — IR R s 14,700 16,566
88,752 43,850
Earnings per share for profit FRARBRERE ARG
attributable to the equity sl sl
shareholders of the Company
during the year 12
- Basic — B 9.36 HK centsi&fll  3.80 HK cents/&{ll

The notes on pages 99 to 273 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —F—\F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$000 HK$°000
Bt it FET FET
Profit for the year IR A 88,752 43,850
Other comprehensive (expense)/ REMBRIBE Z
income for the year, net of tax: Hpzm (), 13
ltems that have been reclassified EEFDBEERAEN
or may be reclassified subsequently ¥ ZEZF2IEE :
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising from & g 91 % 75 3R & 5
translation of financial statements E4£ ZJEN =%
of foreign operations (56,348) 74,040
Changes in fair value of AHEESEE
available-for-sale financial asset ZAFEEE - (129)
Share of reserves of associates FE(REE & N R (1,031) 1,956
Reclassification adjustments: DR
Release of translation reserve upon & —fE B2 7k
disposal of a subsidiary MO R E R 547 -
Release of translation reserve upon &t 84— [ ff B 2 & #F
deregistration of a subsidiary WE R FEER L (1,904) -
Release of fair value reserve upon HERHEESTEER
disposal of available-for-sale RAFEEREBEEL
financial asset - (930)
(58,736) 74,937
ltems that will not be reclassified T&@EFHHEE
to profit or loss: BmoEE:
Surplus on revaluation of properties B R ¥ ¥ & B
held for own use 11,485 21,240
(47,251) 96,177
Total comprehensive income AEXHEKRZLE
for the year 41,501 140,027
Total comprehensive income EhEEEKRSARE:
attributable to:
— Equity shareholders of the —RRAIRERFA A
Company 32,900 113,900
— Non-controlling interests — IR R s 8,601 26,127
Total comprehensive income EEZHRRAE
for the year 41,501 140,027

The notes on pages 99 to 273 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements. — &5 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A BB &

At 31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —t%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
Bt it FET FET
Non-current Assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BE k&EE 15 618,271 644,876
Leasehold land and land use rights & £ #th & + $h {5 F # 17 40,271 43,320
Goodwill kS 18 53,483 53,483
Intangible assets mEE 19 6,454 7,838
Interests in associates RN b 20 31,139 32,369
Available-for-sale financial assets At EeREE 21 = -
Financial assets at AFEEFAEMETR

fair value through other WamzemEE
comprehensive income 21 - -
Finance lease receivables FE W R E TR E K IE 22 44,451 16,472
Deferred tax assets RAETLIEE E 23 26,419 29,518
820,488 827,876

Current Assets REEE

Inventories e 24 491,937 524,571
Finance lease receivables R EMRERE 22 109,249 100,965
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E b ERGRIA 25 934,171 923,611
Other financial assets HttemEE 26 33,930 20,277
Current tax recoverable ZKHA | Uy [B] 75 18 2,216 1,473
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTH 27 339,702 348,746
1,911,205 1,919,643

Assets of disposal group classified D EAFIERE Z
as held for sale HEMREE 36 = 23,140
1,911,205 1,942,783
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

REPBAMRRR (F)

At 31 December 2018 —E—/\F+_-H=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
B aF FET FAET
Current Liabilities REBBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E AR IR 28 792,545 928,635
Contract liabilities EHEaE 28 66,323 -
Provision for restructuring =B 29 30,238 52,956
Provision for indemnity BEERE 37 25,780 -
Amount due to an associate 4R —MEHE R B 5RR 704 865
Bank borrowings RITHERX 30 357,052 380,598
Obligations under finance leases BEMREER 37 2,547 2,696
Deferred consideration payable R FERR(E - 8,148
Current tax payable AN HRFE A B I8 5,732 7,622
1,280,921 1,381,520
Liabilities directly associated with ~ D AFERE 2 HE
the assets classified as held MR EEEEEMRAE
for sale =R 36 - 26,723
1,280,921 1,408,243
Net Current Assets FRBEE 630,284 534,540
Total Assets less Current HWEEBRRBEE
Liabilities 1,450,772 1,362,416
Non-current Liabilities ERBERE
Bank borrowings RITEK 30 20,111 45,125
Obligations under finance leases B E & B R 31 4,528 -
Deferred tax liabilities FREFIBEE 23 25,848 25,152
50,487 70,277
Net Assets FEE 1,400,285 1,292,139

92 COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

e UBARRE ()

At 31 December 2018 —F—/\F+_-H=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt it FET FET
Equity i
Capital and reserves attributable to ZA&AQ AR ER B AL
equity shareholders B EE
of the Company:
Share capital [ 32 609,027 532,903
Reserves &1 557,303 547,591
Proposed final dividend BEAHRKRE 14 17,239 -
1,183,569 1,080,494
Non-controlling Interests FERER 216,716 211,645
Total Equity ERAE 1,400,285 1,292,139

The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 273 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
28 March 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

TANG TO
;=
DIRECTOR
EF

The notes on pages 99 to 273 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

FOIA E2/EVEAMBBRER_ZE—N
FZA-tN\RAESFeETRETE
WHTHEEREEES:

TANG YU, FREEMAN
BnA
DIRECTOR
E

FEE2IAZHMEBAGEMBEMER 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SREBBE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &&= —

TN\ A= AU

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARERE AR

Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves profits Total interests equity
A HtEE  RERF g% FRREE  RREE
(Note 33)
(Hit33)
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET T FEr FiET FET FET
Balance at 1 January 2017 -+ F- 532,903 66,752 366,939 966,594 190,318 1,156,912
Profit for the year RERN - - 27,284 27,284 16,566 43,850
Other comprehensive income/(expense) AF Efi2E M/ (% H)
for the year:
Fair value loss: N Wﬁﬁﬁgﬂé'

- Available-for-sale financial asset IHNESRERE - (129) - (129) - (129)
Share of reserves of associates %1535%”“ GlL - 1,956 - 1,956 - 1,956
Surplus on revaluation of BRNEERES

properties held for own use - 23,075 - 23,075 2,266 25,341
Deferred taxation adjustment BEREHE - (3,750) - (3,750) (351) (4,101)
Exchange differences arising from BEBNEBRRBEEL

translation of financial statements ERES

of foreign operations - 66,394 - 66,394 7,646 74,040
Reclassification adjustment: PERE:

Release of fair value reserve upon HETRNESBEER

disposal of available-for-sale HATREGZERN

financial asset - (930) - (930) - (930)
Total other comprehensive income FEEMEPANALE

for the year - 86,616 - 86,616 9,561 96,177
Total comprehensive income TEZANNEE

for the year - 86,616 27,284 113,900 26,127 140,027
Dividend to the non-controlling BIERRARE RS

shareholders - - - - (4,800) (4,800)
Balance at 31 December 2017 ZE-tETZA=T-B#H 532,903 153368 394223 1,080,494 211,645 1,292,139
Details of other reserves of the Group during the year are set out ANEBRAFE Z EMHEHZ B FBEHNE

in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
meRmB2ER ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ERARESEAEL
Proposed Non-
Share Other final Retained controlling Total
capital reserves dividend profits Total interests equity
B3
Ka  HttRE KBRS REER BE  FBRER  BREER
(Note 33)
(Hi33)
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FEn T2z FET FEn T2z FEn FEn
Balance at 1 January 2018, RZZ-\F-A-BE4
as previously reported @G BENEE 532,903 153,368 - 394,23 1,080,494 21,645 1,292,139
Changes in accounting policies (Kote 3) EHUKRY (Wit3) - - - (5,949) (5,949) (563) (6,512)
Balance at 1 January 2018, restated RZE-N\E-A-8"
s 532,903 153,368 - 388,274 1,074,545 211,082 1,285,627
Profit for the year REET - - - 74,02 74,02 14,700 88,752
Other comprehensive income/(expense) rEEpEANE/
for the year: (%) :
Release of translation reserve upon HE-FHRBAAE
disposal of a subsidiary W G - 547 - - 547 - 547
Share of reserves of associates EREHERAEE = (1,031) = = (1,031) = (1,031)
Surplus on revaluation of properties BRNEERLER
held for own use - 13,200 - - 13,200 1,102 14,302
Deferred taxation adjustment BRREAZ - (2,650) - - (2,650) (167) (2.817)
Exchange differences arising from translation of AZE5 £KBREELL
financial statements of foreign operations ERES - (49,314) - - (49,314) (7,034) (56,348)
Release of translation reserve upon FHE-EREL AR
deregistration of a subsidiary WEXGERD - (1,904) = = (1,904) = (1,904)
Total other comprehensive expense TEERZARLAR
for the year - (41,152) - - (41,152) (6,099) (47,251)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) REZARA/
for the year (X)) 8% - (#1,152) - 74,052 32,900 8,601 41,501
Release of revaluation reserve upon HE-RINBAAR
disposal of a subsidiary HEfEERD - (9,028) - 9,028 - o -
Transaction with owners: BEAEIRS:
Issue of ordinary shares ETERR 76,124 - - - 76,124 - 76,124
Dividend to the non-controlling shareholders ~ AFFERIRE 2k & - - - - - (2,967) (2,967)
Proposed final dividend (note 74) BERBRE (HZ14) - - 17,239 (17,239) = = =
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-ETZA=+-H
3 609,027 103,188 17,239 454,115 1,183,569 216,716 1,400,285
Details of other reserves of the Group during the year are set out AEERAFE 2 HFHEEESFBHNLE

in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 99 to 273 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SEeRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —F—\F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
Bt it FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETEH
Profit before tax B 58 B4 A 108,219 49,926
Adjustments for: BT EIEFE:
Interest income FLEMA 8 (3,603) (3,519)
Finance costs MHBER 7 21,856 20,483
Realised and unrealised gain on EthemEEZD
other financial assets BERREHEAT 8 (1,335) (217)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RWBARZAEF 37 (44,588) -
Gain on deregistration of HE-—BWB AT ZEF
a subsidiary (1,904) -
Gain on disposal of available-for- HEAHEELRMEE
sale financial assets gl 6 — (3,389)
Share of results of associates AN E S (1,658) (3,324)
Depreciation of property, W -WEREETE
plant and equipment 9 69,396 63,702
Amortisation of leasehold land HE T 2+ b R
and land use rights 5y 9 1,350 1,379
Amortisation of intangible assets & & & # 54 9 1,384 1,383
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - HE K
plant and equipment R B 6 (446) (57)
Surplus on revaluation of BRAMESHAR
properties held for own use 9 (915) (179)
Unused provision for restructuring 31 5k 8 Fj 55 48 ¢ 15
reversed 6 (19,612) (31,101)
Loss and damage from typhoon ERDEi=EN
— Property, plant and equipment —ME - -WEK
written off X8 i AR - 1,469
— Inventories written off —FEME - 3,927
(Reversal of allowance)/ RIZRBE (7)) BiE
allowance for impairment of
bad and doubtful debts 9 (9,638) 6,075
Write-down of inventories, net GFEREREBFE 24(b) 13,201 2,400

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
meERERER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
k23 FET FET
Operating cash flows before EEESBBA2KERER
changes in working capital 131,707 108,958
Increase in inventories FE N (3,950) (102,005)
Increase in finance lease JiE Ui @ & F & FROIE N
receivables (33,126) (4,221)
Increase in trade and other B 5 N H b e U SRIEE hn
receivables (60,188) (95,585)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B NEMENRER
other payables and contract aHa’E ORd), 1Em
liabilities (30,568) 144,828
Cash generated from operations KEEHEEZERS 3,875 51,975
Restructuring costs paid BfNEHE R 29 (1,632) (8,606)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENBEENEH (693) (1,561)
Overseas tax paid BB INR K (20,186) (12,493)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED &= 5E8 () EEX 2
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFHE (18,636) 29,315
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
(Increase)/decrease in pledged EIRIERITER (3Em) R
bank deposits (23,062) 8,054
Purchase of property, plant and BEEWE BREMREE
equipment (44,222) (58,372)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HE&EWE - BE KRB 2B
plant and equipment 2,603 3,444
Interest received B U 8 3,603 3,519
Net payment for other financial ST A S R & R
assets (13,760) (16,983)
Dividend received from associates Y& BXEf & A @& B 1,498 1,467
Repayments of deferred EEREEMNRE
consideration payable (1,000) -
Repayments from associates Bt N A)E R 1,485 1,474
Proceeds from disposal of a o — M8 A Bl 2 S8
subsidiary 37 65,434 -
Proceeds from disposal of HEHEESRMEE LA
available-for-sale financial assets - 3,719
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETBHERAZBESFHE
ACTIVITIES (7,421) (53,678)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

RERTMNER (B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z2 —F—F+=-A=+—HILFZ

2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
Bt it FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEE
Repayment of bank loans BEIETER 35 (290,256) (259,987)
Interest paid B2 E 35 (21,650) (20,301)
Repayment of obligations BEREMEEER
under finance leases 35 (3,559) (5,439)
Bank loans raised FTILIRITER 35 245,338 352,878
Advance (to)/from an associate () W ER — A B & A Bl 2
KIE 35 (161) 300
Dividend paid to the EATIEER AR R AR B
non-controlling shareholders 35 (2,967) -
Repayment to the non-controlling 1838 %5 /K JF 2 PR A% B 70 IR
shareholders 35 (745) -
Issue of new shares BEITHAR 32 76,124 -
Finance charge paid ENREHRETR S 35 (206) (182)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM MEIHELEZHSRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,918 67,269
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN ReRBELSZE CHD) HEm
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2# (24,139) 42,906
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B E$REESZEE
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 315,922 264,829
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE SERph# g/ &
RATE CHANGES (9,105) 8,187
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FXABRELRESZEE
AT END OF THE YEAR 27 282,678 315,922

The notes on pages 99 to 273 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED

REEBEXEARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e KM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— N\F+_-H=+—HIFFZ

GENERAL

Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) is a
public limited company domiciled and incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
address of its registered office is 10/F.,, Billion Plaza 2, No. 10
Cheung Yue Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 45.

After the completion of subscription of new shares took
place on 27 June 2018, Saniwell Holding Inc. (“Saniwell”)
(a company incorporated in Cook Islands) is the ultimate
holding company of the Company.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(1) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”) have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"),
which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and Interpretations (“Int”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of properties held for own use and certain
financial assets, which are carried at fair value.

LRl
AREBEXZBRAR ([ARAE]) IR
BREMKL 2 ARBRAF MEBD
REEMERXZMERDE ([BRA])
£

RAFm—EREZERRD T Mt
REBNERDERBEHI0RERES
28101 - HEX BB AR 2 E Z XK
EN IR

—E-N\FAAZTEHERHRODR
#81% - Saniwell Holding Inc. (“Saniwell”)
(REl B EMAIMNERAR) AR

RASBERAT
IREHBRRE

MENEEMBERERREABZIEGHK
RENTX -BRRAFHAN  HERKRE
PrEROMEFENERER -

(1) EHREXE
AREREWMB AR (ATHRE A
S8 NGV BREAERELS
A Ag ([HEEGTHAE]) B
MBI IREER ([BFER])
(BR(EEEFER) k(&
B) ) BRAREFRAK (27
) MERE - ANEE T HR
RABNTEBMARSMES LTR
AMERBEG - ARERAZ
TEEMBERIEN T X -RA MK
BREBBRELKALRE L5t
BRVELRBOHEREENEHR
R BEIEMIELER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(1) Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRS that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and amended
HKFRS that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

2. FREHBEBE(E)

(1) BREE (&)

REEBMERELENRRGES Y
Bk BRE IR E 1R HIE - fhE
MR ELHE B NERERE
FEEHRENERUREE A
B WARSHH2REEE - BLfh
AANBEBBRERIKEEL &R LA
MEEEBATBRENREMIE
H SWEREEEAEEMREE
EEREENMAEMNKREEEMNH
B E T o BB 0 AT BE B 4E LE 5t
Nk

BUME MEERREFET AR
Af e N T ET AV IE T BB 5T
REAFE MEZEREEEY
R et AR HERT EERT M
MR ARMEHELETE HEY
LREE HIMARRAREETTHER

BEEEBHEBERAET A HREE
AR EHAGAMBHREREERY
BREEITREEZIZAE[E
B RE AR & 5 o

BERMAGERME THIR
BETZEAHREEL IR
AEBARSHHREREM - M3
HRERRMZSERNMER 2 &5t
BEREMNESDREEEERN - MA
ME TR EREVBRRMR
BRAN SR B 2 AER R Mo i & ET HIME
B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation 2)

mERA

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and the entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;
— is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

—  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

BAMBER LA A RANE
ARAFEHEROHBRE 8 A
RAHE N TEHEN  DRFEH
i

— BRRETHEAEHIE:

- NRESERREHDEHNHA
HBowmEATERSHEAE
IR

- BEEREENFZERENE
# o

i =B R IF R R Lt 262 = 1@
EEMEF-AHLZALREE:
AR R B ST E ST ERHRIR
B

H-FEMBRRZEAARRALE
B 1S HT AP B A B 2 R I B
Fta AN ANEEREHZMER
BlzEbI R B8ME 8
AEEMFTHEEAECEEAE
ErBEGHNEARER L RF
PR 3 B O P B 2 AU e B
XHFF AR RER -

BakEMEEBRAZEEE TR
BRARBHEAANFIFERES -
MEARzZHRKEEBRNREE
RRAREE AN ERERD  BE
It 2R & 5| B R UM 55 I 3R B A A
8o

(GRS L IR NG OE B
RFH AR UWEESHBRER
SENSFTBER e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRS).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 (note 2(9)), when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture (note 2(3)).

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

2. FREHBEBE(E)

(2)

mERRA (&)
AEBZKERRAHERSEHZ
MESEARRHEE BE #
@ WA FAXMRERETINEGS
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FEBREEHBLAZHEERE
# KB B

AEBERMBRAR ZHEREEZD
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B BERRERS AR A%
B eyt o B OR R AR S A BR B A
HEARRM B AR 2 HEERE
BomABRFERERSBEDH
FEWRENHRFEEZHEAEM
EREERBA RS ERLFER
KRRFEBA -

EARRE R ELE QR @ ES 2
W BERERRERILIAGNGE KK
BAFEERMEAREERZATE
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78 ) M BB DA R A7) SF 12 B b
MREEE HNERTE BHE
A EL A 2 T UK R R AR R R Y B 1 A
BRHMMALRE KRAMRAEE
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FEENTEAR(ZEREE
R ELUNZREFFAIBRIXE
MOBEREGaRNERES —HE
&) AT E R AR B AR E
NFEEEREENEZENRER
MEtRETRE/RBREBYH
HERIFESR (MI5E2(9)) # 1T ¥)
IREER R A FEE 3 (IEA) 1
gERAHAEDLE (HF23)) 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued) 2) #ERA (&)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
benefits” respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard.

REE O

EBWETRBRBEAR %75
EHTFEENRENAFEER
B MABRAKEEBRZEE K
SEELZABRAKRERRER
W BB ) 2 43 R P R AT 2 BRI
Wi R E 2 AT EERM - EIWHE
BRANKA-—RENBLEFERS
RUER

RUE R B KRB BRI EE
RBEREEEWBERHNATE
BT AR - HETIEB R :

- EBEERBEEXAENEERR
MEZBNEREERABRED
IR EE G ERIF 1255 T
BREFEGERF 195 R
@A T AR METE

—  EWWEE T ARG T2 %
& P AN SR B P AT S AU
WA T7 80 AR D A 2 S i
A ABEIRATAT
REEBEH (2RBA TG
R)RBEE LW REERF
258 A B A9 AN 2 3 T AR
EiUR

— RBEBHRE R SR
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LA ST BIR AR (R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity's net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. FREHBEBE(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued) 2) #ERA (&)

Business combinations (Continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depend
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
in accordance with HKFRS 9, or HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

REEOH (H)

HAKEREHAHTERIKE
BRIAARELHELEZEERA
B HAREZEREARRAFE
BFffE TEANREBHEHTAE
BELIRE—BO KRR EZRF
EEZS (FE/TENHAR)A
CIEGEE MR EE LA R -
AAEHREARDLR [FFEME] (K
AAEd e WERREFT —F)R
FESEBREERNGEECSE
RIGRANBEINER FTELE 2 FHE-

IARRBZIRFEEESH 2HERA
BRI ERER AT EHMARE M
RNBAREWMASE D80 S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

(3)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
at that date.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

2. FREHBEBE(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(3) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale) (see note 2(7)). Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee's
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment. Any acquisition-date excess over
cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the investees and any impairment losses
for the year are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associates or the joint ventures, the Group's interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associates or the
joint ventures.

2. FREHBEBE(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 L2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

—NFF+ZA=1—HIFFE

(3) Associates and joint ventures (Continued) (3)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and the joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence is lost, is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (note 2(9)).

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
at cost less impairment losses, unless classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale) (see note 2(7)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(4) Property, plant and equipment (4) NE BRERZHE

Properties held for own use are stated at their
revalued amounts, being their fair value at the date
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date
of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to
the revalued amount of the asset. All other items of
property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
(see note 2(10)(ii)).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed
in profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Revaluations on properties held for own use are
performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that
the carrying amount of these assets does not differ
materially from which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(4) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated separately
in equity in the property revaluation reserve. The only
exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the
revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a deficit
on revaluation in respect of that same asset had
previously been charged to profit or loss.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
cost or revalued amounts to their residual values (if any)
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land held for own use Unexpired term of
under finance leases the leases
Buildings held for own use 40 years or

unexpired term of
the leases, if shorter

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 10 years
Plant and machinery 5 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 3 - 10 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(4) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) Q) ME -BERZE(EZ)

The assets’ residual values (if any) and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An item of property, plant and
equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset.

Assets under construction represent buildings,
structures, plant and machinery and other fixed assets
under construction or installation and are stated at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses, and
are not depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs
of construction, installation and testing as well as
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation.
Assets under construction are reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
or investment properties when completed and ready for
use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item
and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus
is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained
profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note

2(10)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 L2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(5)

(6)

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are lump sum
upfront payments to acquire long-term interest in
certain lessee-occupied properties.

Leasehold land and land use rights relating to certain
buildings of the Group are stated at cost and are
amortised over the period of the lease on the straight-
line basis to profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(7)

(8)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded
as met only when the sale is highly probable and the
assets or disposal group are available for immediate
sale in their present condition. The Group must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values
less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.

Intangible assets (Other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and accumulated impairment losses
(see note 2(10)(ii)),
assets that are acquired separately.

on the same basis as intangible

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

2. FREHBEBE(E)

(7)

(8)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(8) Intangible assets (Other than goodwill) (Continued)
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.

(9) Financial assets
(i) Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement

categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments
in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held.
For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

See Note 43(a) for details of each type of financial
asset.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

2. FREHBEBE(E)

(9) EMEE (&)

(i)

(ii)

& (&)
REAFEEFEZEEM
5olEMEES ARG
Hitzmb = -HEETAR
BiE W BB AKRS
BRARBAEZREZEHR
HRIFFERZMESETE
BREMS  WaEMEEHAR
BEURR A LB R L 2 RYA
REITE T AR R
i IR E ARSI BIARFE
BtEREZHFARLMEE
Yo gk o

FREHSREENHE B
2B FE43(@a) ©

AEEREEERRETEEL
EBRAEHE S EHHBE
BHRE -

BB R A UL 7SR
ERBANEEZEREEHR
XPATUER KXHBEEN
SEARBARNBEZEEZ
H-BUWRMEREEMBRSE
MEZENDEHHKELE
EOMAKECKERREZR
KRB0 [ e B [0 3 8 2 s - B
RIERTBMEE -

Annual Report 2018
—E-\EER

115



116

For the year ended 31 December 2018 L2 =%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded in profit or
loss. Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income or other income using the effective
interest method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(9) Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Measurement (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =%

e SRR MIEE ()

—NFFZA=+—HIFE

2. FREHBEBE(E)

9) EWMEE(E)
(iii) 2 (&)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"): Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains/(losses) — net.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income or other income using
the effective interest method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other gains/
(losses) and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Assets
that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently measured
at FVTPL and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in
the consolidated income statement within other
losses/gains, net in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established. Changes in the fair value
of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised in other
gains/(losses) — net in the consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Accounting policies applied until 31 December

9) SREE (&)
(iv) BZ2017F12531HEFH

2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9, but has elected
not to restate comparative information. As a result,
the comparative information provided continues to
be accounted for in accordance with the Group's

B HE

AEECERABEAMBREE
AIFHE - EERBEREINLERE
£ Bt - R A RHKEIRIRE
AEEAEE ST EER

previous accounting policy. N

Classification Sal |

The Group classifies its financial assets in the AEEREERMEES BUT
following categories: financial assets at fair value Hrl - ARATFEEFEEHE
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and B ABERNEeREE BN
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification REKFERAIHEEESHE
depends on the purpose for which the financial Eo ’\*EHX?%E’\\HW%iFﬂé{F
assets were acquired. Management determines # B E’J EIBEN ISR

the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss
The Group classifies financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss if they are

ETHESREENDE-

(@) UAFEEFERHEE
AABENTREE
HEEEREENENE
ERNEHALE (W

acquired principally for the purpose of selling EEE) AAKEEKA
in the short term, i.e. are held for trading. BEAUR ?FTE#EHE
They are presented as current assets if they B AEENERE
are expected to be sold within 12 months E-MemEEBR®
after the end of the reporting period; HHIRE12E AW H
otherwise they are presented as non-current B AREEVARDE
assets. The Group has elected to designate the B BAREZINRIER
derivative financial instruments as financial PEE-AEEDEES
assets at fair value through profit or loss. MESBMTEEKRANUR
FEEFEBEZEHTA
BENEREE-

Annual Report 2018
—E-\EER

119



120

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Financial assets (Continued)
(iv) Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Continued)
Classification (Continued)

(b)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. If collection of the amounts is
expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade and
other receivables”, “cash and bank balances”,
“finance lease receivables and “amounts
due from associates” in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.
The Group's available-for-sale financial assets
included unlisted equity securities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Accounting policies applied until 31 December

9) SREE (&)
(iv) BZ2017F12531HEFH

2017 (Continued)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Financial assets (Continued)
(iv) Accounting policies applied until 31 December

2017 (Continued)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘Other
gains/(losses) — net’ in the period in which they
arise. Investment income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and available
for sale is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are reclassified
through other comprehensive income to the
consolidated income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale financial assets
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
as part of other income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(10) FEBRERREERE
() EHRITRELZEERRE

(A) Accounting policy applicable from 1 January A BZZE—NF—H—H#E

2018
The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on the

F& R Z BUR
AEBEBLLATIERWIEY
EEEER (RREEEER)

following items: TR E B A -

- financial assets measured at amortised — REHEKNAFTEZE
cost (including cash and bank balances, MEE(RER&K
trade and other receivables); and WITHEBNE S NE

—  finance lease receivables

Financial assets measured at fair value
including other financial assets are not subject

fl FEU IR 2

- EBYREREMEEFAE

BERFEEFEZERE
E(BEREMEREE)

to the ECL assessment. BEETIEREREIET
o
Measurement of ECLs BHEEBENTE

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows
due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 L2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

(A)

Accounting policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

—  fixed-rate financial assets and trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;

—  finance lease receivables: discount rate
used in the measurement of the finance
lease receivable;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(10) FEBEBREERE (&)
() ZBTRELZIEEEE

(Continued) (%)

(A) Accounting policy applicable from 1 January A BZZE—NF—H—H#E
2018 (Continued) JER 2R (&)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued) EHEEEEN=

(#&)

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the

A EHEEERRRE
B B i = BR R R AN 5 [
REERRNRRA Y
i o

Rt ERMEEEER
AEBEEEEELED
W B RN 3 45 77 BT 2 EX
MAEEABKENER
BRBERBESFMH A
AR B R B AR R AR S TR A
M EFY e

A EEBREL T
2—itE:

- T-EAREHEESEE
BB RE AR
TEAARREELE

reporting date; and FEXN =M MERN
BE R
- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are - Z2HEHEEEE:
expected to result from all possible BEIEREHEER
default events over the expected lives BEAWIEE A
of the items to which the ECL model HAFIPT B Al Be B A 1Y
applies. BHZEMHMERNE
=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 L2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

—NFF+ZA=1—HIFFE

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

(A) Accounting policy applicable from 1 January

2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and

finance lease receivables are always measured

at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

ECLs

on these financial assets are estimated using

a provision matrix based on the Group's

historical credit loss experience, adjusted for

factors that are specific to the debtors and an

assessment of both the current and forecast

general economic conditions at the reporting

date.

For all other financial instruments,

the

Group recognises a loss allowance equal

to 12-month ECLs unless there has been

a significant increase in credit risk of the

financial instrument since initial recognition,

in which case the loss allowance is measured

at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

2. FREHBEBE(E)

(10) FEBEBREERE (&)
() ZBTRELZIEEEE

(Continued) (&)

(A) Accounting policy applicable from 1 January A BZZE—NF—H—H#E
2018 (Continued) JER 2R (&)
Significant increases in credit risk EERREKE LA

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or
(ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

—NFF+ZA=1—HIFFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 L2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)
(A) Accounting policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is

taken into account when assessing whether

credit risk has increased significantly since

initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial

instruments, the assessment of a significant

increase in credit risk is performed on either

an individual basis or a collective basis. When

the assessment is performed on a collective

basis, the financial instruments are grouped

based on shared credit risk characteristics,

such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, TEETBRBE(£F)
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

(A) Accounting policy applicable from 1 January

(10) FEBEBREERE (&)
() ZBTRELZIEEEE
(#&)

A BZE—NF—A—Hie

2018 (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt securities that
are measured at “"FVTOCI" (recycling), for
which the loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2(23) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on
the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

ERZBER (&)
EERBAE LT (&)

BEHEEBENE®REAR
HETTENENRRE
BT E B 16 MR AR E
EERRED BHEE
BIESBENTEMNESHHRN
BaEh AR EKS
SER-AEERMAR
Bl T AR A Y et B
B YWEBEBEBERY
B % 2 BREEFHEER
BERRAFEETA
Hib 2w Y (7] 88)
AEMNESREFCERER
SN BLUE BERBE TR
H 2 E R ERL R A
FEEFE(TEHE)R
ate

B St B %
BB 5E2(23) R 2 F &
AR S BLE SR
BHE BEZSHEE
R B R0 - RS
NRS BE B B AL A
(P 55 AR S 1B 1)
s

Annual Report 2018
—E-\EER

129



130

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

(A)

Accounting policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)
Basis of calculation of interest income

(Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganization;

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)
(A) Accounting policy applicable from 1 January

2018 (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset or finance lease receivable is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Accounting policy applicable prior to 1
January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss”
model was used to measure impairment losses
on financial assets not classified as at “FVTPL”
(e.g. trade and other receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets and held-to-maturity
debt securities). Under the “incurred loss”
model, an impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective evidence of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

(B)

Accounting policy applicable prior to 1
January 2018 (Continued)
Objective evidence of impairment included:

significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

(B)

Accounting policy applicable prior to 1
January 2018 (Continued)

If any such evidence existed, an impairment
loss was determined and recognised as follows:

—  For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised
cost, impairment loss was measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate, where the
effect of discounting was material. This
assessment was made collectively where
these financial assets shared similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and had not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which were assessed
for impairment collectively were based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreased and the
decrease could be linked objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment
loss was reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss was
only recognised to the extent that it did
not result in the assets in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

(B) Accounting policy applicable prior to 1

January 2018 (Continued)

When the recovery of a trade debtor or other
financial assets carried at amortised cost
was considered doubtful but not remote,
associated impairment losses were recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group
was satisfied that recovery was remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable was written
off against the gross carrying amount of
those assets directly. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account were reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly were

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)
(B) Accounting policy applicable prior to 1
January 2018 (Continued)

For available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss that had been
recognised in the fair value reserve
(recycling) was reclassified to profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that was recognised in profit or loss was
the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss in respect of available-for-sale
equity securities were not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets
was recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(iij) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment (other than
leasehold land held for own use under finance
leases and properties carried at revalued
amounts);

— land and land use rights classified as being
held under an operating lease;

— investments in subsidiaries and associates
(except for those classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale) in the Company’s statement
of financial position;

- goodwill; and

— intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,

intangible assets that are not yet available for

use and intangible assets that have indefinite

useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated

annually whether or not there is any indication of

impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 L2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

—NFF+ZA=1—HIFFE

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(iij) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(11) Borrowing costs

(11) BEERA

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

(12) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(13) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities
(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees issued at the time
of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transactions for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policies applicable to that category of
asset. Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.
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A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(13) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(13)(iii) if and
when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of
that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities acquired in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at
the date of acquisition are initially recognised at
fair value, provided the fair value can be reliably
measured. After their initial recognition at fair
value, such contingent liabilities are recognised
at the higher of the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation where appropriate,
and the amount that would be determined in
accordance with note 2(13)(iii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that
cannot be reliably fair valued or where not present
obligations at the date of acquisition are disclosed
in accordance with note 2(13)(iii).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(13) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(iiij) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(14) Inventories and other contract costs

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials
or supplies to be consumed in the production
process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less applicable
variable selling expenses.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(14) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)
(ii) Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer or
the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer which
are not capitalised as inventory (see note 2(14)(i)),
property, plant and equipment (see note 2(4)) or
intangible assets (see note 2(8)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained
e.g. an incremental sales commission. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when
incurred if the costs relate to revenue which will
be recognised in a future reporting period and the
costs are expected to be recovered. Other costs of
obtaining a contract are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract or to
a specifically identifiable anticipated contract;
generate or enhance resources that will be used
to provide goods or services in the future; and
are expected to be recovered. Costs that relate
directly to an existing contract or to a specifically
identifiable anticipated contract may include direct
labour, direct materials, allocations of costs, costs
that are explicitly chargeable to the customer and
other costs that are incurred only because the
Group entered into the contract (for example,
payments to sub-contractors). Other costs of
fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised
as inventory, property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(14) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)
(ii) Other contract costs (Continued)

(14) GERAEMBENEAR (&)
(i) BE#HHAE (&)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of the contract cost
asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive in
exchange for the goods or services to which the
asset relates, less (ii) any costs that relate directly
to providing those goods or services that have not
yet been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue
to which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is set out
in note 2(23).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 L2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

—NFF+ZA=1—HIFFE

(15) Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 2(23)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets
are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2(10)(i) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 2(16)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue (see note 2(23)). A contract
liability would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see
note 2(16)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a
net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(16) Trade and other receivables

(16) B 5 K H b FE W IR

A receivable is recognised when the group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset (note 2(15)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses.

(17) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECls
in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(10)(i).

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and
cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(18) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction (net of tax) from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company's equity shareholders until
the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income
tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company's equity shareholders.

(19) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
(if any) measured in accordance with note 2(13)(i),
trade and other payables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(20) Bank and other borrowings

(20) SR 1T R E ftb & K

Bank and other borrowings are initially recognised at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Transaction
costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset
or financial liability, including fees and commissions
paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies
by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Bank and other borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Bank and other borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.

(21) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(21) Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(21) Income tax (Continued)

(21) FREH (&)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)

POLICIES (Continued)

(21) Income tax (Continued) (21)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)
(22) Employee benefits 22) EERA

(i) Retirement benefit costs (i) EkEFEE

Payments to defined contribution plans under
the mandatory provident fund scheme, the ORSO
scheme and state-managed retirement benefits
scheme are charged as expenses as they fall due.

(ii) Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit attributable
to the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

(iii)) Share-based compensation

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in share option reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the Hull White Trinomial Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(22) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged or credited to the income
statement for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share capital) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a)
when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits failing due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(23) Revenue recognition and other income (23) WA RHE MUY A
(i) Revenue recognition () WzmER

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received and receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods supplied
or service performed, stated net of rebates and
returns. The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group bases its
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estimates of returns on historical results, taking FF 26 VE B SR 7T o
into consideration the type of customers, the

nature of transactions and the specifics of each

arrangement.

Sales of products EmiE

Revenue from the sale of good directly to the
customers is recognised at the point that the
control of the inventory have passed to the
customers, which is primarily upon the acceptance
of the products by the customers. The customers
have full discretion over the products, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customers’ acceptance of the products. The Group
collects cash or bank acceptance notes from the
customers before or upon deliveries of products
through banks. Cash or bank acceptance notes
collected from the customers before product
delivery is recognised as contract liabilities (Note
2(15)).

Installation services income
Installation services income is recognised when the
relevant services are provided.

The Group's obligation to repair or replace faulty
products under the standard warranty terms, which
cannot be purchased separately and serve as an
assurance that the products sold comply with
agreed-upon specifications at the time of sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 L2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(23) Revenue recognition and other income (Continued)
(i) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018
(Continued)
Finance lease income

Interest income from the finance lease is
recognised on a basis that reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the net investment in the
finance lease.

Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 15, but has elected
not to restate comparative information. As a result,
the comparative information provided continues to
be accounted for in accordance with the Group's
previous accounting policy.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received and receivable.

Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of rebates
and returns. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria
have been met for the Group's activity as described
below. The Group bases its estimates of return on
historical results, taking into consideration the type
of customers, the nature of transactions and the
specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of products
Revenue from the sales of products is recognised

when significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the products are transferred to the customer,
the customer has accepted the products and
collectability of the related receivables is reasonably
assumed.
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A MR M ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(23) Revenue recognition and other income (Continued)
(i) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Continued)
Finance lease income

Interest income from the finance lease is

recognised on a basis that reflect a constant

periodic rate of return on the net investment in the

finance lease.

Other income

(a)

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in
advance from properties under operating
leases, is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the leases.

Handling and services income are recognised
when services are provided.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 2(10)(i)).

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established prior to the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(24) Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Leases of assets are classified as finance leases when
the leases transfer substantially all risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the assets to the Group. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

(i) Leases of land and buildings

Whenever necessary, in order to classify and
account for a lease of land and buildings, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

The land element is classified as an operating lease
unless title is expected to pass to the lessee by
the end of the lease term. The building element
is classified as a finance or operating lease in the
same way as leases of other assets. The payments
made on acquiring land held under an operating
lease are recognised in the statement of financial
position as leasehold land and land use rights
which are stated at cost and are amortised on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(24) Leases (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Leases of land and buildings (Continued)

If the lease payments on a lease of land and
buildings cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements at the inception of the
lease or the relevant lease transfers the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the land in
accordance with the criteria set out in HKAS 17,
the entire lease is classified as a finance lease,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease.

Finance leases

Lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
in the statement of financial position at amounts
equal to the fair value of the leased assets, or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease. The corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, on the finance leases are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. All assets held
under finance leases are classified as property,
plant and equipment, except for those properties
held to earn rental income which are classified as
investment property, in the statement of financial
position.

Depreciation and impairment losses are calculated
and recognised in the same manner as the
depreciation and impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment as set out in note 2(4), except
for the estimated useful lives cannot exceed the
relevant lease terms, if shorter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(24) Leases (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Finance leases (Continued)

Lessee (Continued)

Minimum lease payments are apportioned
between finance charge and the reduction of
the outstanding liabilities. The finance charge is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

Lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

Operating leases

Where the Group is the lessee, lease payments
under an operating lease are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease term. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases
are included in non-current assets and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited
to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the lease period. Contingent rentals are
charged as an expense in the periods in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEXRBE (£Z)
POLICIES (Continued)

(25) Dividend distribution (25) R E 9K

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.

(26) Segment reporting

(26)

HEFREDRENRAKRSEN
BRRKRBRREEAERERE R
MO D EEBIT EERRNK
RAE® LR - 55 L B AR
R#EMNTIRE  ERAREE

HRARAZAFABERRNER
MARTEFERNOUEIRT HK
B MR HREERNEEREIR
At - E2BREIRT R - $
HREERRERAREE:

DEWE
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment LENHRANMEREMERZE
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, AHEEZRE REHAMAEE
are identified from the financial information provided SRERBREZREMBHRESD

regularly to the Group’s top management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria. A discontinued segment is
separately presented from continuing segments.

#Al EEEBEREZSTREDRE
N SUIRNEE S E SR e
(CEACE VPSS At e

RHMBHEMS ARNERLED
MreREAE ELBEEELU
REFHREERLRGEE &£
ERENE FRBESER - AE
7 SHEE fn SR ER AR 7 2 R A MBS
EREME T EABBRCRIERIN -
I FEME B ERZEE D AT & KAD
it FAER - % F 2 E D B Al sk
SWBEAHE -RILEED B ER

x

BeELHENHIZY -

g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(27) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK dollars, which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency. All values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss, except
those arising from qualifying cash flow hedges
or qualifying net investment hedges which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities, such as equity instruments
held at fair value through profit or loss, are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(27) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii)) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group

entities (none of which has the currency of a

hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional

currency different from the presentation currency

are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the
translation reserve.

e SRR MIEE ()

—NFFZA=+—HIFE

2. FREHBEBE(E)

(27) SN ]E (&)

(iii) & [E 2\ 7]
ﬁéﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ“ﬂ(’\ﬁﬁi’ﬂ#
RERERBREARRZER)
ZHNEERRENNERE
%o HERBERMBMOR AR
THABRESEREE:

(i) BHBRARMAINEER

BEREEED Y WTE
R

+

(i) BUWARKHINWA KR
SEFHERBE (FRIE
S IERT AR M
MERBRNZ 5 B HER
EXRZRFEFE RIELR
BT A KR AR
RHBHZEXRBRE):
54
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 L2 =%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(27) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the year-end closing rate.

(28) Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(28) Related parties (Continued)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in note 2(28)(i).

A person identified in note 2(28)(i)(1) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.

e SRR MIEE ()

—NFFZA=+—HIFE

2. FREHBEBE(E)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 L2 =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(29) Research and development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense
as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects
(relating to the design and testing of new or improved
products) are recognised as intangible assets when the
following criteria are fulfilled:

(i) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

(i) management intends to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it;

(i) there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(iv) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset
will generate probable future economic benefits;

(v) adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period. Capitalised development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortised from the point at which
the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis over its
useful life.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group's financial
statements:

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(ii)  HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 46).

The following disclose the new accounting policies that have
been applied from 1 January 2018, where they are different
to those applied in prior years, and also explain the impact
of the adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and HKFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers on the Group's
financial statements.

The Group had to change its accounting policies and make
certain adjustments following the adoption of HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15.

HKFRS 9 was generally adopted without restating
comparative information with the exception of certain
aspects of hedge accounting. The Group used modified
retrospective approach while adopting HKFRS 9. The
reclassification and adjustments arising from the new
impairment rules are therefore not reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, but are recognised in the opening balances
on 1 January 2018.

The Group adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective approach which means that the cumulative
impact of the adoption (if any) will be recognised in retained
profits as of 1 January 2018 and that comparatives will not
be restated.

The adjustments are explained in more details below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)
The following table reconciles the closing loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKAS 39 as at 31 December
2017 with the opening loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018.

BN EERED (£)

TRINERZ=ZZE—+F+ZA=+—H
RREBSG AR FEINEE NI RE
BREMN-_Z-\F-—A—RHEKRA
B IR ERERE TN HVEERR
o

HK$000
FHET
Loss allowance as at 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+_A=+—HER
under HKAS 39 BERGHEREIN  BIEEE 159,372
Additional credit losses recognised RZFE-NF-A—BERLINL
as at 1 January 2018 on: EERE:
— Trade receivables —B 5 REWHKIE 2,073
— Other receivables — H b fE U FR IR 2,119
— Finance lease receivables — R E R ERIE 2,257
Loss allowance as at 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\F-A—BER
under HKFRS 9 ERVBMEERIFN 2 BHEREE 165,821

The following table summarises the impact of transition to
HKFRS 9 on retained profits and related tax impact as at 1
January 2018.

TREB TR -_ZE-N\F-HA—BBE
EFBY G HmEER B EREE N K
BRAMEAZTE-

HK$000
FET
Retained profits R F
Recognition of additional EMREMZBREEEE:
expected credit losses on:
— Trade receivables — 8B 5 kWA (2,073)
— Other receivables — E {th jE W 5008 (2,119)
— Finance lease receivables — e R E R EFHIB (2,257)
Related tax T IE 745
Non-controlling interests 1 IR e 515
Net decrease in retained profits RZE-NF—-—A—BRIZ
as at 1 January 2018 FAR B A (5,189)

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BitHEKEE (&)

(Continued)

The following table summarises the impact of transition to TERBETRZZE—N\F—A—H#E
HKFRS 15 on retained profits as at 1 January 2018: EEBUBREERE1HERE ER

=, 480
2R

HK$000
FET
Retained profits R &% F
Deferred revenue and profit recognition RZE—+F+H=+—H
for installation services not yet completed R RTH LR R
as at 31 December 2017 RN A K A (808)
Non-controlling interests 1 R T 48
Net decrease in retained profits RZE-NF—-—A—BRIZ
as at 1 January 2018 FAR 8 A (760)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=
ma

AR R AL (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The following table illustrates the impact to each line items

affected in current year by the adoption of HKFRS 9 and

HKFRS 15.

Consolidated statement
of financial position
(extract)

Assets
Trade and other receivables

Deferred tax assets
Finance lease receivables

Equity
Retained profits

Non-controlling
interests

Liabilities
Trade and other

payables

Contract liabilities

RAEMBRRE
(%)

BE

B 5 & E Al e WA
BIEREBE

A BB EFIE

R
R 58 i

RS

aE
B9 LAEMEN KA

AMER

31 December

2017

as previously

reported
—E—tF
t=A
=t+-AH
RERRSE
HK$000
TFET

923,611
29,518

117,437

(394,223)

(211,645)

(928,635)

BRRERES (&)

AWTEXRFAASESEHRERABNEE
ERFEIRME B EREERNEIWR
REBMBHREENE ISR ITE -

Effect of Effect of

adoption of  adoption of

HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15

RWERHME BHEBENE

wmEER BEER
BIHR 2 FISHZE

HK$'000 HK$°000

FrEr FET

(4,192) (808)

745 -

(2,257) -

5,189 760

515 48

- 68,840

- (68,840)

1 January
2018
as restated

—E-N\E§
—A—H
R
HK$'000
FET

918,611

30,263

115,180

(388,274)

(211,082)

(859,795)

(68,840)

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEBEEE (£Z)
(Continued)
(a) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

(a) BERUBHREEUNFIR[EWMT

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces the provisions
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement, that relate to the recognition,
classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial
instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting.

There is no impact on the Group’s accounting for
financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss and the
Group does not have any such liabilities which are
subject to HKFRS 9.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018 resulted
in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to
the amounts recognised in the financial statements. In
accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
9, comparative figures have not been restated as the
Group does not have any hedge instrument.

As a result, the adjustments arising from the new
impairment rules are not reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, but are recognised in the opening balance of
consolidated statement of financial position as at 1
January 2018.

]
FEEMBHRELANESR BT
B BREFB G ERFEI95 [/
TH HEIANFGEINRE Lk
BEEMERABZER DBM
AR URERIEERERTA S/
BEME P ZBEGEE-

HABAEESRABLBEERNY
2 ARFERERIAZEBREAT
BEAABRaNESREBEZFE
AEBRETAMBEHEZEREY
B & ZAEIRARR -

H-T—NF—A—BBRRANE
B REERFORATERMES
BUR B R AESENYHREP
BR-BEBEEBUIERELERIFIR
RRBEMRT LB ERE AR
BIMNFE ARAKERAEM
HHpTH-

E bt - A FTRE R A S| R AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(a) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses the expected
credit losses associated with its financial assets on a
forward looking basis. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

The Group has trade receivables for sales of products
and finance lease receivables that are subject to the
new expected credit loss model, and the Group was
required to revise its impairment methodology under
HKFRS 9 for these receivables.

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS
9 to measure the expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables
and finance lease receivables from initial recognition.
To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
and finance lease receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the aging days.
This resulted in an increase of the loss allowance on 1
January 2018 by HK$4,192,000 for trade receivables
and HK$2,257,000 for finance lease receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirement of HKFRS 9, no impairment
loss was identified.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(a) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement
From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss, and

e  those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the Group’s business

model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

3. BFfBERE(£)

(a) BERUBHREEUNFIR[EWMT
Bl (#&)
B BRI E
R-_ZF-NF-A—HE XEH
RESREERBR/UATHER
Al

o HERBRAVEESARMEZE
Wak sl st AtRaE A
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(a) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9), the Group’s management has assessed which
business models apply to the financial assets held by the
Group and has classified its financial instruments into
the appropriate HKFRS 9 categories.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

3. EFBEREE (£

() ERAMBHRELERUFSN[EMT

Al (#&)

PEREE (E)
R-F—N\F—A—-BEEMHR
SEAESR 2 MR EM A ) A&
BEEECHEAKEMFERE
EMEAZEHEN TEHES
BTADBEAAENETEVERE
R ZEIR AR -

31 December

2017 1 January
as previously  Reclassification 2018
reported (Note A) as restated
—B-tf —E-N\fF
+=A=+-H ENSE -A-H
RERRSE (HitA) R
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Available-for-sale financial assets A EESHEE
- Unlisted equity investment* —REMRREE - - -
Financial assets at fair value through %2 P EE A H b
other comprehensive income 2ENEZEREE
- Unlisted equity investments* - K ETRRRE! - - -
*  Fully impaired as at 31 December 2017 * O RIE—LEFEFTZA=t+—HEZ
R E
# Fair value of the unlisted equity investments approximates ! RZF-N\F—A—HB REm#E
to their carrying value which is a nil balance as at 1 BIREZ A FEERAKRES M
January 2018. Ky Y R EREE o
Note: Wt et -
(A) Reclassification of available-for-sale financial assets to (A HRAIEHESREEENHAER

financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income — unlisted equity investments.

The Group elected to present change in the fair value of
its equity investments (previously classified as available-
for-sale financial assets) in other comprehensive income
as they are long-term and strategic investments that are
not expected to be sold in the short to medium term.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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AFEEFAEBEEKREZ S
BE-RLMERKRE-

AEBZEERAFEEZEHNE
EERE2 I EERRE BT
DERAIHLESREE) AR
Ty RE R R AR A - SR
BHATEHE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(b) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 from 1 January 2018,
which resulted in changes in accounting policies. In
accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
15, the Group has adopted the modified retrospective
approach for transition to the new standard. Under this
approach, (i) comparative information for prior years
is not restated; (ii) the date of the initial application
of HKFRS 15 is the first day of the annual reporting
period in which the Group first applies the requirement
of HKFRS 15, i.e. 1 January 2018; (iii) the Group
recognises the cumulative effect of initial application
of HKFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits in the year of adoption, i.e. as at 1
January 2018; and (iv) the Group elects to apply for
the new standard only to sales contracts that are not
completed as at 1 January 2018.

Following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the date of initial application:

3. BFfBERE(£)

(b) BEERMBREERNBISHK[RAT

FE# iz

AEBR -_Z—N\F—HA—BERH
BEVBHRSEREISH EHE
SARREEY -REFEMHERS
ERFISENBRERTE  NEE
RATEEEBWE (ERMERDN
BE-EEEBH AT WVRR2E
SILE B R (DB REREEMB
BEEAFISFNEHRAEEE
FBRE AW HRELENFISHE
RKzFEEREHNE—K - BI=-F
—NFE-A—B: (i EEERE
RIERE BB HmEER B 155 1F
RABRE_ZT-\F—A—RHZZ
SRR EREENZ B Mv)
AEBEERRENRABAR-F
—N\F-A—BRATKRIIHES
e

RAGBERBRERBZEHREMTH
MAERNEERNSEELATHA
B’

HKAS 18 HKFRS 15

carrying amount carrying amount

BEETHER BEANBHREER

#1882 E15%2

REESHE REESHE

31 December 1 January

2017  Reclassification 2018

ZB-tF ZB-N\E

+=A=+-H EXNIE -A—-H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THET THET

Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNFIE 928,635 (68,840) 859,795
Contract liabilities AHNEE - 68,840 68,840
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEBEES (£Z)

Disclosure of the estimated impact on the amounts
reported in respect of the year ended 31 December
2018 as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1
January 2018.

The following tables summarise the estimated impact
of adoption of HKFRS 15 on the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018, by comparing the amounts reported under HKFRS
15 in these consolidated financial statements with
estimates of the hypothetical amounts that would have
been recognised under HKAS 18 if those superseded
standards had continued to apply to 2018 instead
of HKFRS15. These tables show only those line items
impacted by the adoption of HKFRS 15:

(Continued)
(b) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (b) EBUBREEAEISHE[REE
(Continued) EE&#zWzl (&)

R-T—N\F—-A—BRNETEM
BREEREISHEHEHE—FT N
FH-_A=Z=T-HLEFEIRERE
MR EWE -

TRBBYHILESVBHRRPIRR
ERVBHRELENFB1SHBEND
BEEB G ERIE 18R R
B BREReR (RREMGEE
AR - NFEEER Mk
EBMGRELERIF155R) ELR
TEAEMBRELEREISKAEK
MEAEBEHEE-_T—N\F+=A
=t—HIEFEFEMBRRHOMGE
ARE EURREINTERAE
AU BHREERFEISRTZENIR
B :

Difference:
Amounts Estimated impact
reported in Hypothetical  of adoption of
accordance with  amounts under HKFRS 15
HKFRS 15 HKAS 18 on 2018
R2018EfE 5t
RREBHE BRREER RRAEERE
REZBFEISE S EAFISE  REERFEISH
REZSE REZEE EREvHE
(A) (B) (A) - (B)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
Line items in the consolidated BE-Z-N\&§
income statement for the year +ZB=+—-HL
ended 31 December 2018 EERABEBHE
impacted by the adoption of REZBFEISEHUES
HKFRS 15: WERkEFE2ER:
Revenue /ON 2,682,452 2,683,705 (1,253)
Gross profit ER 437,158 438,411 (1,253)
Operating profit BERF 76,987 78,240 (1,253)
Profit before tax BRBLATERF 108,219 109,472 (1,253)
Taxation 8 (19,467) (19,605) 138
Profit for the year RERF 88,752 89,867 (1,115)
Profit attributable to equity ARATRREBEA
shareholders of the Company PSR 74,052 75,106 (1,054)
Farnings per share BREF
— Basic (cents) —ERCEW) 9.36 9.49 (0.13)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. SHEKEE (£F)

(Continued)
(b) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (b) EBMBEREERNEISHIREE
(Continued) BEa#zWkE] (&)
Difference:
Amounts Estimated impact
reported in Hypothetical ~ of adoption of
accordance with  amounts under HKFRS 15
HKFRS 15 HKAS 18 on 2018
R2018E f& 5t
BRREBHE BEREER RRAEBRE
WEEBEISYE  SFEAE18Y  REEREISH
BEZEE BREZEE ERvEE
(A) (B) (A) - (B)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETL FET
Line items in the consolidated BE-Z-N\%
statement of comprehensive +=ZA=+-R1L
income for the year ended 31 FERRBERYE
December 2018 impacted by the REZAFISHEEE
adoption of HKFRS 15: 2ENEREFEL
ER:
Total comprehensive income AEXEKBREE
for the year 41,501 42,578 (1,077)
Total comprehensive income KATREREA
attributable to the equity EE2HREAR
shareholders of the Company 32,900 33,956 (1,056)
Line items in the consolidated RZE-N\&§
statement of financial positonas +=A=+—-B#&#A
at 31 December 2018 impacted by ~ FBHBREER
the adoption of HKFRS 15: FEISHHGRENE
RRREFEZER:
Deferred tax assets BEREHBEEE 26,419 26,285 134
Total non-current assets BEFRHEE 820,488 820,354 134
Trade and other receivables o REMEKIE 934,171 935,382 (1,211)
Total current assets BRBEE 1,911,205 1,912,416 (1,211)
Trade and other payables B REMEMNFE (792,545) (858,868) 66,323
Contract liabilities BHER (66,323) - (66,323)
Total current liabilities BrEas (1,280,921) (1,280,921) -
Net assets FEE 1,400,285 1,401,362 (1,077)
Reserves e (557,303) (558,380) 1,077
Total equity attributable to equity A2XFREZFA
shareholders of the Company BHEREZAE (1,183,569) (1,184,625) 1,056
Total equity ERAE (1,400,285) (1,401,362) 1,077
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ETtBXER (£)

(Continued)

(b) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (b) EEMBRELEAUFISHEIREE

(Cont/nued) Fé%’\]ZU&IﬁJ (/ég)

Difference:

Amounts Estimated impact

reported in Hypothetical ~ of adoption of

accordance with  amounts under HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 HKAS 18 on 2018

R2018Ef& 5t

BREBME BERREEE RRABRYE
BERAE15E  SFERFE18HE  HEEHE1H
REZER REZEH ERv¥E

(A) (B) (A) - (B)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Line items in the reconciliation of BZ-ZE-N\F
profit before taxation to +=A=+-H
cash generated from operations for RAE B BHRE
the year ended 31 December 2018 2RI SE155 BB A1 E A
impacted by the adoption of HREEHELEZRHER
HKFRS 15: F¥E2ER:
Profit before taxation BR 3 Bl K 108,219 109,472 (1,253)
Increase in trade and B 5 HE fhEYRIBE M
other receivables (60,188) (58,935) 1,253
The significant differences arise as a result of the LTHREEFRENELMEELEZ
changes in accounting policies described above. BERER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(b) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(Continued)

Contract liabilities are recognised when the payment
is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier),
if customers pay consideration, or have a right to an
amount of consideration that is unconditional, before
the Group transfers goods or service to the customer.

As the date of initial application, installation service
component not yet provided in the contracts of sales
of machinery had been recognised with corresponding
adjustment of approximately HK$760,000 and
HK$48,000 on opening retained profits and non-
controlling interests respectively.

As a result, other than certain reclassifications of
contract liabilities, the adoption of HKFRS 15 did not
result in any material impact to the financial statements
as the timing of revenue recognition on sales of
products is not changed.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS
The assumptions, estimates and judgements are continually

evaluated and are based on historical experience and other

factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

()

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2(10). The recoverable amounts
of cash-generating units have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require
the use of estimates and assumptions. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of goodwill
and the impairment (if any) in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

3. BFBREH (&)

(b) BEEMBHREERNEISH[KAT

Fe#zkzs] (&)

B, X NREREE —HEGEMN
BAPERRE AIRAREREP
HEEB MRS 2B EX IR
FRIBEH (AR ERE) KHER
BHRE

RERERB #WEESRAIL
RINVBELZRIER - EHERIEEE
5 3l £760,0007 JT 1 B ¥ 1R &
i 1 %2 48,0008 LA FEIE AR i 2 2
ﬂq o

it BHENBENETHOE
S - R S EE fm 85 5 T AR K AR O B

B MRBEEM B REERE
155 BB P RREETMEKR

B2 488
A

4. EEGTHEE R HE

R bt RS TENZ IR E 2 £ 58
REMEAZETHGE BEESBERT
HEEEEZRREMHFIER -

()

B R (E 5
AEESFRBME200ME 2 &
ABRRAABERTAEMBEIE
ReEL Bz RE S BEEER
BEAEMET %FHHEBRA
ETAERRR - WEHSBEER
EEAAERER AZEBREY
EuMFTHREHHRHAZEHER
HERE (MA) 2 KEE:.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables and
finance lease receivables

For trade receivables and finance lease receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses as prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
requires the use of the lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables and finance lease receivables.
The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. A considerable
level of judgement is exercised by the directors when
assessing the financial condition and credit worthiness
of each customer.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong
Kong and the Mainland. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally
relate to allowance for doubtful debts and tax losses,
depends on the management’s expectation of future
taxable profits that will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

4. EEGTHEFRHE (&)

(i)

(iii)

ESRUEARBREEERKNE
AR

FhE 5 MUK IR K e M B B B R
B AREEAEEVHRE
FERIFE SRR E MBI A BEME
BEERHREE ZERAFRA
PEEZREFALRERRERE
REFEHNENEERE o R
BEBBERBLHERABRENER
REREEER ZBREL - RER
FHR ARERBEEABEES B
B T O5L B B HE ME A 5T - BB H T 1
HZEBRRLEZREFEZBA
R -BEENFBEBILEPHNE
BRREREBHFEL —EREN
2l

PR %
REBEHNE B RBE R
U -EEMSHZBERELE
BHE - NEBXBEER A&
BRFEETREREBZZERS R
SAETAL T HE - AKBEREE
EATR 7% 28 B P 5l BR AV B DB 75 T 2R
RBE - WMZREHAEREY S
BR/ZFEIR ABEHEEZERE
LT I 2 P S T SR T 7 R
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =%

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(iv) Provision for inventories

(v)

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of inventories
at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether the inventories are carried at lower of cost
and net realisable value in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(14). The directors
estimate the net realisable value based on the current
market situation and historical experience on similar
inventories. Any change in the assumptions would
increase or decrease the amount of inventories write-
down or the related reversals of write-down and affect
the Group's net asset value.

Provision for restructuring costs

The Group made the provision for restructuring costs
amounting to HK$52,956,000 based on assessment
of restructuring plan of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017. The restructuring plan aims at
reducing cost and enhancing operational efficiency. The
balance of the respective provision was HK$30,238,000
as at 31 December 2018 in accordance with HKAS
37, based on the estimation and judgement made by
management on the restructuring provision assessment.

e SRR MIEE ()

—NFFZA=+—HIFE

4. EEGTHEFRHE (&)

(iv) FE&HE

(v)

AEFEES—HFEALFETFEZ
FEEBE URTEBETERLILR
sz4%L +ﬁ MﬁK&T

ﬁ@ﬁﬁwﬁ Zﬁﬁmﬂﬁu&
KBTS REBRTFE EAR
5% 2 BRI G I8 I kR A 1 B MOR
B MRz AR WHEEEE
NEE EEMBEFE-

EAERRE
REBRBAEEEZMATEFTEHR
HE2017F12A31H L FEEE
E@Eﬁﬁz%6mm%ﬁo$@%
EEEREXRAMESELERE-
*ETJ%%%%#@E'J%W%'EQ_g
—N\FE+ZA=+—H8 ERER
BREMABEBELGETRAR B
8 & 48 & P 5 45 #2 /30,238,000
BT e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the amounts received and receivable for goods sold
to customers, less returns and discounts and interest
income from finance lease receivables during the year.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

BWARDEH®RE
(a) WA

WA TRENAEE 2 HER EF
NAREREENINEFPIHEER
R E N AT 2 B U K B WK IR
NEWREREREESE 2N B
AN AEBMZBADHT -

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —TEF
HKS$'000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Revenue WA

Sales of goods EmEE 2,645,710 2,420,204
Installation services for machinery A % 5 AR 75 4,594 -

Revenue from contracts with KERFE#HZWE
customers 2,650,304 2,420,204
Finance lease income RERE WA 32,148 26,644
Total revenue LUTA 2,682,452 2,446,848

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

WAZHE

TBRARBEEPANZHED TR

customers by major products is as follows: m
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trading of industrial consumables THHEERES 380,108 346,582
Sales of plastic processing products BRI RINTHEE 509,479 388,857
Sales of machinery MR iEE 897,297 896,153
Sales of printed circuit boards Il 45 3%t 58 & 858,826 788,612
Installation services for machinery A 22 3 R 7% 4,594 -
2,650,304 2,420,204

The timing of revenue recognition of all revenue from
contracts with customers is at a point in time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARDEHKE (£2)
(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (b) DWW/ E

The Group manages its business by a mixture of
both business lines and geographical location. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s top management
for the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the Group
has identified, on a product basis, the following four
reportable segments.

(1) trading of industrial consumables;

(2) manufacturing of plastic processing products;
(3) manufacturing of machinery; and

(4) processing and trading of printed circuit boards.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's top
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
that segment. For example, segment assets may include
inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of
the consolidation process, except to the extent that
such intra-group balances and transactions are between
group entities within a single segment. Inter-segment
pricing is based on similar terms as those available to
other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets that are
expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets and corporate expenses.

ANEERHEER MR B R E R
¥B-REIFERZERSAH
RETFEESLEEERETHS
MzRARDEERANISHREE —
B AREBRBEREE  BEBIU
THBEZHHHE -

(1) IXHEREMRE

(2) EFLBH@MEML:

(3) HEMEE:
iz

(4) HRIARBERMTKRE S -
DEEE BERER/
E?TE"*B%%J"E& fic & fE & IR

CEENSRITHREREBREIN
T%/‘iﬁk 2R RBE —ADE®RD &
ZEE BENMABE:

DEBA T EE BERAE
BR-—EASMEEKEEZEE M
R aBEERMABOR A2
HE Pl pAEERBREFE
JEWE BRI - WS R ikt o
DEE S BENRBBEESE
ARAREEHBIEEEARAER S
ERYHE(HNEAREBRE L —
BB ATEESE - UL FREA R E)
RERER S I ERNREREE—
DEAELEE - AERIGR - D BB 2
EEDABUEMINAA LR
R ERE

DEEARFZTIEA BRI £ 8
— (AR L2 MEEMELZ
N

AOEEBTEBESRMEEESR
ENEEER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z2 —F—F+=-A=+—HILFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December

5. WARD#®SE (&

(b) DE®/E (&)

DEREE BEREE (&)

BE_ZT-\F+ZA=+—HIL

2018 are as follows: FEZOHEENT :
Plastic Printed
Industrial  processing circuit Other
consumables products  Machinery boards  operations Eliminations Consolidated
EEHG
I¥H#ER EiI BH  ORSER Hfh&E 5 g8
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$ 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FE7 FET FET TET
REVENUE KA
External sales HMEE 380,108 509,479 901,891 858,826 32,148 - 2,682,452
Inter-segment sales (ote) PEREE (Hit) 19,174 214 3,257 - - (22,645) -
Total revenue B 399,282 509,693 905,148 858,826 32,148 (22,645) 2,682,452
Segment results AEE 2,988 33,173 30,142 28,493 20,307 - 115,103
Unallocated corporate RANRZ
expenses TrEER (38,116)
Operating profit g2RA 76,987
Finance costs BBER (21,856)
Investment income RERA 4,938
Share of results of associates ~ [E{EHE B AR %EE 1,658
Gain on disposal of HE-RNEAA
a subsidiary LB 44,588
Gain on deregistration of dE-ERBAR
a subsidiary LB 1,904
Profit before tax BRBETE N 108,219
Taxation WA (19,467)
Profit for the year RERA 88,752
Note: Bia:

Inter-segment sales are determined at prevailing market rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARDIHE (£
(Continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (Continued) (b) /L (&)

DE¥E BERAME (#)
R-ZZE-N\F+ZRA=+—B2Z%

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December

2018 are as follows: HEENMABBWT:
Plastic Printed
Industrial ~ processing circuit Other
consumables products  Machinery boards  operations Consolidated
I% EEER )
HER EmT i BER Hitt&E &E
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT

ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEHEE 243,994 380,061 1,004,837 561,376 402,910 2,593,178
Interests in associates e RAER 31,139
Unallocated corporate assets KPR L¥EE 107,376
Consolidated total assets GREEBE 2,731,693
LIABILITIES &f
Segment liabilities NHBE 55,695 156,608 463,458 200,024 36,725 912,510
Current tax payable REENTIE 5,732
Borrowings EE 384,238
Unallocated corporate liabilities  RAIA Bz t281E 28,928
Consolidated total liabilities BEERE 1,331,408
OTHER INFORMATION HiEH
Capital additions BN 1,742 29,973 11,381 7,937 1,193 52,226
Depreciation and amortisation ~ 47% [ # 44 2,069 15,629 22,699 26,194 5,539 72,130
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance RZEHRE (EE),/

for impairment of bad and B

doubtful debts (10) 194 (2,691) (2,146) (4,985) (9,638)
Other non-cash expenses HEt R e B 7,869 46 5,286 - - 13,201
Restructuring provision reversed — E 41 # {0 - - (19,612) - - (19,612)
Share of results of associates B E DT EE - - 2,348 - (690) 1,658
Interest income FISWA 171 857 1,113 75 1,387 3,603
Finance costs BEER 373 5,077 10,461 986 4,959 21,856
Taxation BE 5,127 5,006 2,039 3,350 3,945 19,467
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARZH®ESE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (Continued) (b) oEHE (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEFEE EEREE (&)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December HE-ZT—tHF+=-A=+—HLt
2017 are as follows: FEZOMEHEDAT
Plastic Printed
Industrial processing circuit Other
consumables products Machinery boards operations  Eliminations  Consolidated
i G
T¥ERR RiT R ERIERR EfnEiE iz Fa

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET

REVENUE KA
External sales HMEE 346,582 388,857 896,153 788,612 26,644 - 2,446,848
Inter-segment sales (ote) PEREE (Hit) 22,310 934 6,724 - - (29,968) -
Total revenue B 368,892 389,791 902,877 788,612 26,644 (29,968) 2,446,848
Segment results AHEE 16,154 (14,495) 52,423 17,866 1,776 - 79,724
Unallocated corporate RANRZ

expenses TtEER (16,375)
Operating profit EE gl 63,349
Finance costs BBER (20,483)
Investment income REWA 3,736
Share of results of associates ~ [E{EHE B AR EE 3,324
Profit before tax BB ATER 49,926
Taxation R (6,076)
Profit for the year RERT 43,850
Note: Bt it -
Inter-segment sales are determined at prevailing market rates. DEEHERRITMGEREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December

2017 are as follows:

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in associates
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Current tax payable
Borrowings

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION

Capital additions

Depreciation and amortisation

Allowance for impairment of
bad and doubtful debts

Other non-cash expenses

Restructuring provision reversed

Share of results of associates

Interest income

Finance costs

Taxation

EE
NHEE
BELAEE

AAPRZEREE

af
AHAE
RBEMATE

&R

AUSRZE%EE

Hipas
BREM
RERER
REFAERE

EFREER
BRABR A
ElrEEARRE
MBHA
HHER

HE

Industrial
consumables
I%

HER

HK$ 000
FET

259,191

58,056

840
1,841

(820)
509

826
983
3,887

Plastic
processing
products
pigick:
EiT
HK$'000
TAT

342,910

150,392

12,968
11,216

(1,359)
(1,619)

1,005
6,303
(260)

WARDEB®RE (&)

(b) 2HB|RE (42)
TEEE BEEREBE (F)
R_E—tF+_A=+—H2ZH

N

HEELBEWT:
Printed
circuit Other
Machinery boards operations  Consolidated
EDR
2 RER Hf 2@ &a
HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT
1,074,152 566,900 429,976 2,673,129
32,369
65,161
2,770,659
531,290 224,493 23,964 988,195
7,622
428,419
54,284
1,478,520
7,964 34,131 2,469 58,372
21,899 26,724 4,784 66,464
1,228 799 6,227 6,075
3,510 - - 2,400
(31,101) - - (31,101)
2,425 - 899 3,324
642 216 770 3,519
8,467 586 4,144 20,483
(6,725) 5,144 4,030 6,076
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5.

(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)
Geographical information
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong,
other regions in Mainland, other Asia-Pacific countries,
North America and Europe. The Group's trading of
industrial consumables division is located in Hong Kong
and Mainland. The manufacturing of plastic processing
products, machinery and printed circuit boards divisions
are located in Mainland.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
sales by geographical market:

WARDEB®RE (&)

(b) DEFRE (&)
W EER

REBENEBLNEE A - HAb
TBARBEEK b FZM LB - A& H
ZIXHBERMBEDERUREER
PRI A o JE B R M RN T -
ENR AR BE 1R - BUE R BRI R A

o

THIE DA SR B i E AR R T

B2

Sales revenue by

geographical market

RETHE D ZHERA

2018 2017

—EF-N\F —T—EF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Hong Kong BE 605,023 586,964
Mainland A 3 1,795,177 1,639,852
Other Asia-Pacific countries HfthTo KE K 201,449 155,700
North America b =M 10,066 14,526
Europe B 70,737 49,806
2,682,452 2,446,848
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group's fixed
assets, goodwill and intangible assets (“specified non-
current assets”), and additions to property, plant and
equipment, analysed by the geographical area in which
the assets are located:

5. WARDH®ESE (&)

(b) ABHE (&)
HMEER (&)
AEENETEE HEREFE
E(ETHERBDEE) RVE KR

BB EAEE AT :

Specified

Non-current assets

Additions to
property, plant

and equipment

EEFRBDEE MHE- BERRBZIER
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\E T+t ZB-N\FE —E—+#F
HKS$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET FHET
Hong Kong BB 196,967 200,873 2,508 494
Mainland A 521,512 548,644 49,718 57,878
718,479 749,517 52,226 58,372

Information about major customers TEEEFHNER

No customer of the Group has individually accounted
for over 10% of the Group's total revenue during
the year (2017: Nil) and no information about major
customers is presented accordingly.

AEEHBEENEFEAREFA

WA 4EE810%

T —tF )

BA BN ETERPEHR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6. HttMARWEFEE
2018 2017
—E-NE Sl
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt it FET FHET
Other income Hig A
Unused provision for ElEABANEHRREE
restructuring reversed 29 19,612 31,101
Gross rental income from I E YL P ey
properties and equipment 2,566 1,319
Handling, tooling and sales of &2 THERERHEE
scrapped materials 4,429 5,533
Government grants BT 48 B 11,230 7,154
Sundry income HAp g A 8,118 12,136
45,955 57,243
Gains/(loss), net W/ (B8B)FE
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - HEREHE
plant and equipment Z & 446 57
Exchange (loss)/gain, net ER (B1E) /B FaE (1,199) 713
Gain on disposal of available- HERHEESHEE
for-sale financial assets pp - 3,389
Loss and damage from typhoon, & %18 %k 3K (R B (E
net of insurance recovery* - (17,562)
(753) (13,403)
45,202 43,840
*  This amount represented the loss incurred for the fixed assets WS ERRRE-—EFENARRA
scrapped, inventories damaged, other operating overheads for HIKEMEEX 2 BIEEX  HhaiE
major relevant repairs, etc. net of insurance claims as a result EEEEER FEBEURBEHERXN
of the typhoon damage to the production plant in Zhuhai in BEZEMAYSE BERBREEZF
2017. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

FINANCE COSTS 7. BWKER
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Interest on: ATIEEEEMNFE:
Bank borrowings wholly repayable AREFANEEZ
within 5 years HRATE R 21,650 20,301
Finance leases REMEE 206 182
Total interest expense on WIR AT EEFEZBB
financial liabilities not at fair value BamseomaEr
through profit or loss BHE T H 21,856 20,483
INVESTMENT INCOME 8. BEIWA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+tF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Bank interest income |ITH B A 3,603 3,519
Total interest income on financial WIkERFEBFEZBB
assets not at fair value through BRsemEEY
profit or loss BF B IWA 3,603 3,519
Realised gain on other financial assets Efth & gt & &= 2 B # 35 & 7 1,294 217
Unrealised gain on other HemEE L RERAN
financial assets 41 -
4,938 3,736
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. BR¥BEANZEF
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging/ PR AT A B2 Bk (B A) TFIFIE :

(crediting) the following:

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Staff costs (including directors’ BTN (REESHE)
emoluments)
— Salaries and other benefits —¥He kHMEF 401,547 360,756
— Retirement benefits scheme —RIRBAET B
contributions 40,365 35,482
Total staff costs 28 TRA 441,912 396,238
(Reversal of allowance)/allowances RIBIRRE (B8), BiE
for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts (9,638) 6,075
Auditors’ remuneration 1% ELRD BN &
— Group auditor — S Bz B R 2,480 2,380
Surplus on revaluation of BRMESHARK
properties held for own use (915) (179)
Depreciation and amortisation on: e Ry
- Owned assets —BEEE 65,440 60,878
— Assets held under finance leases —RMEHEEE 976 410
— Leasehold land held for own use —REREHEFEZ
under finance leases HE L 2,980 2,414
— Leasehold land and land use rights ~ —Ffl& £ 4 & £ 3o {5 F i 1,350 1,379
— Intangible assets —-mEE 1,384 1,383
Research and development expenditure #f 2% & 17,018 12,225
Exchange loss/(gain), net EREE(BF)FHE 1,199 (713)
Operating lease payments KERENR - T RETF
- Land and buildings 21,854 21,890
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 10. EEN{EEM <

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM<
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the Listing BB R Em R AR (R E
Rules and section 383(1) of the Companies Ordinance ) 25383(1)& - ME D2 Aa]
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information (BAREZNmHERIRE) RO -
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows: EEHeHELT:
2018
—E-N\F
Retirement
Salaries benefits
Directors’ and scheme
Name of Directors fees allowances contributions Total
EEpg EEHe FeREE EBAGTEMR #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Tang To HELEE 195 2,538 109 2,842
Mr. Wong Yiu Ming =R E 260 9,583 31 10,154
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman BRLE - 4,427 18 4,445
Mr. Mei Zhegi (note) BEREE (72) - 551 5 556

Non-Executive Directors FHiTEE

Mr. Kan Wai Wah BEELE 60 - - 60
Mr. Ho Wei Sem MEREE - - - -
Independent non- BUFHTEE
executive Directors
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan BRFE T 168 - - 168
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin BEBEXE 60 - - 60
Mr. Qu Jinping BEeTkAE - - - =
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei BEERREEE - - = =
Total st 743 17,099 443 18,285
Note it
Mr. Mei Zheqi has been appointed as an executive director BEEAEEZTANTES BE-F
with effect from 28 August 2018. —NENAZTNBER-
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

During the year, Mr. Ho Wei Sem, Mr. Qu lJinping and
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei declined to receive emoluments
voluntarily.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Group (including the Company). The
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services as directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries. The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services
as directors of the Company.

During the year, no emolument was paid by the Group
to any of the directors of the Company as inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

10. EEREEMS (£2)

(a)

BExMeE (&)
AERLE - BEFREREESE
TEERFRNEBNERIENE -

tRARTEEME R RFRMHET
BARRRAKEEHERZ RS
M3t B IFARTESTHE K
SERARAXEMNBRAZES
R IR M S 5 o Ll B2 IE]AT
EEMeETERRFER/ARAE
ERHERB A

RAFE  AEEHERTMNAR
AEEXNME UERBSIRKRE
PIAK IRA AR BB 2 8 s 1
RBERAEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

10. EEREEMS (£2)

(a) E=M= (&)

2017
—E—+F
Retirement
Salaries benefits
Directors’ and scheme
Name of Directors fees allowances  contributions Total
TEMNH FERE  HeLERE RAGEHEX mE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T#r T TET
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Tang To HELE 725 1,124 108 1,957
Mr. Wong Yiu Ming HERBPLE 1,372 3,399 274 5,045
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman HaLE 579 1,625 18 2,222
Non-Executive Directors FH#HTEE
Mr. Kan Wai Wah BRTEL A 60 - - 60
Mr. Ho Wei Sem MRAREE - - - -
Independent non- BUHHTEE
executive Directors
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan RS+ 168 - - 168
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin EEBEEE 60 - - 60
Mr. Qu Jinping BEeFEE - - - -
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei BEEERE - - - -
Total et 2,964 6,148 400 9,512

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
year.

REANYBEEEZHRKFABNES
] B & 2 2 BF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 10. EEREEME (&)

(Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b)
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, three are currently directors of the
Company. The emoluments of the remaining two
individuals, who are also senior management of the
Group, are as follows:

BEME
AEBEREEERMEEMNAL H
FZRBERARAEST HRIMA
AT (FAAREERRERE) BB
T

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits e hkHMER 7.267 4,103
Retirement benefits scheme RIKTEFIFT B3R

contributions 146 106

7,413 4,209

The emoluments of the two individuals for the entire
year were within the following bands:

MEANTEFEFHFIMEBELT

Number of employees

EI#®A
2018 2017
—E-N\HE —E—+F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T %2,000,0005% 7T = 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000  2,000,001% 7T % 3,000,0005% 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000  4,000,001% 7T %2 5,000,0005% 7T 1 -
2 2

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

11. TAXATION

In March 2018, the Hong Kong Government introduced
a two-tiered profits tax rate regime by enacting the
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No.3) Ordinance 2018 (the
“Ordinance”). Under the two-tiered profits tax rate regime,
the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of qualifying
corporations is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable
profits at 16.5%. The Ordinance is effective from the year of
assessment 2018-2019.

Accordingly, the provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the
year ended 31 December 2018 is calculated in accordance
with the two-tiered profits tax regime (2017: a single tax
rate of 16.5% was applied). Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing
in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based on
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

1. H1E

—E-N\F=R FABTEA[2018F
A (BaT) (FB35%) &6 (HERT 1K
BI1) 3l F 15 /RS R FIS R
MAH BEBARNE B BLE
SRR R R 58.25% M &k T K FERT
HREBA16.5% « ZIEFTIEH B —F
—NEZZE-NEBFERER-

At Bz —N\F+-_A=+—H
EFENBRENGHBEDBREFSH
MARHAE (S —tF ERAE XK
16.5% ) o E il b 5 & SR T 0m | 2 T 18 T)
REAEBRLEMEREER ZIRITE
Bl -2EREMNGTEREK-

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—1F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax AEAT IR
Hong Kong profits tax EARNEH
Current year REE 1,601 1,381
Over-provision in prior years TFEZIR (105) (59)
1,496 1,322
Overseas tax BINELIE
Current year REE 20,203 10,996
(Over-provision)/under-provision FTEE(ZR) DR
in prior years (3,442) 1,390
16,761 12,386
Deferred tax EERIE
Deferred taxation relating to the FAEREZEEEAR (PE) 2
origination and (reversal) of EIEFRTE (K 7E23)
temporary differences (note 23) 1,210 (7,632)
19,467 6,076
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rE B RERME (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

11. %\ (2&)
Kﬁl%ﬁmﬁﬂﬁuiﬁﬁ$éﬂﬂ
RRZ A RAELE B RS EE

11. TAXATION (Continued)
The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using

the domestic taxation rates applicable to profits of the ﬁZZD—F :
consolidated companies as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—+F
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Profit before tax B 58 B A 108,219 49,926
Tax calculated at the domestic income LARHETSFIE16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) —E—tF:165%)FHE 17,856 8,238
Tax effect of share of results of FEMREEE AR EEHBIE 2
associates me (273) (548)
Tax effect of expenses that are not 2T TE FE AR g A1 IRs 7]
deductible in determining HRRNATEHIE &
taxable profit 8,040 6,146
Tax effect of income that is not 2T TE JE AR i A IR S ZB A
taxable in determining RIRA IR 2 2 &
taxable profit (4,756) (2,345)
Under-provision/(Over-provision) of RNEFARMBIEREE
current tax in current year, net DR (%) F8E 67 (105)
(Over-provision)/Under-provision of BT EANEN AR
current tax in prior years, net (Z8R) /PiRFHE (3,547) 1,331
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible  {§ F B 4 R #ER 2 7] {15
temporary differences not ERMEEFBBEIZE
previously recognised (1,599) (4,540)
Tax effect of temporary differences/tax R 2 E |EE%§/7I‘FEIE
losses not recognised EEENE B 5,143 2,526
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses  {FABAERER 2 FIE
not previously recognised EHRzyE (4,041) (6,121)
Effect of different tax rates of EHEMBDEERLE 2
subsidiaries operating in other MEBARBEER &
jurisdictions 2,577 1,494
19,467 6,076

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BRER
The calculation of basic earnings per ordinary share is based RFEEEREBREABINDNIERNFE
on the Group's profit attributable to equity shareholders of RARAFREREAEBLEEENRFE
the Company divided by the weighted average number of NE T SRR D INETFHIEGTE -

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF

Weighted average number of ordinary AN FIIEGETE 2
shares in issue during the year AEEBEEITLREKRG 791,218,363 716,930,692
HK$'000 HK3$'000
FET FET

Profit attributable to the equity AKARBREFBEAZ
shareholders of the Company FEAG & T 74,052 27,284
HK cents HK cents
B JEN
Basic earnings per share TREREF 9.36 3.80
No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no HRAMEFEATEEERERIT2ER

potential ordinary shares in issue for both years. i FuE I 25| GREEER 8 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

13. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/INCOME ~ 13. ztﬁ#uqﬁﬁ%ﬁ@?ﬁZEf@%@ (X%
ity

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

Tax effects relating to each component of other

EREMEE (XH) Mhasa8n e

comprehensive (expense)/income are as follows: BB ENT
2018 2017
—E-N\E —Z—tfF
Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax  Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount expenses amount amount expenses amount
BRBE A NBRBE BBl nBHE
8  BEEA &8 ¢®  HEER S
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FAT FAT FET FET FET
Change in fair value of HNESHEEL
available-for-sale financial asset ATEEEY - - - (129) - (129)
Share of other comprehensive EEBENRALL
(expense)/income of associates 28 (TiH) /M (1,031) - (1,031) 1,956 - 1,956
Surplus on revaluation of properties ~ ERNEEHEH
held for own use 14,302 (2,817) 11,485 25,341 (4,101) 21,240
Exchange differences arising from REBNEBRRR
translation of financial statements EEZERES
of foreign operations (56,348) - (56,348) 74,040 - 74,040
Reclassification adjustments: PERER:
Release of translation reserve upon HE—RHB AR
disposal of a subsidiary BEAERAD 547 - 547 - - -
Release of translation reserve upon TH-ERBARR
deregistration of a subsidiary TEX R (1,904) = (1,904) - - -
Release of fair value reserve upon HETREESREER
disposal of available-for-sale RATEERERD
financial asset - - - (930) - (930)
(44,434) (2,817) (47,251) 100,278 (4,101) 96,177
14. DIVIDEND 14. R E
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$000 HK$°000
FiET FET
Proposed final dividend of EE AR ST R8I
HK$0.02 per share (2017: Nil) —E—tF | 17,239 -

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2018 is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold land

15. ¥ -BERKRE

held for own Buildings Furniture, Assets
use under held for ~fixtures and Plant and Motor under
finance leases own use equipment machinery vehicles  construction Total
RRERE
BEZHRA BR-%E
HEL# BRER SET BERRES RE ERIR BE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FiET FET FET
COST OR VALUATION RAGfE
At 1 January 2017 RZB—t§-A-H 75,650 331,167 186,402 617,232 32,535 - 1,242,986
Exchange realignment ERREE - 19,578 9,562 33,437 1,564 - 64,141
Additions hE - 378 10,150 45,250 2,243 351 58,372
Transfer to assets of disposal BEARARELEL
group classified as held HERRNEE (Hi36)
for sale (note 36) - (20,218) - - - - (20,218)
Disposals e - - (3,460) (30,018) (3,561) - (37,039)
Adjustment on revaluation EHAE 16,420 (5,504) - - - - 10,916
At 31 December 2017 and R-E-tF+=-A=t+-H
1 January 2018 k-E-N§¥-A-H 92,070 325,401 202,654 665,901 32,781 351 1,319,158
Exchange realignment EXAE - (13,928) (7,313) (22,955) (1,075) (268) (45,539)
Additions RE - 8,009 7,249 25,080 6,437 5,451 52,226
Disposals & - (36) (5,331) (14,553) (5,000 - (24,920)
Adjustment on revaluation BEEE - 1,384 - - - - 1,384
At 31 December 2018 R-B-N\%¥+-A=1+-AH 92,070 320,830 197,259 653,473 33,143 5,534 1,302,309
Analysis of cost or valuation: RALEEZ AT
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+-A=+-H
At cost BRAR - - 197,259 653,473 33,143 5,534 889,409
At valuation RIEEE 92,070 320,830 - - - - 412,900
92,070 320,830 197,259 653,473 33,143 5,534 1,302,309
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+=A=+-H
At cost RRAE - - 202,654 665,901 32,781 351 901,687
At valuation RIEEE 92,070 325,401 - - - - 417,471
92,070 325,401 202,654 665,901 32,781 351 1,319,158
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Leasehold land

15. ¥ BERRE (&)

held for own Buildings Furniture, Assets
use under held for fixtures and Plant and Motor under
finance leases own use equipment machinery vehicles  construction Total
RREHRE
BEZER G- £8
HELH BRER SET BERKES RE ERIR #fE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION, ~ R & - ##RHE
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2017 W=E-+5-A-H - - 158,238 439,076 27,300 - 624,614
Exchange realignment EXRE - 746 8,158 22,536 1313 - 32,753
Depreciation provided for the year ~ AEHER & 2,414 11,444 10,475 37,611 1,758 - 63,702
Written back on disposals HERRE - - (2,971) (25,879) (3333) - (32,183)
Eliminated on revaluation B 2414 (12,190) - - - - (14,604)
At 31 December 2017 and RZZF-+&+-A=+-H
1 January 2018 EZE-\E-HA-H - - 173,900 473,344 27,038 - 674,282
Exchange realignment ERREE - (714) (6,204) (15,344) (782) - (23,044)
Depreciation provided for the year ~ AEFER & 2,980 11,579 10,526 42,098 2,213 - 69,396
Written back on disposals HERRER - (12) (4,278) (13,624) (4,849) - (22,763)
Eliminated on revaluation EfhME (2,980) (10,853) - - - - (13,833)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=1-H - - 173,944 486,474 23,620 - 684,038
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NF+ZA=1-H 92,070 320,830 23,315 166,999 9,523 5,534 618,271
At 31 December 2017 WZE—+E+=Zf=1+-8H 92,070 325,401 28,754 192,557 5,743 351 644,876

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
The net book value of leasehold land held for own use under
finance leases held by the Group:

RES:
— s EIFE A4

In Hong Kong:
— under medium-term leases

15. ¥ -BERKRE (&)

AEERBEMEREZEREELY
FREDFENT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
92,070 92,070

The leasehold land and buildings of the Group were revalued
as at 31 December 2018 on the open market existing use
basis by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, independent firms
of professional valuers. The surplus arising on revaluation
attributable to the Group has been credited to the other
comprehensive income for the year and is accumulated
separately in equity in property revaluation reserve.

Depreciation expense of approximately HK$53,482,000
(2017: HK$45,697,000) has been expensed in cost of sales,
HK$900,000 (2017: HK$807,000) in selling and distribution
costs and HK$15,014,000 (2017: HK$17,198,000) in
administrative expenses.

Had leasehold land and buildings been carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortisation, the carrying
value of leasehold land and buildings would have been
approximately HK$316,547,000 (2017: HK$327,746,000).

The net book value of the Group’s plant and machinery
includes an amount of approximately HK$7,364,000 (2017:
HK$1,449,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases
(note 42).

HERTARAR B 2 EXLER)
RZE-NF+ZA=+—HB URT
REMBZERE SAKERE LR
BFETEG - FEMMELEZBRD
BARFEHMEEWANRBY R
MEE-HREN -

WE BB A53,482,0008 T (=F
— -+t % 145,697,000 ) B Wit AR
$H e A K - 900,000 7T ( —FE— L4
807,000/ 7t) M 5 §5 & A }15,014,000
BT (ZZE—+4F:17,198,000% 7T ) K
THRER-

RBRERFAE b RIEF AR AR R REHIT
EREN HELHREFZRITERA
BE494316,547,0008 L (ZE—+F:
327,746,000i8 7T ) °

AEBRER#EZ R FEBELRR
BHELHEZETEELXET,364,000/8
T ( ZZ—+4 : 1,449,000 7T ) (His:
42)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment with an aggregate cost of HK$52,226,000
(2017: HK$58,372,000) of which HK$8,004,000 (2017: Nil)
was acquired by means of finance leases. Cash payments
of HK$44,222,000 (2017: HK$58,372,000) were made to
purchase property, plant and equipment.

At 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s leasehold
land held for own use under finance leases and buildings
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$83,100,000
(2017: HK$83,100,000) and HK$69,114,000 (2017:
HK$70,638,000) respectively were pledged to secure certain
bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 42).

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES

(i) Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's properties measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

15.

16.

ME - BERRE (&)

FTEHFBEERS
REEAREBEBEBENE BRERXE
B 52,226,000 L (2T — 5
58,372,000/% Jt ) # £8,004,000/% 7T
(ZE—+tF - B)EZENFTUMERAE
BEXZH-MUARSEEDNE BE K
B R44,222,0008 T (ZE —+HF -
58,372,000/ 7T ) °

RZE—N\F+-_A=1+—H ' K&£EEE
ERTOHEREHEREcEREEL
& EF - HERME 5 Bl A£83,100,000
BT (ZF—+F:83,100,000% 7T )
}69,114,0008 L (=& —t &
70,638,000 7L) AR TASEEH
RITERZER (M5E42) ©

WA PREE

(i) DFEERE
TREVNNBEZEEAMFELRE
EmmEzAFEE LIRBEY
B EERFE 3% A FEEAE
FRREZ A FEE-BRETHE
MERAE - SAFEEAEDLR
ZERIVE2EM T EETT AR A
BB/ ABEERERHRET

E-EBEREE EERE-EBRE
ABE (AR ERRBEEESA
ERERM S 2 REHBERE)
BZRTVEE-

F_EBREEERAF_ERBA
g (ARBEEDE—ERZATE
R ABE BYREAERNTA
BREBAZB)FECAFEER-T
IBRGABBRENTSEEZE
ANBUR -

FZEXREE KAERTAERE
R EZ A FEE.



16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES

(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Recurring fair value
measurement of assets:

Leasehold land held for own
use under finance lease

Buildings held for own use

Recurring fair value
measurement of assets:

Leasehold land held for own
use under finance lease

Buildings held for own use

RENDTHE
HRAE:

ERARERAZ
ERBEL

BRET

BENATERE
FREE:

RRMEREREL
EREELTH

BRET

()

31 December
2018
R-B-N§
+=A=+-8
HK$000
FET

92,070

320,830

31 December 2017
RZE—tF
+-A=+—8
HK$'000

FET

92,070

325,401

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

16. MEAFEEFE (&)

DPEEES (&)

Fair value measurement at
31 December 2018 categorised into
R-B2-N\¥+-A=t-H

APEEHEEATHE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E—ER E-ER E=BR
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
- - 92,070
- - 320,830

Fair value measurement at
31 December 2017 categorised into
R_E—+F+-_A=+—H
AFEBESAEEATHE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F—ER E-ER FZEIR
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET FET

- - 92,070
- - 325,401
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES
(Continued)

()

(ii)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018,
there were no transfers into or out of level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

All of the Group's leasehold land held for own use
under finance lease and buildings held for own use
were revalued as at 31 December 2018. The valuations
were carried out by independent firm of professional
valuers, Cushman & Wakefield Limited, which is a
world-wide commercial real estate services firm with
recent experience in the location and category of
property being valued. The Group’s property manager
and the chief financial officer have discussion with the
valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuations are performed at the annual
reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

Valuation techniques

EER

Leasehold land held for (a)
own use under finance

Direct comparison approach

leases and buildings BEELBAHEE
held for own use

EREHERAZEAMEE (b
Ttk BRETF

Income approach

WA EE

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

16. WX LNFEEFE (&)

()

(i)

Unobservable input

TUERRE

(Discount)/premium on quality

AEEEEE (&)

RZE—+tFR_ZT—-NF+=A
=+ —HFERAWRBEREIE=
BASKREZEIEL -EHAF
BEAEER  EREE KR
REBZBE RMEEFEEBER-

EAEEZRERERA 2B
HELHREAEFR_F—N\F
TZA=+—RHETEMR -ZEM
TERBY o EXMBEM-BER
TERRAR (ERENEBEFHE
RBARUEREHE R EELR
FITHIERER) TR - RFERSE
B AEBsHMEEERERMH
REDCHRFEEMZBRR LG
SR EL Ak ERD T o

B-ZERLAFEEFEEHR

Range

EfE

-10% to 10%

of building

BTEEN (), HE

Capitalisation rate

BA®

-10%Z10%

4% t0 8.25%
4%%8.25%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES
(Continued)

(ii)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

(Continued)

(a)

The fair value of properties located in Hong Kong
is determined using direct comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis,
adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to
the quality of the Group’s properties compared
to the recent sales. The valuations take into
account the characteristic of the properties which
included the location, size, view, floor level, year
of completion and other factors collectively. Higher
premium for higher quality properties will result in
a higher fair value measurement.

The fair value of properties in the PRC is
determined using income approach by the
capitalisation of the net rental income derived
from the existing leases and/or achievable in
existing market with reversionary income potential
by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates.
Capitalisation is estimated by the valuer based on
the risk profile of the properties being valued. The
higher the rates, the lower the fair value. Prevailing
market rents are estimated based on recent lettings
within the subject properties and other comparable
properties. The lower the rents, the lower the fair
value.

16. WX ANFEEFE (&)

(i) £=

(a)

BRAFEEFEER (&)

NREBEBNMELZI A FEER
RERLBELIET EF
E2EALEMELHEEL
BYHTRREE ABRAEH
MELEFHAB-BETE
EBMMEZEL BREYE
i omE-SE-BE R
RED REMREZE  — 60
NEB-HRREEMENE
BERBHE FIAERHERS
ZRFEEFEHE-

EFENYEZ A FERAR
ARTEEREBEEERN X
BREMAOR,/ REHMTRR
RORKBEHNFHEHESRAE
K- BERCABEMZERE
E LN PSSR RS
= A HEEBE - RITHISHE
SRZMELBUNENE A/
misAEME - HEBE  QF
EEBE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M HRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES

16. WX LNFEEFE (&)

(Continued)
(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement (i) FE=BARAFEETFTEEN (&)
(Continued)
(b) (Continued) (by (#&)
The movements during the year in the balance FEZBRATEBEFENEE
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as REAFEERNZEBIT -
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Leasehold land held for own use EZMEREHFZEHEE
under finance leases: T
At 1 January n—A—H 92,070 75,650
Depreciation provided for the year ANFE T ERE (2,980) (2,414)
Surplus on revaluation EHAH 2,980 18,834
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 92,070 92,070
Buildings held for own use: BREF
At 1 January mn—HA—H 325,401 331,167
Additions NE 8,009 378
Exchange realignment E 5 (13,214) 18,832
Transfer to assets of disposal group BEDEAFELE 2
classified as held for sale HEMRR 2 EE
(note 36) (Ht7t36) - (20,218)
Depreciation provided for the year 7K4F [Z I & % 5 (11,579) (11,444)
Disposals H & (24) -
Surplus on revaluation S A% 12,237 6,686
At 31 December R+=A=+—n 320,830 325,401

Surplus on revaluation and currency adjustment of

leasehold land held for own use under finance leases

and buildings held for own use is recognised in other

comprehensive income in “property revaluation reserve”

and “translation reserve” respectively.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

17. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 17. HET R T AR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
COST R
At 1 January ®n—H—H 57,703 57,207
Exchange realignment E 5 (2,272) 3,105
Transfer to assets of disposal group EEHHEAFIELE 2
classified as held for sale (note 36) HEMRRIEE (H:136) = (2,609)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 55,431 57,703
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION E-4g £
At 1 January ®n—A—H 14,383 13,411
Exchange realignment JE W (573) 728
Transfer to assets of disposal group BESBEABELEZ
classified as held for sale (note 36) HEHAREE (Hit36) = (1,135)
Amortisation for the year NEF 1,350 1,379
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 15,160 14,383
NET BOOK VALUE REFE
At 31 December R+Z—A=+—H 40,271 43,320
At 1 January ®n—H—H 43,320 43,796

Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

17.

18.

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS
(Continued)

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net
book values are analysed as follows:

Outside Hong Kong held on:
f ERFE 4

Medium-term leases

EHEBASIMETA:

17. 0+t Rt EARE (&)

AREBRHEE LM KL REMEZR
TEEMEEREN R RERTFE
EafaoT:

2018 2017
—EB-N\%& e R =
HKS$000 HK$000
F#T FHET
40,271 43,320

At 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s leasehold
land and land use rights with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$3,644,000 (2017: HK$4,041,000) were

RZE—NEFE+_A=+—H K&EE
BRH (A 4 58 493,644,000/ 70 (T —+
F 14,041,000 T) B HEE L &

pledged to secure certain bank borrowings granted to the

Group (note 42).

THERECHERER FRETAKE
BRASRITERZER (FIFE42) ©

GOODWILL 18. &
HK$'000
FET
CoST R
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 R-—_ZE—+F—HF—H,
and 31 December 2018 —FE—+tF+-A=+—HBXK
- N\F+-_A=+—H 53,483
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT Z25HRE
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 R-_ZE—+H&—HF—H,
and 31 December 2018 —E—+F+-_A=+—H8BK
—E-N\F+=-A=+—H -
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF+=-_A=+—H 53,483
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=-_A=+—H 53,483

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

18. GOODWILL (Continued)

The amount represents goodwill arising from the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited
("KFE") in 2013. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill has been allocated to an individual cash generating
unit ("CGU"), representing KFE, a subsidiary in the
processing and trading of printed circuit boards segment.

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a pre-tax discount rate of
19.5% (2017: 18.7%) per annum. The cash flows beyond
that five-year period have been extrapolated using a steady
3% (2017: 3%) per annum growth rate. This growth rate is
based on the printed circuit boards industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the printed circuit boards industry. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculation relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin. Such estimations are based on KFE's past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. The directors believe that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of KFE to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of KFE.

The directors reviewed the carrying value of the goodwill,
taking into account an independent valuation report
prepared by a professional valuer, Cushman & Wakefield
Limited. Based on the assessment and the valuation report,
the directors are of the opinion that no impairment loss is
necessary as at 31 December 2018.

18. & (&)

hEEAERN T —FRKEBHLE &
BEBFEBBR 2B ([KFE])H100%&
AiEmmEL - BREIXARUFTED S
=@l eEErfEu([BeELE
fz]) - BNENRIARBEIR M T R B 5 5 5 &
B B 2 RIKFE ©

ZA e RReELBMNMER
BE EXAENEEBIENTFEHY
BEE FREE195% (ZT—+HF:
18.7% )BT AT IR K - 2 1A MBFHSE
REFEREERAI% (Z2—+4F:
3% MFERBAFHHE - ZEREREH
P EDRIAR B AR D T1T ¥ 38 R TE R - T
78 38 N il 4R B Bl A0 77 3 /9 35 & HA 38
RE-HMAEFRANEEXTZNARS
A/ REOBRBEAEPRIEEEH
EREMERMGE L FHEERKFEZ
BARBRREEREBHMSERNEL-
EERE EEAEENTEHBERT -
FRZEBRZ TS EXKFENREEER
MKFEZ AT Y 6] 5 28 o

EECENNENREEE RKEE
IEEEMEM-EERTERARAZ
B HERS - BEFHREERSE R
ZE-NFFTZA=T—H EEZRE
HEREBERZE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. B EE

Customer
relationship
EFBE
HK$'000
FE T
COST R
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 R-—ZE—+F—HF—H,
and 31 December 2018 —E—+tF+—A=+—HBXK
—E-NFt+-_HA=+—H 13,831
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION E- g ¥
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+F—HA—H 4,610
Amortisation for the year I F S GH 1,383
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZFE—+F+ZA=+—HEK
—T—-NF—H—H 5,993
Amortisation for the year PGSR i 1,384
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF+ZA=+—H 7,377
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31 December 2018 R—FE—NF+=_A=+—H 6,454
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-_A=+—H 7,838

Customer relationship is amortised on a straight-line basis

over its useful life of 10 years.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

EPBERAERERI0FERFHS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

20. BE N EES

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Unlisted shares, at cost IE TR BRARE 7,747 7,747
Share of post-acquisition profits and D {E % 2 % F K&
reserves, net of dividends received % 5) 21,208 22,079
28,955 29,826
Amounts due from associates JFE U Bt i N Bl 5K IR 8,852 10,337
Less: allowance for impairment of W RERBERE
doubtful debts (6,668) (7,794)
2,184 2,543
31,139 32,369
(a) Amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest (a) MEUEEZ DA 2B LA KA
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the THEMNERLFETEBERR

opinion of the directors, the amounts will not be
repayable within 12 months of the end of the reporting

EEAR ERAALTERRES
FEA+T-EARNEER HIMEIER

period and are accordingly classified as non-current. B) & B o o& 8 B FE Y Bk & A B FRIE

The individually impaired receivable of approximately
HK$6,668,000 (2017: HK$7,794,000) is mainly a debt

L 1E 496,668,000 T (— & —+
#:7,794,0008 70)  EEHMNZ

due from an associate which is of age over three years. RN Tﬁlmﬁﬁﬁ”\ﬁﬁiﬂiiﬂﬂﬂ
The other amounts due from associates do not contain Lo EMmEREERRRBELTE
impaired assets. SERMEEBE-

(b) Interests in associates at the end of the reporting period (b) RHELEER BERRERDE

include goodwill of approximately HK$313,000 (2017:

HK$313,000).

HEEE4313,0008 T (& —+
£ :313,000587T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M HRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 L2 =%

—NFF+ZA=1—HIFFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Details of the principal associates of the Group at 31

December 2018 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Name of associate and operation

B3,/

ERLYEES

BEQNREB FREA

Suzhou Sanguang Science & The PRC
Technology Co., Ltd.

RN =B R D AR QA 1

BNTERERSTERARLDA The PRC

BEMNTERERIMERBRAA i

Cosmos i-Tech Solutions Limited Hong Kong

RAESMKRERAT BB

The above table lists out the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results
of the Group for the year or form a substantial portion of

the net assets of the Group at the end of the year.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

20. BBE NTIER (£Z)
RZE—NF+_A=+—HTEBKS
NETE=2 =S (IS

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital

attributable

to the Group Principal activities

KEBEL
i & A

EEZ LB FTEER
%

211 Manufacturing of industrial

machinery, equipment

and supplies

TEREW - RER

TERAmEE

22.5 Manufacturing and trading
of the experimental
analysis instrument

ERNTBERERES

30.0 Providing information
technology consultancy
service

REEMBHE A RS

NEBERRNEREERAEYASE

EREESIAEEFRFEEREERTE
M2 51



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. BE A RER (£)
In the opinion of the directors, the associates of the EERAAEE ZHERREREAER
Group are all individually not material. Aggregate financial FER - ANEBEHERNGGRAEVBE
information in respect of the Group's associates is set out BRINMT :
below:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Aggregate carrying amount of RirE B BHREFERIEER
individually immaterial associates in By A RliRE REE
the consolidated financial statements 28,955 29,826
Aggregate amounts of the Group's REBELBEARGEEER
share of those associates
Profit from continuing operations SFELE 7 BT 1,658 3,324
Other comprehensive (expense)/income Efh2m (X H) Uz (1,031) 1,956
Total comprehensive income B3N 627 5,280
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 L2 =%

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/AVAILABLE-
FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(a) Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income
represent investments in unlisted equity securities which
are not held for trading, and the Group has irrevocably
elected at initial recognition in this category. These
are strategic investments and the Group considers this
classification more relevant.

Balance at 31 December 2017,

—NFF+ZA=1—HIFFE

2. AP EEFAEMEZEKEZE
MEE THEESREE

(a)

AFPEEFAEGCEZHEHKRE 2
BE
RZF-N\F+=ZRA=+—HB &
SEAARMEEREZEMEE
RRETHREES A TAELE
VA B X 5% 18] 170 470 0 e SR B A FR R R
A3 ME 3R R0 S BT A o ot T BB
KRE RNEBRR/UL D BEE BB
o

HK$'000
FET

—E—+F T A=t B#&E

as originally presented RIREE2H -
Change in accounting policy (note 3) SRR EE) (FiE3)
— Reclassified from available-for-sale —HAHEEeREEETHNH A
financial assets to fair value through BAFEEFAEMEZAKZEZ
other comprehensive income TREE -
Balance at 1 January 2018, as restated and R -ZE— N\F— A —HEILEH X
balance at 31 December 2018 RZE—NF+ZA=+—HBE&H -

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's available-for-
sale financial assets represented investments in unlisted

equity securities as follows:

Unlisted equity securities, at cost

A EE

Impairment losses

Balance at 31 December 2017

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED

216 REEBEXEARAA

(b) THHEEEREE

RETHSES  RKANE

R-B—tF+-A=t+-R &

EEMAHEEEMEEALRLET
EEBEHFIOT
HK$°000
FET
420
(420)

R-_ZE—+&+-_A=+—H -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

22. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 22. EWmEREFE
Present value of
Minimum lease receipts Minimum lease receipts
EEASHA EEEAERAZRE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\E T —+tF —E-N\E T —+tF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
FAET FET FAET FET
Amounts receivable under U mERERA
finance leases: B
Not later than one year —FR 121,443 109,224 107,037 99,012
Later than one year and E_ERF
not later than five years 49,632 17,309 45,378 16,472
171,075 126,533 152,415 115,484
Less: Unearned finance income &l : R B IR B U A (18,660) (11,049) N/AREH NATEAE
152,415 115,484 152,415 115,484
Overdue finance lease mAELRERE
receivables IR 7,483 16,770 7,483 16,770
Present value of minimum HEHEEKAZ
lease receipts BHEEE 159,898 132,254 159,898 132,254
Less: Allowance for impairment 3 = 3% 85 )5l (& B {4
of doubtful debts (6,198) (14,817) (6,198) (14,817)
153,700 117,437 153,700 117,437
Less: Current finance lease BIARBEEZ
receivables under ERHERE
current assets A (109,249) (100,965)
Non-current finance lease EnBELBERE
receivables FIE 44,451 16,472
The Group has entered into finance lease arrangements with ERELHRMEHELRTFE -BEMRE
their customers. The terms of finance leases entered into for AR ETHIR A —F 2| Y4 -

periods ranged from one to four years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M HRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

22. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22.

The movements on the allowance for impairment of doubtful

debts are as follows:

FEWRmERERE (&)
REFAERBEDERDT

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Balance at 31 December under RIEB B ERF395

HKAS 39 R+ZA=+—RH#&& 14,817 7,490

Impact on initial application of BRERMBE BB RE %R
HKFRS 9 (note 3) FOR 2B (Hi23) 2,257 -
Adjusted balance at 1 January R—H—BHAR&H 17,074 7,490
Exchange realignment E R (57) 1,100
Unused amount reversed o] #8% 5k B) F 858 (14,164) -
Impairment loss recognised R ZBAEEIE 3,345 6,227
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—R#&% 6,198 14,817

At 31

December 2018, the allowance for credit loss

represents lifetime expected credit loss recognised for
finance lease receivables under simplified approach. Details
of impairment assessment of finance lease receivables for
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 43(b)

(iv).

All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and there were no
unguaranteed residual values in connection with finance
lease arrangements or contingent lease arrangements of the
Group that need to be recorded as at 31 December 2018

(2017: Nil).

Finance lease receivable balances are secured over the plant
and equipment leased. The Group is not permitted to sell
or re-pledge the collateral in the absence of default by the

lessee.

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the

contract date for the entire lease term. The effective interest
rates are ranging from 7.4% to 19.0% per annum (2017:

from 9.3% to 13.4% per annum).

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

W_ZE—NEFE+-_A=+—H EEE
BRERRBEREOLERERRERE
HERRANEAFHBEHEEBE &
2T N\F+-_A=Z+—HILFEHA
2 e U gt AR B E 2R E AT R E R
B 5E43(b)(iv) °

P B AR I B — (R B R E
RZE-N\F+_A=1t—HEXEEL
EREWCEL S RmERE N AE
ERPNERMARERHKE (T —1LF:
') -

FEMmEHERAGBESHE 2 ER
RIBIEEF - ERENRBRELN XK
BAGHEXERERREERAR-

RNeHEMENARAETE  WEARE
EREEE RN - BEEFFEWT.4%
ZE19.0% (ZE—+tF - FHEKIZ%E
13.4% ) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a principal
taxation rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%).

The following are the major components of deferred tax
assets/(liabilities) recognised by the Group and movements
thereon during the current and prior years:

23.

Intangible  (Accelerated)/
assets arising  decelerated

from business

tax

combination  depreciation

EHAd () /

Ef2

AR

BPEE  FERHR
HK$ 000 HK$ 000

EEREBEEE &8F
BEEREDRESRERIZAEENRE
B EI65% (ZFE—+F:165% )2
HitE o

ATAAEBERRANEIZRERAER
E/(ABRAFERLFEZEE:

Revaluation
of land and Tax
building losses Others Total
TR
BFREMR RBEE Hity ag

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

TET TET TET TET TET TET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—t+5-f-H (1,522) (587) (6,949) 1,286 (9,923) (17,695)
Exchange realignment ERAR - - (209) - 477 268
Transfer to liabilities directly BRTHENERBELE

associated with the assets JHMERAEERER

classified as held for sale BB Z8E (Hit36)

(note 36) - - - - 18,262 18,262
Charged to equity RERNEG - - (4,101) - - (4,101)
Credited to income statement  PIRERJIA (Hz11)

(note 11) 228 1,088 - 64 6,252 7,632
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tF+-A=1+-H (1,294) 501 (11,259) 1,350 15,068 4,366
Impact of initial application of ~ BEXFMEBHBHREEL

HKFRS 9 (note 3) FORLTE (W73) - - - - 745 745
At 1 January 2018 RZZ2-\5-A—-H (1,294) 501 (11,259) 1,350 15,813 511
Exchange realignment ERAR - - 135 (14) (634) (513)
Charged to equity RERME - - (2.817) - - (2.817)
Credited/(Charged) to income REERIN/ (31%)

statement (note /1) (K1) 228 57 - 55 (1,550) (1,210)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\F+-A=t+-H (1,066) 558 (13,941) 1,391 13,629 571
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(Continued)

For the purposes of consolidated statement of financial
position presentation, certain deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
have been offset in accordance with the conditions set out
in HKAS 12. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances shown in the consolidated statement of financial

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

23. EEBIHEE BE (&)

KA BRRK 2R - THRIBEEE
BRFERF 12K Z R ERERENR
EHIBEE,/ (AB)KEEE TR
B 2FIRER A B ISR R e IR I IR
PREB DT -

position:
2018 2017
—E2-N\EF —E—+F
HKS$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEA = 26,419 29,518
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIBAG (25,848) (25,152)
571 4,366

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. At 31
December 2018, the Group has unrecognised tax losses of
approximately HK$570,184,000 (2017: HK$562,959,000)
available for offset against future profits. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$212,660,000 (2017: HK$236,007,000) that will expire in
five years and the remaining balance does not expire under
the current tax legislation.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in
associates are insignificant.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

BEHAAMMEEENECHBEE

RerlAEHEREEAEERARAR
ERBREANERBESIEBWR - R _F
—N\F+ZA=+—H £EEEXD
A %4 75 B3 38 49570,184,0008 7T (=
—+ % : 562,959,000/ Jt ) B E K §5 &
Tl -RABABEEEY 2IEEB
B #)212,660,0008 L (ZF — £ F:

236,007,000/ 7T ) # A AL 1& 2 87 -
BERTHOABTERE TSR -

REBERREEEENEREZESL T
BEXe



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

24. INVENTORIES 24. 78

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (a) HFEFBRARFNFERE:
position comprise:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Trading inventories and BEHFE k&K m
finished goods 219,038 192,741
Work in progress EEm 111,271 147,321
Raw materials R R 161,628 184,509
491,937 524,571
At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of RZE—-NF+ZRA=+—H
inventories that were stated at fair value less costs EZEREmAENZERAFEEREEK
to sell is approximately HK$14,693,000 (2017: AFEEH 514,693,000 (= F
HK$74,566,000). —+ 4 : 74,566,000 7T ) 51/ R ©
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as (b) BRARIZIVHABENGTEESRE
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: DT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Carrying amount of inventories sold & H & & & #9 Bk E (& 2,232,093 2,035,009
Write-down of inventories 7 & #MER 30,063 23,932
Reversal of write-down of 17 & R =)
inventories (16,862) (21,532)
2,245,294 2,037,409
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25. EZ REMEKRRIE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

Trade and bills receivables B 5K EWERIEFRIA 876,879 924,630
Less: allowance for impairment of B RERBERE

bad and doubtful debts (106,864) (111,959)

770,015 812,671

Other receivables H 4th jE We 5008 150,333 106,878
Less: allowance for impairment of B RERBERE

bad and doubtful debts (22,160) (24,802)

128,173 82,076

Prepayments SEANE 35,398 28,814

Amounts due from related parties FEU BB T 2 IR 585 50

934,171 923,611

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables approximate to their fair values. All
trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense within one year.

297 COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

EEMRREZEAMEKRZ KEE
HEEQVFEEMRLI MAEES REMBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25. B RE#MEWFIE (#Z)

The Group grants an average credit period of 90 days to AEEGHTHEHERP ZFHEER/RIOKR
120 days for customers. Further details on the Group’s credit ZN20R -BREEBZEERRRBES
policy and credit risk arising from trade debtors and hills REWEBEREE 2 EERR FHR
receivable are set out in note 43(b)(iv). An aging analysis of MsE43(b)(iv) c NI EEE R - KRB EH
the trade and bills receivables at the end of the reporting HZENMKRRERRERENE S LIE
period based on the invoice date and net of allowance for WEBRFRIBREDTAT

impairment of bad and doubtful debts, is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$000
FETT FET
0 to 3 months == =f@A 525,742 559,202
4 to 6 months U EVAN FDE 120,390 155,047
7 to 9 months +tENEA 55,787 51,402
Over 9 months A NEA 68,096 47,020
770,015 812,671

The movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and REBIRBERE S FHENOT

doubtful debts of the Group are as follows:

Trade receivables

5 EWFEIE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Balance at 31 December BIFEE BRI E395%
under HKAS 39 R+ZA=+—H#%&% 111,959 108,588
Impact on initial application of BB B @RS 2ER
HKFRS 9 (note 3) BSR B (Hit3) 2,073 -
Adjusted balance at 1 January R—HA—BHER&EH 114,032 108,588
Exchange realignment E W (4,789) 6,759
Impairment loss recognised R 2R IAEEIE 7,267 4,903
Unused amounts reversed [o] %% K B) FA &05a (6,147) (7,535)
Uncollectible amounts written off T 85 S BT Y Bl 9 RRIE (3,499) (756)
Balance at 31 December R+ZA=+—H#%&#% 106,864 111,959
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25. B RE#EWFIE (&)

Other receivables

H fth fE W SR IE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Balance at 31 December RIEEA G ERFE395%
under HKAS 39 RtTZA=+—B#&#&% 24,802 19,963
Impact on initial application of BRERMNE BB mEER
HKFRS 9 (note 3) FoOR T E (H:73) 2,119 -
Adjusted balance at 1 January R—A—ARBEH 26,921 19,963
Exchange realignment JE (1,218) 1,508
Impairment loss recognised WR2BERSIE 6,561 6,364
Unused amounts reversed [B] 438 7K B A 858 (5.374) (3,033)
Uncollectible amounts written off i £5 1 AT Y Bl B K08 (4,730) -
At 31 December WR+—A=+—H 22,160 24,802

The above allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful
debts is a provision for individually impaired trade receivables
and impaired other receivables. The individually impaired

trade receivables mainly represent sales made to the PRC

customers which have remained long overdue. The impaired
other receivables relate to debtors that have been long
outstanding without settlement or having any business

relationship with the Group. The Group does not hold any

collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

Included in trade and other receivables are the following

amounts denominated in the following currencies:

bt R BROBUAE 8 5 (8 B 2 RUE FE UK
TR N B ORE H i FE WK IE B A - fE B
ERERKKEARBIERHETTE
BEEZBHERFE - BRENEMEK
RRREEHRER R ERKE LB EM
EBEE ASEY Lt BURIRR
ESERERSER 2 ERLHE-

B LEMBYRBERBEEMT

2018 2017

—Z2-N\F —E—+F

United States Dollars ETT 28,319,000 21,010,000
Renminbi AR 598,489,000 586,688,000
Japanese Yen HJt 88,171,000 154,180,000

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

26. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

6. HttEMEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET TFET
Measured at fair value through BRATEEFAER
profit or loss
Unlisted unit trust funds FLEmEMETES 219 59
Principal guaranteed REFEER S
investment funds - 20,218
Wealth management products BRI ZEm 33,711 -
33,930 20,277
The fair values of the unlisted unit trust funds, the principal FEMEMGEREER RAREEEZR
guaranteed investment funds and the wealth management BHEMHNATFEESER S BEEIR
products are based on net assets value of the investment HERELEEHEREEECHNFEE

funds at the end of the reporting period provided by the
financial institutions.

The principal guaranteed investment funds represented
unlisted investments (the “Investments”) placed with banks
in the Mainland. The Investments were unlisted investment
funds mainly invested in unlisted treasury bonds, bank
debentures, central bank bills and other investments in the
Mainland with high credit rating. The Investments were
principal guaranteed and bore interest at floating rate with
expected return 2.2% to 3.2% per annum.

The wealth management products represent unlisted
investments placed with reputable banks in the Mainland,
mainly invested in unlisted treasury bonds, bank debentures,
central bank bills and asset-based stocks. There are no fixed
or determinable returns of these bank wealth management
products and the returns of principals are not guaranteed.

BlE-

RARERS HFRFPEAMIRTTZIF
EFHHRE (ZTRE]) - ZBRERIE
ETREES FTERENEE &/
B RORBEMEMEFEABERS
EREFENKRE ZREBRAME B
ka7 e RHEARERSEF22%E
3.2% °

BMEMDFRPERRT ZIFLT
MRE T2RENEE SRESF R
TEBMABESR Z2E 5 % FRT
BB om0 AR B E S R B E 2 [ ¥R e AR
TEHFAZRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 27. RERWBITHEER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Pledged bank deposits EEAZRITER
(Note (a)) (Note 42) (Bfet(a)) (Kfat42) 52,159 31,104
Cash and cash equivalents (Note (b)) & NIRGEE (HiEb)) 287,543 317,642
339,702 348,746
(a) Pledged bank deposits (a) CEBZEBRITER
Included in pledged bank deposits in the consolidated RERG BN K P B EIR 2 RIT
statement of financial position are the following FRZRBEE®HET :
amounts denominated in the following currency:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Renminbi AR 45,702,000 26,000,000

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA



27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

RITHBNE S

Bank balances and cash

(b)

RERREEE

2018
—B-N\F
HK$°000
FET

287,543

27. BERIBITHEE (&)

2017
e
HK$'000
FET

317,642

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the

BehBReFEBE TIISEERS

purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows: ERERERNAR:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Bank balances and cash per above $R{T& S NIESE w0 E 287,543 317,642
Bank balances and cash included BEAFEEEANZ
in assets classified as held RITEHRLIES
for sale (note 36) (K1:£36) = 1,448
Less: Bank overdrafts (note 30) B ERITE S (KFE30) (4,865) (3,168)
282,678 315,922

Included in bank balances and cash in the consolidated
statement of financial position are the following
amounts denominated in the following currencies:

United States Dollars ETT
Renminbi AR
Japanese Yen HJT
Euro Dollars BL T

RIRE M BN RERPRITER LR
EZREE®EWT:

2018
—B-N\%E

6,941,000
134,983,000
25,145,000
51,000

2017
—E—+F

11,281,000
159,904,000
34,928,000
210,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/CONTRACT 28. ESRHMENRE ESHEE
LIABILITIES
(i) Trade and other payables ESRHEMEMNRIE
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\F —E-N\F “E—+tF
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FHET FHET
Trade and bills payables BHRERERRE 611,433 590,258 590,258
Accruals and other payables FERT AR R H A e 5008 171,512 259,192 328,032
Amounts due to non-controlling BERIEERER 2 FE
interests 9,600 10,345 10,345
792,545 859,795 928,635

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade
and other payables approximates to their fair values. All
trade and other payables are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year or are repayable
on demand.

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills
payables at the end of the reporting period is as

EEMRBRES REMBENFIEZ
REEREAFEEMELI AR
S REMENRBEBERER —FR
SR B IR BRI AT

follows:
2018 2017
—E2-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
0 to 3 months TE= =84 449,779 437,757
4 to 6 months mZz 7N {E A 99,822 108,352
7 to 9 months +tE=NEA 38,042 25,920
Over 9 months i@ E A 23,790 18,229
611,433 590,258

228 COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)

()

(ii)

Trade and other payables (Continued)
Included in trade and other payables are the following
amounts denominated in the following currencies:

28. %%&E@Ef#ﬁﬁlﬁ/ﬁ%@ﬁﬁ

()

EZRHMEMRE(F)
B RAEMENRERBEE®, M
T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
United States Dollars =3 7,648,000 9,446,000
Renminbi AR 572,040,000 693,679,000
Japanese Yen Hot 172,900,000 111,925,000
Euro Dollars E 90,000 175,000

Contract liabilities (i) EHAE
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
“E-N\% —2-N\%F e
+=B=1+-H —A—-B +ZA=+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET

Billings in advance of TEWFIE (Frit)

performance (Note) 66,323 68,840 -
Note: Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously Bt (SIRMB BB RS ER E15

included as accruals and other payables under trade and
other payables were reclassified to contract liabilities
(see note 2(15)).

When the Group receives a deposit before the
production activity commences this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the
revenue is recognised. The Group receives deposits
on acceptance of orders on a case by case basis with
customers before work commences.

The balance of contract liabilities at 1 January 2018 was
all recognised as revenue during the year of 2018. The
amount of billings in advance of performance received
is expected to be recognised as income within one year.

FOAFEREEES REMER
RPN EMRSREMENRS
EREFSEIAGHNEE (RK
5$2(15)) ©

BEAKEELEEESMEAKERG]
T ANAEREANRBRES
EERARARL - AEEEER
AIEALERMEBGT2RRERM
FEHY°

R-ZE-\F-A—-—HNAHNEE
HHREZEN_ZE-N\FERNER
BN - FBYWHRIEZ e EARE—
FRSHERBUA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=
ma

29.

AR R AL (AR

PROVISION FOR RESTRUCTURING

The Group recorded its restructuring costs provision when it
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
restructuring actions.

Restructuring costs provision mainly comprises provision for
employees compensation and relocation expenses, arising
from a series of restructuring actions to reduce costs and
enhance operational efficiency. Most of the restructuring
cost was paid up for employee compensation in January
2019 and the restructuring is expected to be completed by
or before the end of 2019.

The following are restructuring provision of the Group and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

29. EAHRE

AEBERERTRMEERIT AR
EZEER SEHABERBEAR-

ERERBREIERERA —RIERT
RABERARESEELETMELDN
BEHERREBRAXTEMNEE R
Z-NEF—- A SEEXNKREHENEAR
EREREEME MBBHEASN =
E-NFEHZAAER

T AA £ BABER AL FER
AEENZED:

2018 2017

—E-NE —ZE—+tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

At 1 January n—HA—H 52,956 91,727

Exchange realignment ME T (1,474) 936

Restructuring costs paid ENEHEER (1,632) (8,606)
Unused provision for ElERB) A EHEEE

restructuring reversed (19,612) (31,101)

At 31 December R+=A=+—H 30,238 52,956

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

30. BANK BORROWINGS

30. BITERK

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current FFRE
Bank loans RITER
— secured — B EH 4,000 45,125
— unsecured — 4 3 47 16,111 -
20,111 45,125
Current RE
Bank loans IRITERX
— secured — B EA 103,512 98,598
— unsecured — I A 248,675 278,832
Bank overdrafts (note 27) RITEX (Ha227)
— unsecured — 45 3K 47 4,865 3,168
357,052 380,598
Total borrowings HBIE 377,163 425,723

The aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s bank loans
as at 31 December 2018 (that are repayable more than one
year after the end of the reporting period but contain a
repayment on demand clause) that have been reclassified
as current liabilities is approximately HK$17,223,000 (2017:
HK$46,677,000).

These loans are callable by the lenders, but the management
does not expect the lenders to exercise their rights to
demand repayment in normal circumstances.

R-_Z—NEFE+-_A=+—H 4A&£H
AERE(E 17,223,000 T (—ZZ—+
% 146,677,000 L) 2 BITEFR (AR
MEFKERBHN—FREE EBEHER
EXRBREFOCHIERDEESIER
MENEE -

MAAFZERBEER BEEER
IR AE—RBER T T EITRARE

FMEREEERK-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

30. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The maturity of the bank borrowings based on the scheduled
repayment date set out in the loan agreements ignoring the
effect of any repayment on demand clause are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

30. SRITER (&)

RIBE R & BAREBFERIGERF
2 REFAHERARZEEESRAOT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FET

Within 1 year —F R 339,829 333,921
Between 1 and 2 years —2= 32,334 87,802
Between 2 and 5 years —&RF 5,000 4,000
377,163 425,723

The non-current bank borrowings are stated at amortised
cost.

The effective interest rate as at 31 December 2018 for bank
borrowings and overdrafts is 4.42% per annum (2017:
3.64% per annum).

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

FERMBIRITERIABE DL AARR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

30. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:

30. RITIERR (&)

ERHERIERREEIERT

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Hong Kong Dollars BT 279,633 309,676
Renminbi AR 97,530 116,047
377,163 425,723

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

Floating rate PESA

N

pay

— expiring within one year —R—FREIH

SEARPRZEEREWT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
348,186 368,626

The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities
subject to review at various dates during 2018.

Bank borrowings are secured by certain buildings and
leasehold land and land use rights of the Group (notes 15
and 17).

—FARINYREREDNFERE AR
—E- N\FHATEBEETR -

RITBEFARNKEEILOET HELH
Ko L 10 AR AR (PHEE15/17) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M HRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

31. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

31.

MEHSEN

Present value of

Minimum lease payments ~ minimum lease payments

REREXH REAEXHZRE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF ZB-NF _“T—+F

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Amounts payable under ERBERESH:
finance leases:
Not later than one year —FR 2,880 2,750 2,547 2,696
Later than one year and F_EREF
not later than five years 4,760 - 4,528 -
7,640 2,750 7,075 2,696
Less: Future finance charges BARRZHBER (565) (54)  N/ATER NATEA
Present value of minimum REHESHZREEE
lease payments 7,075 2,696 7,075 2,696
Less: Amount due for settlement 5l : JIAGRE B EMmA
within 1 year under —FREEZRIE
current liabilities (2,547) (2,696)
Amount due for settlement —FREBEEZHE
after 1 year 4,528 -

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its plant and
machinery under finance leases. The lease terms are expiring
from three to four years. For the year ended 31 December
2018, the average effective borrowing rate was 5.86% per
annum (2017: 3.97% per annum). Interest is charged at
three month HIBOR plus 3% to 7% per annum (2017: one
month HIBOR plus 3.25% per annum) on the outstanding
loan balances. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and
no arrangement has been entered into for contingent rental
payments.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by
the lessors’ charges over the leased assets.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

REBESBRIIER D MRE LR E
BEMHE HEFHRIZIF -HE-T
—N\NEFE+ZR=+—BHLLEE FHE
SRR EF KR A 86E (T — 5 &F
MERIITE) - FHMELAEREHRIL=
HASERTRZERESERTE (=
—t+FFMEUL—EAFTBRITRE
e + 325 ) WM -FABEHELHEERE
BRHRZBELHEM ARG H
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. B
2018 2017
—2-N\F —T—+F

Number of Number of

ordinary ordinary
shares Amount shares Amount
=R R R am TERRE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT

Ordinary shares, issued and BETRBRLER:
fully paid:

At 1 January wn—A— 716,930,692 532,903 716,930,692 532,903
Shares issued upon subscription E’dﬁﬁfﬁﬁé T2 MH 145,000,000 76,124 - -
At 31 December R+ZRA=t+—H 861,930,692 609,027 716,930,692 532,903

Upon the completion of the subscription on 27 June 2018,
new shares were subscribed by Cosmos Machinery (Holdings)
Limited and Saniwell at the subscription price of HK$0.55
per share, resulting in the issue of 145,000,000 additional
shares. The Company received total net proceeds of
approximately HK$76,124,000. The related transaction costs
of approximately HK$3,626,000 had been netted off with
the gross proceeds of HK$79,750,000.

All new shares issued during the year rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing shares.

REROEER=ZZE—\FSA=Z+t
ElruﬁX1§ KB 4% g K Saniwelliz & A%
0SS TTRBERBIRMD  HEH
1T D 145,000,0008% » T A A
AEREFERMANMEREFED
776,124,000/ 7T ° 18 B 52 5 A AN &Y
/3,626,000 T E RIS R IB B
79,750,000/ JT 1R, ©

RAFEARBITHRA D EARF]
BEBRORE T EZABRFHA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

33. OTHER RESERVES 33. Hituf& &
Property
revaluation Translation
reserve reserve Others Total
NEERLRE ErifE 2t ok
HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZE—tE-A—B&& 42,283 22,731 1,738 66,752
Fair value loss: AYEEEE:

- Available-for-sale financial asset -AfHEESRHEE - - (129) (129)
Share of reserves of associates BB E DR RE - 1,956 - 1,956
Surplus on revaluation of properties  HFEMEEEEH

held for own use 23,075 - - 23,075
Deferred taxation adjustment BT IEHE (3,750) - - (3,750)

Exchange differences arising from  BE G EBRRFEE L
translation of financial statements ~ JEXZ

of foreign operations - 66,394 - 66,394
Reclassification adjustment: DEHE:
Release of fair value reserve upon ~ HERA R EL BEER

disposal of available-for-sale RATEEHERD

financial asset - - (930) (930)

Balance at 31 December 2017 RZE-+t&+ZA=1+-H

and 1 January 2018 R-E-NE-A-HEH 61,608 91,081 679 153,368
Share of reserves of associates ML & LN B E - (1,031) - (1,031)
Surplus on revaluation of properties B M ESEEH

held for own use 13,200 - - 13,200
Deferred taxation adjustment ERTEAE (2,650) - - (2,650)

Exchange differences arising from REBIEBEREREE L
translation of financial statements ~ EXZE

of foreign operations - (49,314) - (49,314)
Release of translation reserve upon  H&— B A a6

disposal of a subsidiary RS BEE T - 547 - 547
Release of translation reserve upon 33— R B2 A%

deregistration of a subsidiary RERFERD - (1,904) - (1,904)
Release of revaluation reserve upon & — i B A 7E

disposal of a subsidiary REGREERD (9,028) - - (9,028)

Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=+-H
33 63,130 39,379 679 103,188

236 COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34. AR B B AR TR
COMPANY

(a) Company-level statement of financial position

(a) A2 BHBMR K

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BE kEE 776 1,423
Interests in subsidiaries R EERNETE s 1,243,399 1,223,656
1,244,175 1,225,079
Current Assets REBEE
Other receivables H b fE U 5B 1,263 1,688
Amount due from an associate il G )N B E] 983 904
Cash and bank balances He MIRITHE & 76,956 30,489
79,202 33,081
Current Liabilities IR
Other payables b 5IE 12,425 1,188
Amounts due to subsidiaries R M B A R FRIE 180,262 178,876
Bank borrowings RITHER 13,000 21,000
205,687 201,064
Net Current Liabilities BERBAERE (126,485) (167,983)
Net Assets FEE 1,117,690 1,057,096
Capital and Reserves (note 34(b) BARRHE (H1:34(b))
Share capital [N 609,027 532,903
Proposed final dividend EEANBRE 17,239 -
Retained profits IR & 491,424 524,193
Total Equity EREE 1,117,690 1,057,096

KA BARRARR T —NF=
At N\REEFSHETRET
WA NIEERERRSE:

The statement of financial position of the Company
was approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 28 March 2019 and is signed on its behalf

by:
TANG TO TANG YU, FREEMAN
= i85}
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BEF BEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Movement in components of equity of the

(c)

34. KRB MBERRE (£)

(b) XABEEEH

Company
Proposed
final
Share capital dividend Retained profits Total
kx  EBERAHRE RERH EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TAET FET T FET
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZ—t5-A-H
&a 532,903 - 537,725 1,070,628
Loss for the year KEEBE - - (13,532) (13,532)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZB—+F
and 1 January 2018 TZAZ+-HR
—Z-\F-A-H
w8 532,903 - 524,193 1,057,096
Loss for the year TEEBR - - (15,530) (15,530)
Issue of ordinary shares #rLak 76,124 - - 76,124
Proposed final dividend BERERE - 17,239 (17,239) -
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZB-NE
TZAZ+-B&EH 609,027 17,239 491,424 1,117,690

Distributability of reserves
At 31
of reserves available for distribution to equity

December 2018, the aggregate amount

shareholders of the Company, as calculated under
the provisions of Part 6 of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, was approximately HK$508,663,000
(2017:HK$524,193,000). After the end of the reporting
period, the directors proposed a final dividend
of HK$0.02 (2017: Nil) per share, amounting to
approximately HK$17,239,000 (2017: Nil). This dividend
has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

() fEDIK

RZE—NFE+-A=+—H
B CRBHER) SBINER D B X ET
B ARAFAIEDIETREREA
B 8 49 5508,663,00008 T (==
— £ 4 :524,193,0008 7T ) - A &5
AR ESEBERERALER
2B (ZE—tF8\) B
£17,239,0008 L (=2 — 4
) WRBWENEEARRAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

5. REMEEHNEEREREE
i ¥ AR
TRFAFEENABRKAREEDH
HREENES RERLRIRLN

from financing activities, including both cash and noncash

changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are

liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will

be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

EH-KERELIDNAEIEERS

MEARKANE

PN S = A
CHRESHNEERNGE

ReERERTROBASREBEZDH

PANEY ==
fﬁi/ﬁi"

Amounts
due to
Amount non-
Bank  Finance duetoan controlling Share
loans lease associate interests capital Total
HER—H g
BE HEAF FER
RITER HEER HE ERZRE R A& A&t
HKS'000 — HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FAT FET FAET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+t%—HF—H 324,035 8,135 565 4,800 532,903 870,438
Changes from financing cash flows: RERMEEDRERZ
25
Bank loans raised HEBTER 352,878 - - - - 352878
Repayment of bank loans ERFTER (259,987) - - - - (259,987
Bank loans interest paid BERIFTERFIE (20,301) - - - - (20,301)
Capital element on obligation under finance ENEEAREENAR
lease paid - (5,439) - - - (5,439)
Finance charges on obligations under finance BRREREENNE
leases paid - (182) - - - (182)
Advances from an associate Wm—-HEBERT
HE - - 300 - - 300
Total changes from financing cash flows REREFH AL
s 72,590 (5.621) 300 - - 67,269
Exchange adjustments ERAE 5,629 - - - - 5,629
Other changes Hitt2 8
Bank loans interest (note 7) RITEFHE (H#7) 20,301 - - - - 20301
Finance charges on obligations MEREBRFIE
under finance leases (note 7) (H1327) - 182 - - - 182
Advance from a related party HEHER - - - 745 - 745
Dividend to the non-controlling shareholders BIEBRRERS - - - 4,800 - 4,800
Total other changes Htt @B A5E 20,301 182 - 5,545 - 26,028
At 31 December 2017 RZB-t%
+ZA=1+-H 422,555 2,696 865 10,345 532,903 969,364
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 35. REMEETHNEBRMEBEEE

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued) MR (&)
Amounts
due to
Amount non-
Bank Finance  due to an controlling Share
loans lease  associate interests capital Total
#Br-H &R
BE BELNT FERER
RITER  HERX HE ZRAE BA& At
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FAET FET FAET FET FET FAET
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\E—HF—H 422,555 2,696 865 10,345 532,903 969,364
Changes from financing cash flow: REMEEDRERZ
28
Bank loans raised MERTER 245,338 - - - - 245338
Repayment of bank loans BRRITER (290,256) - - - - (290,256)
Bank loans interest paid BRRITENHE (21,650) - - - - (21,650)
Issue of new shares B3R - - - - 76,124 76,124
Dividend paid to the non-controlling BEREERRERS
shareholders - - - (2,967) - (2,967)
Capital element on obligation BNREREENTE
under finance lease paid - (3,559) - - - (3,559)
Finance charges on obligations ENREREERNE
under finance leases paid - (206) - - - (206
Advance to an associate BA-EHENR L
TR - - (161) - - (161)
Repayment to the non-controlling BRERIFERBER
shareholders Fe - - - (745) = (745)
Total changes from financing cash flows REREZHRERL
e (66,568) (3,765) (161) (3,712) 76,124 1,918
Exchange adjustments ERRE (5,339) (66) - - - (5,405)
Other changes Hit2H
Inception of finance leases MERARERR - 8,004 - - - 8,004
Bank loans interest (note 7) RITERFE (H77) 21,650 - - - - 21,650
Dividend to the non-controlling shareholders LFEBRBRERE - - - 2,967 - 2,967
Finance charges on obligations REMERTHE
under finance leases (note 7) (Hit7) - 206 - - - 206
Total other changes Htt#gam 21,650 8,210 - 2,967 - 32,827
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZ-NE+=R
=t-A 372,298 7,075 704 9,600 609,027 998,704

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =%

e SRR MIEE ()

—NFFZA=+—HIFE

36. ASSETS OF DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS  36. 2 EARFFHECHESEEEE
HELD FOR SALE AND LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ROBABRBFEFHECHEERE
ASSOCIATED WITH THE ASSETS CLASSIFIED HEZEE
AS HELD FOR SALE
On 1 September 2017, the Group entered into a sale and RZE—+tFNA—HB AEEEBL
purchase agreement with an independent third party, F=FANEEmZE Bt - AEEEAE
pursuant to which the Group conditionally agreed to dispose BHERERERN T8RN INTER
of its entire equity interest in its wholly-owned subsidiary, NEEMBRARI-BHNEERRRAA
MS Plasticorp, which was included in the plastic processing ZEHEBTREA REBESEAAR
products segment for a consideration of RMB82,000,000 #:82,000,0007T (#1 & %794,860,000/8
(equivalent to approximately HK$94,860,000). Details were T HEBER -_ZET-—+EHA-1+A
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 20 R_ZE—+HE+ A+ HNEER
September 2017 and 22 December 2017. o
The directors did not foresee any significant obstacle to EETRAEEN TN Z E E’Jﬁéﬂ—ﬂﬂi
satisfy the remaining conditions precedent to complete the EHEEAER MZOEEHEERZ
transaction and the disposal was expected to be completed —\FREK -
in 2018.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of MS Plasticorp RZZE—+F+_A=+—80 T3=&
classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2017 were as /\*Et'ﬁ—r{”ﬁﬁ SECHENEEBERA
follows: AMFEEENAE:
Notes HK$°000
Bt it FET
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment W% BB kEE 15 20,218
Leasehold land and land use rights & 4 i Jo T fF A 17 1,474
Bank balances and cash Mo MIRTTHEH 27 1,448
Assets classified as held for sale PEABELHEHANZEE 23,140
Liabilities =K
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBAE 23 18,262
Current tax payable N HA FE A R 18 7,790
Other payables H b & 3008 671
Liabilities directly associated with HABERBELHEZHERR
the assets classified as held for sale EEFEEZHERBZEE 26,723
Net liabilities directly associated HEESEEEMER
with the disposal group ZBEFE (3,583)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

37. DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN A SUBSIDIARY
On 20 March 2018, the Group completed the disposal of
100% equity interest in MS Plasticorp (incorporated in Cook
Islands with limited liability) and since then MS Plasticorp is
no longer a subsidiary of the Group.

37. HE—RHKNB AT ER
NZE—NF=ZAZ+H AEETK
HEBNEEXEERAR (KRB RESH
A 2 BR AR #I100% I 4 fE 25 o
LE®R BONEEERQAATERASE

EWBAA-
Net assets of MS Plasticorp at the date of disposal were as REERNEEBERAGE= . AH
follows: HEEFEWOT:
HK$'000
FHEIT
Property, plant and equipment (Note 75) YE - BB KR (HiE15) 20,218
Leasehold land and land use right (Note 77) MELw T EERE (HE17) 1,474
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTTH 12,794
Other payables H fb & FOE (1,110)
Deferred tax liabilities RAEFLIEE B (18,273)
Tax payables FEASHL IR (7,790)
7,313
Gain on disposal of the subsidiary HEMB AR 2 WS 44,588
Release of translation reserve upon disposal HERCELFERD 547
Expenses directly attributable to the disposal HEREEEECER 20,472
Provision for indemnity pursuant to REBESNIGR B ERE (Fati)
sale and purchase agreement (Note i) 25,780
Total consideration BwRE 98,700
Satisfied by: ERAN:
Cash Re 98,700
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: BRLECHESRAFE:
Cash consideration received EWRESRE 98,700
Cash and bank balances disposed of HEZRe RIRITHEH (12,794)
Expenses directly attributable to the disposal HENRBEEELEZEA (20,472)
Net proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—HMBARMERIAFE 65,434
Note i: The tax clearance process has not yet been completed by Htati - MEESEFRAEFEREYRT
the year end. The provision for indemnity has been made KD EEA YIS TE (R
pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement. &

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

38. RREHERE

AEEHBEBA
RBEEEER AEERE TAMEZ
REMERREERPENBERZOT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$000 HK$000

FET FHET

Not later than one year —F R 17,833 18,923
Later than one year and FEERF

not later than five years 45,940 53,471

Later than five years 8 i@ 1 F 20,668 32,497

84,441 104,891

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office properties, factories and
plant and machinery. Leases are negotiated mostly for terms
ranging from 1 to 10 years and rentals are almost fixed for
the said term.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases:

REMEZNRNEAKRERETRF
BYE BEMMEZENES HOF
BN E10FETEN MESBRER
HOFHPEE -

AEEHHAA
RBEEEER AEERE TAMEZ
HEARTHRKZLHEERANT :

2018 2017

—Z2-N\F —E—+F

HK$000 HK$000

FET FET

Not later than one year —FR 310 1,349
Later than one year and FZERF

not later than five years 176 5,663

486 7,012

Annual Report 2018
—E-\EER

243



244

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=
ma

AR R AL (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

39.

40.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39. EAREKIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Capital expenditure: BRI :

Contracted but not provided for EEOERELEE 5,307 4,167
5,307 4,167

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In previous years, a dispute claim for outstanding payment
of USD1,050,000 (approximately HK$8,123,000) was
brought by the vendor of KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited
("KFE") to a subsidiary of the Group in relating to an alleged
breach of payment obligations for the consideration as
agreed pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement for
the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of KFE in
2013 (the "Acquisition”). Payment of tax of approximately
HK$7,000,000 has been made by the Group in respect of
the understatement of Hong Kong profits tax payable by KFE
for the various years of assessment before the Acquisition
and has been offset against the consideration payable to
the vendor of HK$8,123,000. During the year, the Group
has settled the dispute with an amount at approximately
HK$1,000,000, and all litigations were then completed.

The Group does not have any other litigations or claims of
material importance and, so far as the directors are aware,
no litigation or claims of material importance are pending or
threatened by or against any companies of the Group.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

40. FAREE

EBREFE ML _ERNEEBARA
AI(IKFEMEFRAEE—MMERQ A
A ER T — ZFUREBKFEFTFRTI
FEKFER FRx S R IR E HRm R
ft11,050,000% 7T ( 498,123,000/ 7T ) &)
RRER - NEBE BKFEX Uk E AT
R 2B BFEF 47,000,000 7T IR E
RIENE HEHES, 123,000 THIEE
B AFE  ANEERLUHE ZHTH
1,000,000/ 7T - AT B FAIE T4 ©

AREBETESREMFRLEZAR-
MBEEAA TEGFEXHEEARAQ
ABKEE N FRAREERR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

41. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees. Employees who were members of the
ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme
were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or
switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees
joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required
to join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes
5.0% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5.0%
to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the
length of service with the Group.

Employees who are employed by subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed pension scheme operated
by the PRC government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute 16% — 20% of payroll costs to the pension
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the pension scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement
of approximately HK$40,365,000 (2017: HK$35,482,000)
represents contributions payable to these schemes by the
Group in respect of the current accounting period. As at 31
December 2018, contributions of approximately HK$184,000
(2017: HK$392,000) due in respect of the reporting period
had not been paid over to the schemes.

a1, RIREF G E

A ER (B[R] B 2 BRAR B B SR AR AT B 15k )
TREMT RO E B RET &) (B SR IREHE)
MR -ZZTTF+ - ARBERSFIMEATE
&t ER DI AL RO 58 B M ARG 8 (58
EEEE) - MIER BN EERAKE
ZEENH MAGKAETE -RNEHES
RIS 2 AT BL SRR IR I E 2 B
8 A TIREBERE N BRI &I RE
BIRESHE -BER _ETTF+
A—BRZEMAREBNRE  ©A
MASRIE SR E

>

B A2 RE  ARELEHT
RAME D 2 R R BB T
F— LR R o

BERAKFENEAORERERER %
BEMEARATERRLAABD Z2AE
TR BRBFEME

AREEFEZHEARNES AT E
REERzERANAREHEIZ R
BohSHBATANRIARANE
Pz tAREZTAMRSHBHERK A
5 2 O — AR T B 2 T BSR4
P

BEIEIREERBTRAZBHIY
#40,365,0008 . (=% — £ &
35,482,000 7T) - REREBR AT H
MEMELFTENHER - RZE—-NF
+=—A=+—8 #4184,0008 L (=%
—+ 4 :392,0007% 7T ) &9 A 2 = A
ME R BN ARMELFTE IR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

42. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, assets with the following

carrying amounts were pledged by the Group to secure

general banking facilities:

42. EEEM

REEEER AKEDHK T ARE
Bt ENEEERT UBRESETASE

Bz —RIRTTEER:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FET

Buildings BgF 69,114 70,638
Leasehold land held for own use LZREHERAEN

under finance leases BEREELH 83,100 83,100

Leasehold land and land use rights & £ 3 & + 30 {5 FA & 3,644 4,041

Plant and machinery R 5 To 1 2% 7,364 1,449

Bank deposits HBITFER 52,159 31,104

215,381 190,332

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial instruments by categories

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, the accounting policies
for financial instruments have been applied to the line

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

3. BBEREEREMTIACZAY
EE
() REFNBHZSMITA
RER N E 15 R 5 B0
CRMTAGHBECEAR T

items below: BH:
Financial
assets
Financial at fair value
assets at through
amortised cost profit or loss Total
UATEE
RRHERATE FARR
WEeMEE HemEE am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$ 000
FET FET FET
Assets as per consolidated REEHERRS
financial statements ZEBE
31 December 2018 —E-)0\F
+ZA=+-H
Other financial assets HitemEE - 33,930 33,930
Amounts due from associates fEMR R & A R FUE 2,184 - 2,184
Finance lease receivables R EHENE 153,700 - 153,700
Trade and other receivables BH RAMEKTIE 898,773 - 898,773
Pledged bank deposits BEBRIER 52,159 - 52,159
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkARe%EE 287,543 - 287,543
1,394,359 33,930 1,428,289

Annual Report 2018
“z-nxem 247



248
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(@) Financial instruments by categories (Continued)

43. K EREEREMTIT AN E

BfE (&)

(a) BERES 2EMTA (&)

Financial
assets
at fair value
Loans and through
Receivables profit or loss Total
AATFEE
EFR STABREN
HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FAT FET FHET
Assets as per consolidated REEHERERS
financial statements ZEE
31 December 2017 —TtF
+-A=1-H
Other financial assets HitepEE - 20,277 20,277
Amounts due from associates FEMCH & DRI FE 2,543 - 2,543
Finance lease receivables B ERENR 117,437 - 117,437
Trade and other receivables BHRAMEKIE 891,273 - 891,273
Pledged bank deposits BHEARTER 31,104 - 31,104
Cash and cash equivalents BehReEE 317,642 - 317,642
1,359,999 20,277 1,380,276

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 43. K EREEREMTIAZAF
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (£&)
(Continued)
(a) Financial instruments by categories (Continued) (a) BRERE S zE€MIE (£&)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
%8 85 A AR
FEzSRAE
HK$°000
FHEIT
Liabilities as per consolidated REEHBRRTIZEE
financial statements
31 December 2018 —E-NF+=ZA=+—8H
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAERRIE 783,417
Amount due to an associate R — A A B FOE 704
Bank borrowings RITER 377,163
Obligations under finance leases RMEHEMER 7,075
1,168,359
31 December 2017 —E—+H+-_A=+—H
Trade and other payables B 5 R E MBS FIE 773,872
Amount due to an associate R — B N B FOE 865
Bank borrowings RITHER 425,723
Obligations under finance leases MEREER 2,696
Deferred consideration payable B EMNRE 8,148
1,211,304
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 43. IR BREEREMI A2 AFE
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (b) BHREKREZ

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk arising in the normal course of its business and
financial instruments. The Group’s risk management
objectives and policies mainly focus on minimising
the potential adverse effects of these risks on the
Group by closely monitoring the individual exposure as
summarised below.

(i) Foreign currency risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB"), Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), United States Dollars (“US$") and
Japanese Yen (“YEN"). Such exposures arise from
sales or purchases by subsidiaries other than the
subsidiaries’ functional currencies. This currency
exposure is managed primarily through sourcing
raw materials denominated in the same currency.
In addition, certain recognised assets and liabilities
are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the entities to which they
relate. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy.

Certain assets and liabilities of the Group are
principally denominated in US$. HK$ is pegged
to US$, and thus foreign exchange exposure is
considered as minimal.

At 31 December 2018, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against the RMB, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$3,097,000
lower or higher (2017: post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$2,624,000 lower or higher).
There will be no impact on other components of
equity.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

AEENEBARSEY KRR :
migRAR (BREINERE  FIXE R
kERERR) - FERR R —RES
BENERTAEHZRPESME
o NEEMEREEBFERER
TEFBTYERENMERNRR
HEEIRBRERIAKEZHHRR
PIZMBEEmTE-

(i) SEmRE

AEBAZIINER ZRAR £
EAHRANRE(ARYE) B
(GBm) EmL(EXET)KATT
(A7) - ZEFRRTIE S E
REAM B AR 2 D BE B B A
Shz ERETEEMES It
E¥RARDEZEBERBIAM
RE¥IEZRMHER -5
S BNEHRRBZEERER
BRYIFAEBERIEER
RETEEM - AKERB LS
SIME SRR ©

AEEZETEENBBEE
AERTTRFTEEM - BTHEE
JUENR - L SIE R B AT AR 1
o

R N\F+=—A=+—
BB H ARBEXEE
%8, 5910% - AT A H b
B REE2HRBE
HH A D B RIRENE S
3,097,000 70 (Z T —t4F:
Bk %t 1% % FMK 52,624,000
B0 o EAER BN R B 1A

S/ 480
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =%

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against the YEN, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been approximately HK$641,000
higher or lower (2017: post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$203,000 lower or higher).
There will be no impact on other components of
equity.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to each of the Group
entities’ exposure to currency risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant.

The stated changes represent management'’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the
next annual reporting date. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$
and the US$ would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the US$
against other currencies. Results of the analysis as
presented in above represent an aggregation of
the effects on each of the Group entities’ profit
after tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2017.

(i)

e SRR MIEE ()

—NFFZA=+—HIFE

43. K EREEREMTI A A E
BE (&)

(b) MBEREZE (&)

SMER B (#)
RZE—NF+_H=+—
B 8 TH BT ERER,
JHE510% 1M BB E At B 2T
¥ RFEIRBERFNE S
AR K= K 4641,000%
T(ZE—+F :BRMERF
1K, ©203,000/7T) - BT &
HESNEMBI>BEE-

BRKNE D AT T E R R INEE
EKBERRELEEREE
WERZAERARERFEZ
EEEERAMX eI AR
EXRR RNBEEMLES
(RERRR)@HFIE.

MEBRKREEEEIMNE

EXEBET —EHREAFE
EOMMzEBEE URRK
BTRETZBEERT AR

XA EMEE 2 TMESHM
ﬁik%%°iLZ D AT 4 R

DNESEEBZHRBRE DN R
2o %x4@<&ﬁm@zm
%E J Iuﬁ%%#

%)Z%%o:%—tiﬁuﬁ
— HABES T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 43. BBEREEREMIAZAT

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) BHREBEE (&)

(ii) Interest rate risk (ii) FFE L

Except for pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents (note 27),
the Group has no other significant interest-bearing
assets. The Group's income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. Management does not
anticipate significant impact on interest-bearing
assets resulted from the changes in interest rates
because the interest rates of bank deposits are not
expected to change significantly.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Prime or HIBOR
arising from the Group's borrowings denominated
in HK$ and RMB.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings at
fixed rates and finance lease receivables expose
the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. Details
of the Group’s borrowings and finance lease
receivables have been disclosed in notes 30 and 22
respectively.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. In order to
manage the cash flow interest rate risk, the Group
will repay the corresponding borrowings when it
has surplus funds.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

PR EHRTEEF
REBRE MR EE (FE27)
S REBE Y EERB AW
BEE -AEENRAREE
RenEEAR EAEH G
YT E-BEEEYTEB
MNEBESHFEREEELE

FE HAFEHRITERN X

AEEHMHNRSREF KR
REIBREREAREETREA
REEFTNHEENERER
RITAEREZ K-

EEEREAEEERHRSR
EFERR - FLMERRER
MEHERBEFAEBEYA
FTEEMNERBR EENEER
EFRRERREREREZ
1B B9 B MY sE30 224
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

43. K EREEREMTI A A E
BE (&)

(b) MBEABREE (&)
(i) FIFEmE (&)

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for the variable-rate bank borrowings at the end
of the reporting period. For variable-rate bank
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year.

At 31 December 2018, if interest rates on
HK$-denominated borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$1,343,000 lower/higher
(2017: post-tax profit for the year would have been
HK$1,456,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.

At 31 December 2018, if interest rates on
RMB-denominated borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$462,000 lower/higher
(2017: post-tax profit for the year would have
been HK$554,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate
risk for financial instruments in existence at that
date. The above changes in interest rates represent
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until
the next annual reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2017.

VAR 8RR D AT T AR B TR 5 4
BRAFERITERZAERE
BT - W BRITIE M
WM IIBERREESE
EZ%EE%Lﬂ@ﬂirﬂ
REEMET-

RZE-—NEF+A=+—
A WEETERFERES
FEAK5025 F M H i A =R #F
g R FEBRIHE R EE
/B 491,343,000 T (=2
—tF BRBEEREAIE &
1,456,000 7C) ' T ERZHRN
2 EME RS H A,
e

/

%

E-NE+-_A=+—
B W%AEM%ﬁﬂTFE
/PRAK502E T ify B E R
“E o RIFE R R R EE
/ E#1462,0008 7T (—F—+
FBRE&EFIKS554,000
BIL)  EBREANZEEMERH
B HR A o

A L BURE D AT 2 B E TIIRER
MEZHNHESHEAEL
ﬁﬂﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁmgﬁﬁﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

43. K EREEREMTIT AN E
BE (&)

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) MBREBREE (&)

254

(iii) Price risk (iii) 1B 12 B
The Group is exposed to equity securities price AEEHIHLESHEER
risk in its available-for-sale financial assets. As the REREFHFEHRER ARA

Group's policy is only to invest on such investments
by its surplus funds, the exposure may not have
significant impact on the Group’'s financial
position. The Group is not exposed to commodity

SEZBRRBENERHESD
BRERBBERE AERRA

ETEHAEE 2 MBI E
EERFE-AKETEEY

price risk. 2] (B A% [ Bg o
(iv) Credit risk (iv) c5EE
The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation AEBHREREE S R HME

to its trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivable and cash and bank balances. The
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables,
finance lease receivable and cash and bank
balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group expects that there is no significant
credit risk associated with cash and bank balances
since they are substantially deposited at state-
owned banks and other medium or large-sized
listed banks. Management does not expect that
there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

The Group has large number of customers and
there was no concentration of credit risk. The
Group has monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverability
of these receivables at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

43. K EREEREMTI A A E
BE (&)

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

(b) MBEABREE (&)
(iv) EEmE (&)

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

e internal credit rating;

° external credit rating;

e  actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
change to the customer’s ability to meet its
obligations;

e actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor/ customer;

e  significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the customer, including
changes in the payment status of customer in
the Group and changes in the operating results
of the customer.

REBTEEMNVIREREE
BEREMAT AN b E R ER
HHRABENEEERRES
BEEM-TFEEERRKE
TEE%i‘jJDH—rﬁﬁlﬂgﬁﬁiEl
e Bh 8 E AR T A 14 6a
)05 T TR By B 2 AR 5 AR MY AT B
METHE BRGEEAR
BEBEAEMAEREE AT
BREEEHERE

o ABMEENL:

o SMEREEFFA:

« BEMERESETELE
HHIRERSE -
BF 165 ST TR 50 ) B R B
B EATH S

o BEBA/BEPELEEEN
ERKFEHEREE):

. EFEMERRITANE
AED BEAEENE
FHRRRREBRES
EEEENRD -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
(a) Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade

receivables.

As at 31 December 2018, the loss allowance
for trade receivables was determined as
follows. The expected credit losses below also
incorporated forward looking information.

43. K EREEREMTIT AN E
BE (&)

(b) MBREBREE (&)

(iv) EEmE (&)

(a)

B 5 YRR
S E FE A L #) T AL
BB WS ERIFESR
RENBEREEERTR
B R ERI AR ERA AT
BB RYGRIAFERN
BHERRE-

M2018F12A31H & 5
FEMW R IENEIEREET
MT e TXWEHREEES
BB SAEEER -

Expected Gross carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance

HAHEEZR REAHE BERE

% HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

0 to 3 months 22=fdA 0.7% 529,539 (3,797)
4 to 6 months mEREA 0.7% 121,155 (765)
7 to 9 months +ENEA 2.4% 57,159 (1,372)
10 to 12 months TE+=fA 2.8% 28,015 (781)
1102 years —Z°F 9.7% 40,949 (3,953)
2 t0 3 years “E=E 74% 4,864 (3,597)
Over 3 years BA=F 97.3% 95,198 (92,599)
876,879 (106,864)

In prior years, for trade receivables, the Group
performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
debtors’ financial condition and does not
require collateral from the debtors on the
outstanding balances. Based on the expected
recoverability and timing for collection
of the outstanding balances, the Group
maintains a provision for doubtful accounts
and actual losses incurred have been within

management’s expectations.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

43. K EREEREMTI A A E
BE (&)

(b) MBEBREZE (&)
(iv) EEREE (&)

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

(b) Finance lease receivables
The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for all finance
lease receivables.

As at 31 December 2018, the loss allowance
for finance lease receivables was determined

(b) EWRREHEERIEA
NG E ' L Ey AL
& W5 S 2 A F 95
MEMBEREEEBEE
Bie S ER R RAM
BERYREHEREFE
HIm TR HI B 1R B 4

M2018%12A31H - FEI
MEMEFBNEIBEE

as follows. The expected credit losses EEMATN . TXHEHE
below also incorporated forward looking EEBEBTESAELEE
information. B} e
Overdue
e
Within Over
Not overdue one year 1 year Total
ES k] -ER BB-F &%
31 December 2018 ZE-N\E
+ZA=1+-H
Expected loss rate BHEREZ 2.4% 28.2% 100%
Gross carrying amount REER
(HK$'000) (F&x) 152,415 6,838 645 159,898
Loss allowance (HK§'000)  E#E#&E (FET) (3,628) (1,925) (645) (6,198)

(v) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the parent company’s board when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

(v) ZEBELEE

AEEBETENLERNE
B ASRRERSERE B85
ReRfNERRENERSE
FARMNBRFHNREF R
HRERBAE REENSE
TKF-RIERBRABESRS
HLE T AIEE - N R B A BUR
A E B RV E KR SR ER P O
BESHFF REALETHE
ERE AERETERLS
BRRANRE ARG
EERSHRANEAERES
BoRENENASHREHRR
BESFR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 43. K EREEREMTIAZAF

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) BHREBEE (&)

(v) Liquidity risk (Continued) (v) ZEELERE (&)

The tables below categorised the Group's financial THREBEREEEBRZEESL
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based HACH THE BXR&EE 2
on the remaining period from the end of the SR B EREE A RET
reporting period to the contractual maturity DEINERFHNEEIAEER
date. The tabulated amounts are the contractual ZERFMBERERE -

undiscounted cash flow payments of the Group.

Less than Between Between

1year 1and2years 2and5 years Total
PR 122% 2E55 @zt
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FHET FHET

At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE

T=ZA=+-H

Trade and other payables BHREMENRE 783,417 - - 783,417
Amount due to an associate ER—BBERANE 704 - - 704
Obligations under finance leases Bl EMEEH 2,880 2,887 1,873 7,640
Bank borrowings BRITIER 362,979 15,670 5,121 383,770
1,149,980 18,557 6,994 1,175,531

At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF

+ZRA=+—-H

Trade and other payables BHRAMENIE 773,872 - - 773,872
Amount due to an associate BER—EBERATEA 865 - - 865
Deferred consideration payable  JEILER R (B 8,148 - - 8,148
Obligations under finance leases B AR EE 2,750 - - 2,750
Bank borrowings RITHER 387,139 41,991 4,025 433,155
1,172,774 41,991 4,025 1,218,790
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the carrying value
of the Group's financial instruments measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

43. K EREEREMTI A A E

BE (&)
AV EEE
() AFEEHAMSZEBEE

NP EERE

TREVRBESEBATE
BREBEUERONTEENE
ZASENESRMT A REE
BEEEBMBEHREERE13
B AFEEAEMRAEZA
FEE=ZERET KA FE
BAEDBZERDKE2EM
TMHEETDEARBE 2 AIER
MREEHRERE:

FE-BRAEEEERSE
—EREARE (R &
EARBEEXREBERA
Bz REHABRE)
AEZATVEER-

- FEBRHEERF=
B RE A B (A ReEE
AFE-—BRzABEHA
2B BXRERERD
BB ABBIFEL
NFEBEE-TABEREA
BEAEMEHEZEA
Bz -

- BSEREE:RAEA
FABREUBHEZ AT
-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 43. IR BREEREMI A2 AFE
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE (&)
(Continued)
(¢) Fair value measurement (Continued) (c) DEEBEFE(E)
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value (i) AFEEFAEDZZZHEE
through profit or loss (Continued) (%)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NEEERE (&)

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2018 categorised into
R=2-N\£+-A=t+-H
AVEEHEEATIE

Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AV EE E-BR E-ER EZEBRX
HKS 000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FAT FAET
Other financial assets AthemARE

— Unlisted unit trust funds —FLEmERM
EEEe 219 - 219 -
- Wealth management products ~ — 28/ E & 33,7111 - 33,711 -

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2017 categorised into
R-E—tF+-A=1-H
ATEEHEENTIE
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AYEE F-ER FZER E =N
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET
Other financial assets EthemEE

- Unlisted unit trust funds —FEmER

FEz-%a 59 - 59 -
— Principal guaranteed -RAREES

investment funds 20,218 - 20,218 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value

(i)

through profit or loss (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair values of unlisted unit trust funds,
principal guaranteed and non-guaranteed
investment funds in level 2 are based on net
assets value of the investment funds at the end
of the reporting period provided by the financial
institution.

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and
2018, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2017 and 2018.

(i)

43. K EREEREMTI A A E

B'E (&)
AP MENE(H)
() AFEEFAANZLBEE

(%)
N EBERE (&)

FLETEMNEREES RAR
FREABRERES 2N FERRE
FE_BRRENRSREBREH
EREHERERREESHN
FEEMEE-

BHEZZ—+F+ZA=+—
A—ZE—-N\F+—A=+—
HEFEN F—BREFZ
BRIl e i o i B
“BASNREZEREL -F
NTEEEEE REERE
AR AEBESIRBERNR
EEEA®R-
THEEREENA-FEES
HEREE
RZE—+E+=-A=+—H
RZT—NF+ZA=+—
A AEENSRITE KA
B HERAREEREQNFE
BN EERND R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(d) Capital risk management

43. K EREEREMTIT AN E
BE (&)

d) EERBRER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

SENESERIK BRREEE
BREREEEEELE
VA 75 B SRS 2R 13 3R, - [R) B 3R BE L b
oA ARG THEFREN
BARBEABEES KA -

RTHEFBXNFABEAERE SEA
EEHEINTRRAOKESRE
ABRRFEEES BITHRIHE
BENBIEER -

SEMNBRABLERERAER.
IE Fb R 42 BR AR 5 SRR A B A AR ERT
H-RERBEIERDEENR

BE-BEAREBRGEAMBAR
KA ZBIER RS ARE -

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total
debts ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total capital. Total borrowings include
current liabilities and non-current liabilities. Total capital
includes total borrowings and total equity as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR MIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)
(d) Capital risk management (Continued)
The total debts ratios at 31 December 2018 and 2017
are as follows:

43. K EREEREMTI A A E
BE (&)

(d) ESRBRER (&)
RZE-NF+_A=+—HBK=
E—t+F+_A=+—RAZHEERE

thEA:
2018 2017
—Z2-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current liabilities mEAE 1,280,921 1,408,243
Non-current liabilities ERBBE 50,487 70,277
Total borrowings fE 4858 1,331,408 1,478,520
Total equity SRR 1,400,285 1,292,139
Total capital N L 2,731,693 2,770,659
Total debts ratio FEE=R g n g 49% 53%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally or internally imposed capital
requirements.

AR A H AR AT MY B B R A
REAEBHEIMNOE AR EPTRR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rE B RERME (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

44. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH 44 LR ERETZR G RERR
RELATED PARTIES
During the year, the Group had significant transactions with REERN NEEE TS| BEER#ETZ
the following related parties, together with balances with BEARG ERRMEEEBR 2 &
them as at the end of the reporting period, details of which BT

are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Notes HK$000 HK$°000
Bt it FET FET
Company controlled by certain HAETESREFE

directors’ relatives: kil d/AN]

Management fee paid (note /) ERBLL (M) 996 996
Non-controlling interests: IR
Balances due from the Group KEBEER 21

(note i) (Kt7zii) 28 9,600 10,345
Rental income He WA 2,198 813
Service fee income Pk 7% & Uk A - 289
Consultancy fee paid k=l 1,016 1,178
Sales HE 196 -
Associates: /N
Balances due from the Group AEBHER 2

(note ii) (Haii) 704 865
Balance due to the Group BRAKE 2 &

(note i) ( B atii) 20 2,184 2,543
EDP charges paid B A GEERBE 4,356 5,566
Rental income He WA - 104
Purchases BE 87 143
Purchase of fixed assets REERTEE 164 53
Remuneration of key management £EB X EZEEASH S

personnel of the Group (note jii):  (Bt&Ziii) :

Salaries and other short-term Fre MEMEHES &R
employee benefits 29,117 15,210
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #iZ =%

44. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH
RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Further details of directors’

and the chief executive’'s

emoluments are included in note 10 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Notes:

(iv)

The prices of the transactions were determined by the directors
with reference to prices for similar transactions with unrelated
third parties.

The balances are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Key management personnel whose profiles are included in
Directors and Senior Management'’s Biographies section of this
report.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to which the Company was a party,
and in which a director of the company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant

transactions with related parties during the year or

significant balances with them at the end of the reporting

period.

e SRR MIEE ()

—NFF+ZA=+—HIFFE

44. BREREITZR B REER

(%)
EERTRRAMS0E—SHBIE
& B RS R M EE0 -

() ZEXZINEBKEZSEZEIHE
=HETRURSNEREREE -

ERAEER - 28 REE

(i) ZFA

o

%
>

(i) EETIEERABC2IEARELE
ENBREBABRENRD -

(iv) B Eut B ERIN R F R F E AR
B ARBHMELEARTEEREEEK
BHZRG RPN LZHEMBERA
#e

B mES AFEERES Y EHR
MEARS SEREEEHEREFL

BEMERER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

45. T EMB A TFHE

RZE—NF+_A=+—BFTEWES
NEIFBOT:

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2018 are as follows:

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered capital

BRAREER
Issued and RAEEZMBRALE
Place of fully paid  held by the attributable
incorporation/ Place of ordinary ~ Company*/ to the
Name of subsidiary registration operation share capital  subsidiaries Group  Principal activities
ARAR*/
R,/ BRTRESAR B R AR
WELRERE s bl Rews EBRRA BE AEEEMGE FEXH
% %
Cosmos Machinery Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
ARABBERAE £ EE 10,000,0007% 7T BRERR
Cosmos Machinery International Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$32,000,000 100.00* 100.00  Investment holding
AABBERERAT ) G 32,000,0007% 7T BRERR
Cosmos Machinery (Dongguan) The PRC The PRC HK$5,000,000 100.00 100.00  Trading of machinery
Trading Co., Ltd. (note a) FE FE 5,000,000/ 7T BHE S
RKREH (RZ)HEBERRA (Mita)
Cosmos Machinery (Wuxi) The PRC The PRC HK$5,000,000 100.00 100.00  Trading of machinery
Trading Co., Ltd. (note a) H H 5,000,000/ T BHE S
REEW (5 HERRDE (Hita)
Dekuma Rubber and Plastic Technology =~ The PRC The PRC HK$24,000,000 100.00 100.00  Manufacturing and
(Dongguan) Limited (note a) B H 24,000,0007 7T trading
ERERBRE (RR)BRATA of machinery
(Hizta) BREERES
Dong Hua Machinery Ltd. (note b) The PRC The PRC RMB146,199,955 75.56 75.56  Manufacturing and
RERMERADE (M) FE FE 146,199,955 AR trading of machinery
KRAEERE S
Gainbase Industrial Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100.00 52.00  Trading of printed
BEBEEERAA B B 10,0005 7T circuit boards
RIEBERE 5
Grand Technology Products Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$9,500,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
BEMRERERAT ) EE 9,500,0007% 7T BRERR
Jackson Equities Incorporated British Virgin Islands Hong Kong us$2 100.00* 100.00  Investment holding
Jackson Equities Incorporated ERgERREE B 2ETT REER
Karmay Industrial Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$55,000,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
BXEEBRRA B ) 55,000,0005% 7T and trading
REERRES
Karmay Plastic Products (Zhuhai) The PRC The PRC HK$16,800,000 100.00 100.00  Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd. (note a) H H 16,800,000% 7T plastic products

EXRZRHG (KE)BERRE (Hita) EEEHER

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. T EHB A RFE (£Z)
(Continued)

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered capital

EHREER
Issued and BRAEEZMRAL R
Place of fully paid  held by the attributable
incorporation/ Place of ordinary  Company*/ to the
Name of subsidiary registration operation share capital  subsidiaries Group  Principal activities
mAAT*/
R,/ BRTREMR iog= P
HEARERE it Fq-$::b ZRRBRA BE AEEEML FEEH
% %
Melco Industrial Supplies Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,500,000 100.00 100.00  Trading of industrial
Company Limited s N 1,500,000/ 7T consumables
R IERMERAR I¥ERERES
I IEHRM (LB)BRATF (hote a) The PRC The PRC US$600,000 100.00 100.00  Trading of industrial
EaIERM(LB)ERAR (Hita) + H 600,000 T consumables
IX¥ERRES
Guangzhou Melco Industrial The PRC The PRC US$400,000 100.00 100.00  Trading of industrial
Supplies Co., Ltd. (note a) H H 400,000 7 consumables
BMNTERIERMAERDE (Hita) IXHAERES
Shenzhen Gainbase Printed The PRC The PRC HK$140,000,000 100.00 52.00  Processing of
Circuit Board Co., Ltd. (note a) H H 140,000,000 7T printed circuit boards
Y BEGRRER DA (Hita) E[ Rl 43 38 W i T
Welltec Machinery Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100.00 100.00  Trading of machinery
EABHERLA ) R 10,000,000/ 7T KHES
KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong US$7,800,000 100.00 52.00  Trading of printed
HER-EMEERERAA ) EE 7,800,000% T circuit board
NI B IR E 5
Wuxi Grand Tech Machinery The PRC The PRC US$9,586,000 100.00 100.00  Manufacturing and
Group Ltd. (note a) H H 9,586,000% 7T trading of machinery
EGRRBRRERER AR (Mita) BREERES
Wuxi Grand Plastic Machine The PRC The PRC US$2,850,000 100.00 100.00  Manufacturing and
Manufacture Co., Ltd. (note a) H i 2,850,000% 7T trading of machinery
BHRBEREEERAR (Hita) BREERES
Cosmos Grand Plastic Co., Ltd. (note a) The PRC The PRC HK$56,000,000 100.00 100.00  Manufacturing of
ERARREEEERAR (Hita) FEH HE 56,000,000/ 7T plastic products
EEERER
Dongguan Hua Qi Plastic The PRC The PRC USD1,000,000 100.00 51.00  Manufacturing of
Works Co., Ltd (note a) H H 1,000,000% 7T plastic products
RREFEBELARRE (Wita) EEERESR
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Notes:

(@) The companies are registered in the form of wholly-owned
foreign investment enterprises.

(b) The companies are registered in the form of sino-foreign
cooperative enterprises.

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results
of the Group for the year or form a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group at the end of the year. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt capital in issue at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REEMEXERAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

45. T EM B A TIFEE (&)
Wit -

(@) REABTEMEAZIR/IEBEERE:-

(b) REBTEMAZIA/TIGERE-

NEMBRARDEREERASEHAF
EXERERUFEINFREAEE
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A BT B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F—NF+=-HA=+—HIFZ

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. T EMBRARFE (&)
(Continued)

The following table lists out the information relating to all TRINETEBEREERATMEBEFR
AR A E AN IR ER - I

R BRI BB R G HARE A

subsidiaries of Major Success Company Limited, which has
material non-controlling interest (NCI). The summarised

financial information presented below represents the RAIARGz&%-
amounts before any inter-company elimination.
2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
NCI percentage R ERE D 48% 48%
Current assets M E 405,090 390,813
Non-current assets FEREBEE 155,665 176,577
Current liabilities mBAE (223,013) (252,910)
Non-current liabilities FnBEE (13,522) (2,089)
Equity = 324,220 312,391
Carrying amount of NCI FEERERREE 155,626 149,947
Revenue A 858,826 788,612
Profit for the year KEE & & A 24,262 12,383
Total comprehensive income EHEBA LR 16,209 19,552
Profit allocated to NCI DR E IR 2 A 11,646 5,944
Cash generated from operating KEEBEECR®
activities 2,988 36,101
Cash used in investing activities REEHEA RS (8.861) (33,715)
Cash generated from financing BEFHEEZRS
activities 661 8,659
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AP RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ

46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments, new standards and interpretations which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
which have not been early adopted in these consolidated
financial statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the Group:

46. BE-_ZE-N\F+-A=1+—H
LFEEEMESRERZE
AMERT HAT R RBRENEE
2

BEEREHRAVBRERTNEAML B8

A BEMZERBEE-Z N\

FT-A=Z1T—BLEFENDREMAR

RZEFRAMBHRERAL KRR RM2E

ANERT AT EA K 2k - R FHEAR

BAMERBENATRE:.

Effective for

accounting

periods beginning

on or after

RTFRHRESR

Bmzat EENR

HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
(BRUMBREER) £165 HE —Z-AF—-A—H
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 January 2021
(BRUMBHRELR) £175% Rz & 4 —T-_—%—-f—-H
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019
ER (AR BRERBERZE)REET HEARETEEN —Z-AF—-A—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of material 1 January 2020
BR G ERAE IR RESHK 2B BERZER —T-T5—-A—-H
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement 1 January 2019
BRGENFE19% 287 FENEET RS EE —T-NF—-A—H
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2019
BB ERE28% 2 EFT REERTRAECEZRPES —ET-h&E—A—-H
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 cycle 1 January 2019
BREMBRE LR 2B ERMBRELEN _Z-LFE_Z—+FREPCFELE —Z-NF—-A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a business 1 January 2020
ERUBRE LR EIR BT EBHER —T-T5—-A—-H
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment features with negative compensation 1 January 2019
BERTBRELERFIR BT REEFFHEREHIE —Z-NF—-A—H

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

ERVBREENFI0HR
BER G ERE28H 2R

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture
REEHEBEDNAIGEPECHNEEHEITE

To be determined
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of
HKFRS 16 which may have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. While the assessment has been
substantially completed for HKFRS 16, the actual impact
upon the initial adoption of this standard may differ as the
assessment completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, and further impacts may
be identified before the standard is initially applied in the
Group’s interim financial report for the six months ended 30
June 2019. The Group may also change its accounting policy
elections, including the transition options, until the standard
is initially applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(24), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and accounts
for the lease arrangements differently, depending on the
classification of the lease. The Group mainly enters into
some leases as the lessee.
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under
a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will
no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease,
the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over
the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect
not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e.
where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application of
the new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase
in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing
of the expense recognition in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the lease.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFFZ
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group
plans to use the practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements are,
or contain, leases. The Group will therefore apply the new
definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are
entered into on or after the date of initial application. In
addition, the Group plans to elect the practical expedient for
not applying the new accounting model to short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019 and
will not restate the comparative information. As disclosed
in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group's future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases for its rented premises
amounted to approximately HK$84,441,000 as at 31
December 2018. These leases are expected to be recognised
as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets,
once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The amounts will be adjusted for
the effects of discounting and the transition reliefs available
to the Group.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-
use assets, the Group expects that the transition adjustments
to be made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not
be material. However, the expected changes in accounting
policies as described above could have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statements from 2019 onwards.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IFHBRE

INCOME STATEMENT

Wz &
For the year ended 31 December,
BZE+-A=1+-ALEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
ZT-WmE ZT-hF TR ZT—tF ZB-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 2,492,729 2,395,166 2,192,287 2,446,848 2,682,452
Profit/(loss) before tax BREATEN (BE) (351) (26,662) (279,260) 49,926 108,219
Taxation I (7,583) (12,156) (54,625) (6,076) (19,467)
Profit/(loss) for the year KERF,/ (H8) (7,934) (38,818)  (333,885) 43,850 88,752
Non-controlling interests FERER 25,367 10,783 (30,725) 16,566 14,700
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity A2 B HER A AJE(E
shareholders of the Company wAl/ (EE) (33,301) (49,601)  (303,160) 27,284 74,052
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B % AR R &
At 31 December,
R+=A=+-H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
ZE-mE ZE-hF ZE—RF ZE—t4§ ZEB-N\%
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 3,113,549 2,946,221 2,419,803 2,770,659 2,731,693
Total liabilities Bmaf (1,435927) (1,378,401)  (1,262,891)  (1,478,520)  (1,331,408)
Total equity BB 1,677,622 1,567,820 1,156,912 1,292,139 1,400,285
Non-controlling interests FRRER 234,822 232,507 190,318 211,645 216,716

274 COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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GLOSSARY

7 5

In this report, unless the context otherwise stated, the following terms shall have the following meanings set out
below:

RABER - FRAETAN TIFATEBATESE:

“Articles” the articles of association of the Company

[E72] RAR 2z BBEEZMA

“Board” the board of Directors of the Company

[EEg ] AAAEESE

“CG Code” the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
= 35Ul EARAIM S+ E 2 (BEEIETAD

"Company/Cosmos Machinery”  Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and the Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 118)

EAVNCIVONCE- 158 AREBRERBERLAR —HAREETMRLZBER AR HAR M AT
R £ (B 5% 118)

“Cosmos Holdings” Cosmos Machinery (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and a substantial shareholder of the Company (as defined
under the SFO)

NG ARBBZERERAR —HAREBBEIMALZAERRARARFZEIERR
(RE (EBFLRAGKD) T&)

“Companies Ordinance” the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

[ CRAHEAB ] BBEDIFEC22E (A aHEHD

“CMEL Code” Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and Relevant Employees of
Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited, revised from time to time thereafter

NG =SSN AREBEEERAFNEZEEREUEEETESR ST (BETKER)

"Director(s)” the director(s) of the Company

[E%] RRRIES

“ESG Guide” the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in

Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules
(R -Htg MERIES ] FHRAMESE - T EAE GRIR - REARWEESD
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GLOSSARY (CONTINUED)

AR (&)

“Group”
[ A& E

“Hong Kong”
(&% ]

“Listing Rules”
[ Em AR 81

“Model Code”

[1R2%Es Al

“Mainland” or “PRC”
(A ] s [ B

“Saniwell”

[ Saniwell |

“SFO"

[ CEZRBEGRL) |

“Share(s)”
[ 15 |

"Shareholder(s)”
BEN

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bt 32 P J

“US" or “United States”

-~y
[% |

the Company and its subsidiaries

ARR R HEM B QA

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
B E B RITT IR R

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

Bt X PR 25 - T AR Al

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHRBIME T FHARERETESFRZHHRESA

the People’s Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

REARANME (TBEFE RMALEE)

Saniwell Holding Inc., a company incorporated in Cook Islands with limited
liability, a substantial shareholder of the Company (as defined under the SFO)
Saniwell Holding Inc." —HRERHESEMR L BER AR BRRAIZEE
MR (RE (EHRRBERAD) E&)

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
EREEVESEES LG &

ordinary share(s) of the Company

RRA)ZEBE

the holder(s) of the Share(s)
ARNBIRDFEA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBERIMBERRAA

the United States of America
ENBAERE

per cent

Bk

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
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